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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1T—HLEE

2014 2013 2012
—E-ImF —E—=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Revenue W= 70,856 47,979 87,328
Profit attributable to owners of B RRIFTAEHE
the parent & {5 % 7 27,266 397,242 359,651
Basic and diluted earnings FREARK HK0.59 cent HK8.57 cents HK7.70 cents
per share e Pl AL AL P
Total assets BERE 8,680,613 2,348,352 2,086,453
Total liabilities BEHRE (5,318,852) (118,040) (128,254)
Non-controlling interests IR = (578,390) (5,082) (5,582)
Net assets (net of BEFE (K
non-controlling interests) FEIE R R ) 2,783,371 2,225,230 1,952,617

Revenue (HK$’ million)

Wz (BBABT)
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71
>
48
2012 2013 2014

Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK¢)

BREFARBERN (GBAL)

8.57
7.70
0.59
ol
2012 2013 2014

Net assets (net of non-controlling interests)
(HK$’ million)
EEFE (NRFERER) (BEET)
2,783

>

2,225
1,953
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall review

In 2014, the Group recorded turnover of HK$70,856,000 (2013:
HK$47,979,000).
to engage in the trading business which contributed
HK$17,443,000 to the Group's turnover for the year.
Nevertheless, the profit attributable to owners of the parent
dropped from HK$397,242,000 of 2013 to HK$27,266,000 of
2014, which arose mainly from the one-off gain on disposal of

During the year, the Group commenced

associates of HK$358,423,000 and one-off net gain on disposal
of available-for-sale investments of HK$140,209,000 (including
reclassification from equity of HK$177,212,000) recorded by
the Group in 2013. Basic earnings per share amounted to
HK¢0.59 (2013: HK¢8.57).

Knitting and textile business
In 2014, the turnover of W T REGEE&FHEHERH KX AR X A

("Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu”), a 51%-owned subsidiary, was
HK$53,413,000 (2013: HK$47,979,000) and the sales volume
was approximately 2,784 tonnes (2013: 2,219 tonnes). The
gross profit rate was 10% (2013: 11%). However, due to the
provision made for impairment of certain prepayments and
other receivables which have been long overdue, the knitting
and textile business segment recorded loss of HK$43,509,000
(2013: HK$1,157,000) for the year.

Trading business

During the year, the Group commenced to engage in the
trading of raw materials and auxiliary materials such as
electronic components, electronic products and metal materials
in Zhejiang Province. The turnover and gross profit rate for the
year was HK$17,443,000 and 2%, respectively. The trading
business segment recorded profit of HK$2,987,000 for the
year.
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Aero-technology related business

The Group is entitled to share 80% of the net income in
relation to Project EC120 operated by AVIC International
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company. 4 EC120 helicopters were sold in
2014. No turnover was recorded by the Group for both 2014
and 2013 as a breakeven was recorded by AVIC International
from the operations of Project EC120 which was because
AVIC International agreed that its indirect expenses allocated
to Project EC120, if any, shall not exceed its share of income
net of direct costs and expenses from the operations of Project
EC120. As a result, the aero-technology related business
segment did not contribute any profit to the Group for the year
(2013: Nil).

Others
Gain on bargain purchase

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30
December 2014, the Group completed to acquire a 100%
equity interest in Ease Triumph International Limited from a
fellow subsidiary of the Company. Ease Triumph International
Limited and its subsidiaries are engaged in the development
and sale of properties. In the opinion of the directors, the
acquisition can help to enhance the Group’s growth potential
and benefit the existing shareholders in the long run.
Accordingly, a gain on bargain purchase of HK$169,222,000
(2013: Nil) was recorded by the Group. Further details of the
transaction were included in the circular of the Company dated
11 December 2014.

Joint venture and associates

During the year, the Group recorded share of losses of the
joint venture and associates in an aggregate of HK$50,204,000
(2013: profits of HK$28,838,000). It was mainly because the
joint venture recorded a loss in 2014 compared to a profit
in 2013 as there had been a one-off gain on disposal of its
available-for-sale investments in 2013. In addition, during
the year, provision for impairment of loans to associates of
HK$68,535,000 (2013: HK$19,000,000) was made as the

associates have been loss-making in recent years.
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In the prior year, the Group had disposed of its 22.66% equity
interest in Sinbo Investment Limited (”Sinbo”) and a gain on
disposal of associates of HK$358,423,000 had been recorded.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s portfolio of derivative financial instruments as
at 31 December 2014 consisted of the derivatives at fair
values of HK$125,373,000 and HK$25,497,000 embedded in
the convertible bonds issued by Peace Map Holding Limited
("PMH") and by AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (“AVIC
Joy"”) (formerly known as China Environmental Investment
Holdings Limited),
of Hong Kong Limited,

both being listed on The Stock Exchange
respectively. These convertible bonds
are hybrid instruments that include non-derivative host
contracts and the embedded derivatives. The non-derivative
host contracts, representing the bond components, have been
designated as available-for-sale investments. The embedded
derivatives, representing the conversion options, have been
designated as derivative financial instruments. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, fair value loss in an aggregate of
HK$8,565,000 (2013: fair value gain of HK$4,125,000) was
recognised to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
respect of the embedded derivatives, which was mainly due to

the movement in the share price of PMH.

A deferred consideration for the disposal of the Group’s
interest in Sinbo in 2013 had been recorded as a derivative
financial instrument with a fair value of HK$23,844,000 as
at 31 December 2013. During the year, the Group received
the consideration and the derivative financial instrument was
derecognised accordingly.
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On 25 November 2013, the Group had entered into a
borrowing agreement with Broadlink Enterprises Limited
("Broadlink™),
shareholder of Sinbo, pursuant to which the Group lent to
Broadlink the convertible bonds issued by PMH held by the
Group with a principal amount of HK$22,531,000. It had also
been agreed that on 31 July 2014, Broadlink might elect to

an independent third party and a former

return to the Group either (i) the convertible bonds issued
by PMH with a principal amount of HK$22,531,000 together
with interest at 2.5% per annum in cash; or (ii) a lump sum
of HK$33,000,000 in cash. As at 31 December 2013, this
consideration receivable from Broadlink (“Broadlink Derivative”)
with a fair value of HK$27,174,000 had been recorded as a
derivative financial instrument by the Group. During the year,
Broadlink returned the convertible bonds issued by PMH with
a principal amount of HK$22,531,000 to the Group together
with the interest and Broadlink Derivative was derecognised
accordingly.

The Group's derivative financial instruments are managed and
their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Any fair
value gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Fair values are stated based on valuations
performed by independent professionally qualified valuers,
which are mainly influenced by the prices of the underlying
securities (shares of PMH and AVIC Joy) and the time value of
the derivative financial instruments.
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Available-for-sale investments

During the year, due to the commercial consideration of
increasing the influence over PMH, the Group converted the
convertible bonds issued by PMH with a principal amount
of HK$117,250,000 into 469,000,000 shares of PMH at the
conversion price of HK$0.25 per share. On the date of the
conversion, the market value of the shares of PMH received
at conversion was HK$93,331,000 while the fair value of the
convertible bonds converted was stated at HK$118,009,000
based on a valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer. A loss on derecognition
of HK$24,678,000 was resulted. At the same time, the
corresponding fair value gain of HK$5,268,000 previously
recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income was
released from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve. As a result, a net loss on derecognition of an available-
for-sale investment of HK$19,410,000 was recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

In the prior year, the Group had disposed of certain listed
investments in Mainland China and a loss on disposal of
available-for-sale investments of HK$37,003,000 had been
resulted. At the same time, the corresponding fair value gain
of HK$177,212,000 previously recorded in the statement
of other comprehensive income had been released from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve. As a result,
a net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments of
HK$140,209,000 had been recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for that year.

Equity investment at fair value through profit or loss

During the year, the Group recorded a fair value gain on
equity investment at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$65,085,000 (2013: fair value loss of HK$2,620,000) due to
the rise in market price of the investment.
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PROSPECTS

The Group, as an investment holding company, is committed
to invest in the property development and sale business,
the aero-technology related business and other fields, and
aims to enhance its value and create long-term return for its
shareholders in terms of returns on investments and operating
profits. The newly acquired property development and sale
business has a potential for return in the long run and will
provide the Group with a source of revenue and profit and thus
asset growth. The aero-technology related business will have a
good opportunity for development in the future in view of the
encouragement of the development of aviation industry made
by China. The prosperity of the knitting and textile business
declines as a result of the condition of the macro economy,
and the Group is cautiously optimistic about the prospect of
the business. Further development in trading business might
be attained after more experience has been accumulated. The
Group will identify the projects with a bright development
prospect, and will continue to review and optimise its business
portfolio.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Wu Guangquan
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, capital structure and financial resources

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had current
assets of HK$7,810,267,000 (2013: HK$1,243,325,000),
including cash and bank balances and time deposits in an
aggregate of HK$1,249,324,000 (2013: HK$1,079,391,000).
The Group’'s current liabilities as at 31 December 2014 were
HK$4,176,488,000 (2013: HK$117,060,000).

During the year, pursuant to a share placing and subscription
agreement, Tacko International Limited, an existing shareholder
of the Company, placed 900,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company to certain independent third parties at HK$0.60 per
share, and subscribed for 900,000,000 new ordinary shares
issued by the Company at the same price. The aggregate
cash consideration received, before share issue expenses, was
approximately HK$540,000,000. This transaction resulted in an
increase of the issued share capital and share premium account
of HK$90,000,000 and HK$450,000,000 respectively. Share
issue expenses of HK$5,397,000 were charged to the share
premium account accordingly.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s equity attributable
to owners of the parent amounted to HK$2,783,371,000
(2013: HK$2,225,230,000), comprising issued capital of
HK$551,959,000 (2013: HK$461,959,000) and reserves of
HK$2,231,412,000 (2013: HK$1,763,271,000). The Group's
outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December 2014
amounted to HK$704,686,000 (2013: HK$40,382,000). The
Group’s gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of total bank
borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable to owners of
the parent, was 25% (2013: 2%).

The Group's banking facilities are mainly utilised for general
working capital requirements and to finance its property
development projects.
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Charges on the Group’s assets

Details of the charges on the Group’s assets are set out in note
35(a) to the financial statements.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group's foreign currency exposures primarily arise from
certain sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currency. In view of the fact
that the Group tries to match its assets and liabilities with the
same currency, the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is
minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions described elsewhere in this annual
report, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the significant contingent liabilities of the Group are
set out in note 43 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, there were 179 (2013: 68) employees
in the Group. Staff remuneration packages are determined in
consideration of market conditions and the performance of the
individuals concerned, and are subject to review from time to
time. The Group also provides other staff benefits including
medical and life insurance, and grants discretionary incentive
bonuses and share options to eligible staff based on their
performance and contributions to the Group.

10
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Guangquan, aged 52, has been an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company since March 2010. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wu holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and
is a senior accountant. He is the president of AVIC International
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”) and a director of
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC International
(HK) Group”), both of which are substantial shareholders of
the Company. Mr. Wu has extensive experience in finance,
administration and management. He is also an executive
director and the Chairman of AVIC International Holdings
Limited (“AVIC IHL"), a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and was a
director and the chairman of Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd.
("Tianma"), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Pan Linwu, aged 50, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since February 2008 and a Deputy Chairman of
the Company since January 2013. He holds a Master’s degree
in Aeronautical Engineering, a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering
and a Postgraduate Diploma in Financial Accounting, and is a
professional senior accountant. Mr. Pan served at the Ministry
of Aviation Industry and the audit department of the Ministry
of Aero-Space Industry. In 1993, he was transferred to AVIC
International and served as deputy director and director of the
audit division. Mr. Pan is an executive vice president and the
chief financial officer of AVIC International, and a director of
AVIC International (HK) Group and Tacko International Limited
("Tacko"”), which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He has many years’ experience in financial management,
supervision and audit, and has substantial experience in the
area of finance, capital operation and risk management. Mr.
Pan is also an executive director of AVIC IHL.
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EENREESECEE

Mr. You Lei, aged 46, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since January 2013. He holds an Executive Master’s
degree in Business Administration, a Master’'s degree in
Business Administration and a Bachelor’s degree in Electronic
Engineering, and is a senior engineer. Mr. You is also an
executive vice president and chief operation officer of AVIC
International and a director of AVIC International (HK) Group.
He has extensive experience in business administration. Mr. You
is an executive director and the vice chairman of AVIC IHL. He
is also a director and the chairman of Tianma.

Mr. Ji Guirong, aged 53, has been an Executive Director,
a Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since September 2001. He holds a Master's degree
in Engineering Management and a Bachelor’s degree in
Engineering and is a senior engineer. Mr. Ji is responsible for
the Group's overall management and development of corporate
strategies in relation to corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions, project investments and diversification activities.
He is also the managing director of FEMZEIERBR A (a
subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the Company), an
executive vice president of AVIC International, a director of
AVIC International (HK) Group, Tacko, Speed Profit Enterprises
Limited (”Speed Profit”, a substantial shareholder of the
Company), certain companies controlled by certain substantial
shareholders of the Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Ji is a non-executive director and the chairman
of AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (“AVIC Joy", formerly known
as China Environmental Investment Holdings Limited and an
associate of the Company listed on the Stock Exchange) and
was a director and the vice chairman of Navinfo Co., Ltd., a
company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, until 26 January
2014.
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Mr. Zhang Chuanjun, aged 44, joined the Company in
October 2003 as the Chief Financial Officer and has been
an Executive Director of the Company since February 2008.
He holds a Master’'s degree and a Bachelor’'s degree in
Management Accounting and is a senior accountant. Mr. Zhang
is responsible for the Group’s corporate finance, accounting
and treasury functions. He is also a deputy chief financial
officer of AVIC International, the chief financial officer of AVIC
International (HK) Group, a director of Speed Profit, certain
companies controlled by certain substantial shareholders of the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang
has over 22 years of experience in accounting and finance. He
is an executive director and a vice president of AVIC Joy, and
an executive director and the deputy chairman of Peace Map
Holding Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond, aged 62, has been a Non-
executive Director of the Company since May 1999. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and a Master of
Science degree in Business Administration. Mr. Ip is also an
executive director, deputy managing director and a member of
executive committee of CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK
Hutchison”) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange since
18 March 2015), an executive director and deputy managing
director of Cheung Kong Property Holdings Limited (“CKPH"),
an executive director, deputy managing director and a member
of executive committee of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
("Cheung Kong") (whose listing status on the Stock Exchange
was replaced by CK Hutchison on 18 March 2015), an executive
director and deputy chairman of Cheung Kong Infrastructure
Holdings Limited, the senior vice president and chief investment
officer of CK Life Sciences Int'l., (Holdings) Inc., a non-executive
director of ARA Asset Management Limited (an Asian real
estate fund management company listed in Singapore), TOM
Group Limited, Real Nutriceutical Group Limited, Shougang
Concord International Enterprises Company Limited (except
CKPH and Cheung Kong, all being listed companies), ARA Asset
Management (Fortune) Limited as the manager of Fortune
REIT and Hui Xian Asset Management Limited as the manager
of Hui Xian REIT. He was previously a director of ARA Trust
Management (Suntec) Limited as the manager of Suntec REIT
(resigned on 17 April 2014). Fortune REIT is listed in Hong Kong
and Singapore, Hui Xian REIT is listed in Hong Kong whereas
Suntec REIT is listed in Singapore.
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EENEESEZEE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /A, SBS, aged 71, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 1999. He is also a member and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chu received his Master of Business Administration degree
from Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering
and Management at Northeastern University and was awarded
an honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China
Investments Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International Limited
and Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited, all being listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 60, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2007. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of
Science honours degree in Chemistry and Administration.
He is the deputy managing partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co.
CPA (Practising). Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, UK as well as The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is
an independent non-executive director of China Merchants
Holdings (International) Company Limited, China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Limited, Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited, Goldlion Holdings Limited, Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited and Wai Yuen
Tong Medicine Holdings Limited (appointed with effect from 17
March 2015), all being listed on the Stock Exchange.

14

BYFHTES

Ky BEE poses 715 B—ANLAFE
HALFEARBBYIFERITES o REERF
HERRFIEZZEGRTMNEEGKEFRE
o REERFBEERIAZERTIERER
BB BERHBASZERINEEETSMN
MEZERIEASBEBEZEGLIEM (AHER
%) o REEBRZEBEARE 2 MR #ENE
BI$R1T + General Electric Co. MIAT¥ITAR
ARITE RAAEBRHEHITHREEERA
A HETMEBREERARRKEERIEES
EBRARBIUIFNTES (LM AR EEY
FREERR P ETT) ©

TREEE 605 BE_TTLFT-AHE
RRAFRBIIFRTES - FTRERKHELAR
REZZEERFMNEZEENE - TRAERE
CERERREBEBELEM - FEERR/FS
RETEEBABATEEA - FERETRE
BEAMASREERSH  ZEEFAR
S AE  REASHMERTBRAERRAER
ARBEEBNEFEMARERGE - F
FERHERBDRERBR AR - PIBERIAS
MEBERAR  WEBEBEEEERAR - &
NMNEEBAERAR  LBBEERTHESER
RABRNTEEEERAERAR (BEZF—
RF=ZA+LRBREZRE) BUFNTES (L
MRR 2B R L)



~ AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
N\ s MEE TEERER (58) ERAT

Annual Report 2014
ZE-FEFR

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Zhaoxi, aged 67, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since September 2004. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Li holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration. He is a
senior research fellow of and served as a deputy director at
the Enterprise Research Institute of the Development Research
Center under the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Li has carried out research on corporate reforms
and management for over 30 years. He was an independent
director of Liaoning Hongyang Energy Resource Invest Co., Ltd,
a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, until 18 April
2014,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Hao, aged 41, Deputy Chief Financial Officer,
joined the Group in December 2010 and is responsible to assist
the Chief Financial Officer for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. He holds a Master’'s degree
and a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and is a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a senior
accountant. He has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and finance. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
(the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

“Corporate Governance Code”

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except as noted hereunder:
1. all Non-executive Directors are appointed without

specific terms (code provision A.4.1), details of which are

mentioned under the section headed “NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS” in this report;

2. the Company does not have a nomination committee
(code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4), details of which are
mentioned under the section headed “"BOARD OF
DIRECTORS” in this report; and

3. the Chairman of the board of Directors (the “Board”)
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held in May 2014 as he was on an overseas
engagement. Due to other business commitments,

all independent board committee members could not

attend the special general meeting held in December

2014 to approve a very substantial acquisition and

connected transaction (code provision E.1.2).

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate

governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.

Directors are required to notify the Chief Executive Officer and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before dealing in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the
case of the Chief Executive Officer himself, he must notify the
Chairman and receive a dated written acknowledgement before
any dealing.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard as set out
in the Model Code throughout the year 2014.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary company who, because
of his office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is
likely to possess inside information in relation to the securities
of the Company). No incident of non-compliance was noted by
the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.
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Currently, the Board comprises five Executive Directors,
including Chairman and two Deputy Chairmen, and four
Non-executive Directors, including three Independent Non-
executive Directors. All Directors served during the year
2014. The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 11 to 15 of this annual report. There is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationship) between Board members.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election but as between
persons who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election. A new Director appointed by the Board after the
preceding annual general meeting shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to
the existing Board) and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting.

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The
Board is directly in charge of nomination of Directors. In
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, the Board shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board but so that the number of Directors so
appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined
from time to time by the members in general meeting. For
nomination, consideration will be made to the qualifications
and capabilities of the nominated individual.
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At present, the Company does not consider it necessary to
have a nomination committee as the Board is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the appointment of new Directors from time to time to ensure
that it has a balanced composition of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company, and the Board is also responsible for assessing the
independence of each Independent Non-executive Director and
reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirements of the CG
Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

EEERBRE

HREFSRETHEHNESTSZRE - AR
KAK  AERHES 2RI BREFEMHA
BEAARAXHABRELERZ ALTA
Ko MEEFEMAEEFREBUEIIFNTE
ENBEIMEMBNERE (LEREERITHA
B) 2HBEFE AUARBRBBERATHER

ViREEREE -

/

RAERAT —DEINBEREIRFTESTEK
ZHEENEFEREZ TEBR (AR
D URBEZTENHFED - ARAES
BZERE  BIFENRNAEE - X - it
ERTEER B UEHREMEE U=
KEREFEZ T -EFQHEBLEEE
BT HIERIFT & B R AHETTARSK - AWinsd
ZERARUABREGEENEEESNEE
BRI ARERE - ARREFEER -

g R Om B

E=etEARE 2 BEBRE  ERAMBR
BREERERFAEUZEE -EFEXER
DETREABITE  FRRRRESKANa -
WEARLE 2 B AR NI W EE F BN H 5K
SURFF—E -

E=eRBAERTTEEEARATA
CERERBE EFSRELCXERNTE
EMBEE - B

1. BE LR ARRNEEERABRRES
M

2. BAREREENARAEESENE
IEBEEEER

19



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETERREZER (F8) BRAA
Annual Report 2014

—ZT—FEER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
m%%amﬁﬁi

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect
of corporate governance matters during the year 2014:

1. performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;
2. reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies

and practices;

3. reviewed the connected transactions and the continuing
connected transactions of the Group (if any);

4. reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and

5. reviewed the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company are delegated
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and
administration of the Company and make operational and
business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of the Company.

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in

respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of this insurance each year.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances through the Chairman at the
expense of the Company. The availability of professional advice
extends to the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the Company Secretary
and, together with any supporting Board papers, are available
to all Board members. During the year 2014, four regular Board
meetings were held by the Company.

The attendance of individual Directors at regular Board
meetings and other Committee meetings as well as general
meetings during the year 2014 are set out in the table below:

Number of regular meetings or
meetings attended/held
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Number of general
meetings attended/held

HEBTEHERREERY HEBTRRAERY
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee Annual Special

Director Bz Bxg FMEEE ERZES BE Rl
Executive Directors HITEE

Wu Guangquan RyrE 4/4 2/2 - 0/1 0/1
Pan Linwu AR 4/4 - - 1”71 11
You Lei mhiE 2/4 - - 0/1 01

Ji Guirong FEE 4/4 - - 0/1 0/1
Zhang Chuanjun REE 4/4 - - 0/1 0/1
Non-executive Director HHITEF

Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond EEp 4/4 - - 0/1 01
Independent Non-executive B FE# 7T

Directors BE

Chu Yu Lin, David ENAIf 4/4 212 212 01 0/1

Li Ka Fai, David TRIE 4/4 2/2 2/2 m”m 0/1

Li Zhaoxi FIER 4/4 - 2/2 0/1 0/1
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During the year 2014, a meeting was held by the Chairman
with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without presence of the Executive
Directors. Save for the annual general meeting, one special
general meeting was held during the year 2014.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the records provided by the Directors, the
Directors received the following training during the year 2014:

R-F-—HFER TFREFVTES (B1EH
MIEHMITESR) MRARNTEFLRENERT
BT -REH - BREBFEAGIN  R=F
—FRGRITRERFHIAE »

EERIIREERE

REBEFRHOLE EFRN_FT-OFARE
AT

Type of continuous professional development programmes

BESXZREFEER
Reading materials Attending briefing

and updates sessions/seminars

BIEM B R HEENE
Director BEE EHER [
Executive Directors HITEFE
Wu Guangquan RNHE - v
Pan Linwu EME - v
You Lei ==F7 - v
Ji Guirong ES-ES v -
Zhang Chuanjun REE v v
Non-executive Director FHTEF
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond HEe v -
Independent Non-executive Directors HUHMTEE
Chu Yu Lin, David Al v v
Li Ka Fai, David ERE v v
Li Zhaoxi ZJKER v 4
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ERERITHAR

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Currently, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are Mr. Wu Guangquan and Mr. Ji Guirong
respectively.
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The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The Chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that three out of the four Non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgment and fulfill
the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-
executive Directors are appointed without specific terms, but
are subject to retirement by rotation as explained above under
section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
Executive Director, Mr. Wu Guangquan, and two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David
(as chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

EEERBRE

IFARRESEFE MREFESHTEAXK
WEFIBEEFERHEE  UERKEM
BEEREMBEMARE - SHFERBEMD
Bt (HEFERBA ) ERITEZ2 SR
EARL=AMEMN - TENEERRABE
EHEENTEEFE R LIREMNER - 17
B EREGREEARE R T EZE
% o

TREERTRERNBERSEBEW R ELIAE
518

FHTES
FATESR/RAEETREZRERER - &
ERRERREARRZERMNG FRIESE
HEEE - EXERR/EUBIFNTESEHZ=
ZREEMERHE EEEL - YFe EmRRE
313 MRPTE AL LR o

FIBFAITES (BREBUIFRNTES) X HE/IE
EER - EERBUALTESS | BT LHE
RIE -

FMEES

FMZESRAH —RATES (RIELLE)
NMABIIFNTES CROYBRELEEEER
MREFERBERLE) MK - FHEZEENBAERR
MEZEREHARAEENEEREZFH M
BER RARAE ~ DA R LI 5T B R # B R T 2 52
ZIERBRBREMREFIRMEE FTHEE
ENAE  BRMBMEDBHIHENEBER
Bl
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The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year 2014
to review and recommend the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors and to review and approve the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and senior management. The
attendance of each member is set out in the table above under
section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2014,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.

Details of remuneration of members of senior management of
the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out below:

R-FE-—NFR FHEZESERITMAE
& MR R TESCHEM - Yias
EHERTEEREERBZHMEE - KK
BzHREREHEN LR [EFE] A ITOHFEER
A o

TBRABHHERRZETEENRERIERTE
SNHERRCERTERMNRIANE - Ut
BERMBARBRITES - RIBEFEEK -
TAEEHEFMNBBEANFL2EBEETEE S
MM - R—F—NFER - HFHEEEEEMN
T(EEFSERANT BEENATESER
BREEABNFHEFE) HER -

RE-F-NE+-A=+—AILER A2
AEEBEZMESRRNTIMT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration [ A AE
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ C £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. It currently
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David (as chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and
Mr. Li Zhaoxi. The Audit Committee met twice during the year
2014 to review the interim and final results, the interim and
annual reports and internal control procedures of the Group.
The attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under the section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS"”. The duties
of the Audit Committee are clearly set out in its terms of
reference.

Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Company. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for
auditing (including interim review) and non-auditing (including
accounting and tax advisory) services for the year ended 31
December 2014 amount to HK$2,240,000 and HK$993,000
respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

EEERBRE
EREES
ARBERIRE EHRANEI21ERRER L
ZEREZBE  Wes MEEANEE 2B H
WiZFhARER BERZESRA 2B
FHRITES CRPYBALEEETRE  FTREL
ERFRREE) EK - BERZBEER _FT—
MERNBRITMREH  UERHAKRENTH
KENKHES  PHBRSLRFR UEARM
EmiEr -  EREZHECHENLL (B
TIETHHFERAN - BRZEENREDS
BT B LB E A -

HEeENEHCECHT  LHEXTESFS
FAERKE - E8F LIRHMEEHCERES
g LWERKZEEMHTE -

BB &

KM BB IR R B ZZEAD - KHEFT
REZRBEEEZLFEZ #HE_ZT—NO
F+—A=+—HILFE B (BEFHE
B) R3EEZ (RREgF REEHN) REER
S R42,240,0007%8 70 % 993,000/8 7T °

Bt 75 BR 4R

EXRAEERUESEMBB M ERE -
ERPBRREEEM QA BB RAEEBRZ
BREVBRSREZEZHRR REMBREREX
B ERHEZSMHHREE  EFDEERE
BRBEENEGHBER KRB ESAE
BMEE B ERELER  RIEHBESEH
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The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the shareholders of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The Group’s system of internal control
plays a key role in the management of risks that is significant
to the fulfillment of its business objectives. Procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records;
and for the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or
fraud. Procedures have also been designed for compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

A review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, was conducted at the end of 2014 by
senior management of the Company. The result was reported
to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the Board. No
material deficiency was identified. During the year 2014, the
Board considered that the Company’s internal control system
was adequate and effective and the Company has complied
with the provisions on internal control of the CG Code. The
Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place to
identify, control and report on significant risks involved in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to
these risks are monitored by the Board with the support of
various committees and senior management.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yuen Chee, Sara, the Company Secretary, is an
employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. She has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2014, there was no
change in the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHT

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office"”),
which is presently situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionist, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures made available
under section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website
at www.avic.com.hk.
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Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.

General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-
one days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.
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Detail procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll are also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2014 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 28 May 2014. At the meeting, separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results
of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
The Directors including a member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee attended the 2014 annual general
meeting and have effective communication with shareholders.
Besides, the Company held a special general meeting on 30
December 2014 to consider and approve a very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction. An Executive Director
attended the special general meeting held on 30 December
2014 to answer questions relating to the very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements. During the
year, the Group commenced the trading of raw materials and
auxiliary materials business.

On 1 December 2014, the board of Directors (the “Board”)
announced its decision to acquire Ease Triumph International
Limited, whose subsidiaries are engaged in the development
and sale of properties business in China. Completion of such
acquisition took place on 30 December 2014. Other than this
development, there were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 48 to 208 of
this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 210 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 39(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$102,187,600. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$609,079,633, may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group's purchases attributable to the

Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
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TEREERES

AEEFEHEFMEAKRECRBEA DL
o

2014 2013
—ZT—F —E—=F
% %

Percentage of purchases: HRBEEEOL
From the largest supplier RERAHER 15 21
From the five largest suppliers RERAREER 51 62

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

AEEFEEPAEAEEZHER LN
T

2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=
% %
Percentage of sales: HEEAEI L
To the largest customer KERAEP 25 18
To the five largest customers RERAKXEFS 71 73

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.

EEYHIAREMBEALRNBERAANES
ARRAE5% A EEEHTRAZ R EREA NE
B R R R AR P R o
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DIRECTORS

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:

Wu Guangquan
Pan Linwu

You Lei

Ji Guirong
Zhang Chuanjun

Non-executive Director:

Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Li Zhaoxi

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Messrs. Wu
Guangquan, Li Zhaoxi and Li Ka Fai, David will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company, as at the
date of this report, still considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors as independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 11 to 15 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group's operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions
of the Directors in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules on the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Long positions in share options of associated corporation

of the Company:

RAEXTREBEEZBREZHFR :

Percentage of
the associated
corporation’s
issued share
capital as at
31 December

2014
Number Capacity R=2-RF
Name of Relationship of share and nature T=RA=1—H
associated with the  options held of interest LB AE
Name of Directors Notes corporation Company ik =075 ERTRA
Y st HEEEERE HAQARZER EBREZA ERiE 2B
Ji Guirong (a) AVIC Joy Holdings Associate 52,350,000 Beneficial 1.16
ES=S (HK) Limited L /NE] owner
("AVIC Joy", EnlEAA
formerly known
as China
Environmental
Investment
Holdings Limited)
ERER (BE)
BRAT
ez 4R
RIBTRERERE
R BRATF)
Zhang Chuanjun (b) AVIC Joy Associate 40,000,000 Beneficial 0.89
RES ERER NS owner
EnBAA
Notes: Kiaz -
(a) (i) On 23 August 2007, Mr. Ji was granted options to subscribe  (a) (i) IS T+FNA+=0 FThaEkE
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for an aggregate of 14,900,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20
each in AVIC Joy at an exercise price of HK$0.35 per share.
With effect from 23 February 2012, the number and the
exercise price of the share options granted were adjusted
from 14,900,000 to 22,350,000 and HK$0.35 per share to
HK$0.233 per share respectively.

—-=
% & AT 32 8514,900,0000% & f% & &
0.20/8 7T 2 ERIER T MR 2 WARAE -
TEEAFROISETL - R_E—ZF
ZAZt=RE BEHBRESA R
TEEE 5 B F14,900,0000% 78 & =
22,350,000/ A K & §20.358 T A E =
FA%0.2338 T °

i



(b)

(i)

On 31 August 2010, Mr. Ji was granted options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 20,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.20 each in AVIC Joy at an exercise price of HK$0.341
per share. With effect from 23 February 2012, the number
and the exercise price of the share options granted were
adjusted from 20,000,000 to 30,000,000 and HK$0.341
per share to HK$0.227 per share respectively.

The exercise periods of the options are as follows:

Number of share options

Exercise period

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETXBEBREZER (FE8) BRAF
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(ii) BT — EEJ\H =+—R8 FhEE

% A& A R #$20,000,0000% & f% & &
om%m2$h§%%ﬁ%2%%%'
TEBAERI3MBITL R —=
FZAZ+T=HE REHZEREHE
K ATEER 5 BI$H20,000,0008 A E
30,000,0000% LA & & [%0.3417%8 7T 78 #
EHM0.2275TT ©

BREITESMT

BREHA TEH
7,450,000 1/10/2007 to 31/1/2015
R FTA-HEZ-AF-A=+—H
7,450,000 1/1/2008 to 31/1/2015
—EENF-A-RE-ZT-AF-A=+—H
7,450,000 1/7/2008 to 31/1/2015
—EENFELA-RE-ZT-AF-A=+—H
30,000,000 31/8/2010 to 30/8/2020
—E-ZEFENAZ+-HE-Z-ZHFN\A=FH
52,350,000

No options have been exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.

All the above options remained outstanding as at 31 December

2014.

()

(i)

On 3 January 2006, Mr. Zhang was granted options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 10,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.20 each in AVIC Joy at an exercise price of HK$0.20
per share.

On 31 August 2010, Mr. Zhang was granted options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 20,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.20 each in AVIC Joy at an exercise price of HK$0.341
per share. With effect from 23 February 2012, the number
and the exercise price of the share options granted were
adjusted from 20,000,000 to 30,000,000 and HK$0.341
per share to HK$0.227 per share respectively.

(b)

FR o WEBRECITE « WA - R
T-ME+-A=+—0 LiltFrEBRENER
7l -

(i) RZTERFE—A=A " RELEERSE
F£ 7] 2H10,000,0004% & % 1 {E0.207%
T2 EREREBRERE - 1TEE
AEER0.208 7T °

(ii) NZT— ;E/\H:+7E| LR

% A A R #$20,000,0000% & f% & &
o.zo/%m2$%a%§ﬂ(ij§ﬁﬂiiz%ﬂiﬂf£ '
TEEREBROIMBIL R_T—=
FZAZ+T=HE RHZEREHE
K 47 £ & % B £920,000,0004% #8 & =
30,000,0000% LA & 8 1%0.3417%8 7T 78 #
EEMX0.227 7T ©
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The exercise periods of the options are as follows:

Number of share options

BRAEITEHMT

Exercise period

BREHA TEH
5,000,000 1/7/2006 to 31/1/2015
—EERFLA-RE-ZT-AF-A=+—H
5,000,000 1/1/2007 to 31/1/2015
R F-A-HEZZ-AF-A=t+—H
30,000,000 31/8/2010 to 30/8/2020
—E-EFENAZ+-HEZZ-ZF/\A=1H
40,000,000

No options have been exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
All the above options remained outstanding as at 31 December
2014.

Certain Directors have non-beneficial personal equity interests
in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors had registered an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES”
above and in the section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME”
below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme was valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
38 to the financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2014.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

'S —
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RZZ—NFEFRA=Z+N\BRITZREBEFX
gL ARFRMT —EERESE BOA
HAKBEZEBKEREKRELEMZEGER
SEEREAE LR UEAEBENEE
BEEIURSISIKBHAEEEFEEB LA
7o ZBREAEERMASEN T FHMA
BR - EZBRESTE ZE—PFHBEHERY
TR EE3S o

HERANZBREEIAR  R_F—MF+ =
A=+—8 BERBEZFERL  7E X
R~ AR ARTTIE 2 B AR

FERRREMALTARG REER
72 s

RZZE-—WF+ZA=1t—RH  ARFREZ
7 MEIBGRDIF 336K FE 2 m B oA ek
AR AR5 % HIA LB BTSN T

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

capital as at

31 December 2014

Number of R-Z-—IF

Capacity and ordinary +=BA=+—-AH

Name of shareholders Notes nature of interest shares held ERDTE BT

BRREMHE Hist BRRERNE g EREE BRAZEDE

Speed Profit Enterprises Limited (a) Beneficial owner 508,616,000 9.21
(“Speed Profit") ExnEBEA

FSMBERERLDE (TS5 )

39



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETERREZER (F8) BRAA

Annual Report 2014
—E-MEFFR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEERE

Percentage of
the Company'’s
issued share

capital as at
31 December 2014
Number of R=-Z-—F
Capacity and ordinary +=A=+—-AH
Name of shareholders Notes nature of interest shares held EERARE BT
RERER it SRRERME FREBREA BAEZBEDE
Tacko International Limited (“Tacko") (a) Beneficial owner 1,386,943,000 25.13
EnEAA
Interest of controlled 508,616,000 9.21
corporation
REEE 2w
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (a) Interest of controlled 1,895,559,000 34.34
("AVIC International (HK) Group") corporation
PHEER (FF) SERRAA AR e
(THmBlER (F8) £8 1)
AVIC International Holding (a) Interest of controlled 1,895,559,000 34.34
Corporation ("AVIC International”) corporation
B R T B R IR B IR A A AR
(T AEER 1)
Aviation Industry Corporation of (a) Interest of controlled 1,895,559,000 34.34
China ("AVIC") corporation
FEfMZETEREERRR ([FHRIE]) XEEE R
Li Ka-Shing (b) Interest of controlled 450,000,000 8.15
) corporation & founder
of discretionary trusts
EREE R R
PREFTZHIA
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company (b) Trustee 450,000,000 8.15
Limited ("TUT1") EFEA
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation (b) Trustee & beneficiary 450,000,000 8.15
Limited (“TDT1") of a trust
EAEARETEXHEA
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (b) Trustee & beneficiary 450,000,000 8.15
(“TDT2") of a trust
FEEARGIEXRA
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (b) Interest of controlled 450,000,000 8.15

("CKH")

RIE% (£E) BRAA
(TRIIB%E])
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMEITXEBER (F8) ERATF

Speed Profit is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tacko, which in turn
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC International (HK) Group.
AVIC International (HK) Group is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International, which in turn is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
AVIC. Accordingly, Tacko is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Speed Profit; and each of AVIC International (HK) Group,
AVIC International and AVIC is deemed to be interested in the
aggregate shares directly held by Speed Profit and Tacko.

According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with the
Company, 225,000,000 shares are held by Worsdale Investments
Limited (“Worsdale”) and 225,000,000 shares are held by Hutchison
International Limited (“HIL").

Worsdale is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arra International
Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheung
CKIV is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CKH. CKH is deemed to be interested in
225,000,000 shares held by Worsdale. Meanwhile, HIL is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL"). HWL
is deemed to be interested in 225,000,000 shares held by HIL.
Certain subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the

Kong Investment Company Limited (“CKIV").

exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at the general
meeting of HWL. Accordingly, CKH is also deemed to be interested
in 225,000,000 shares held by HIL.

Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“Unity Holdco"), of which each
of Mr. Li Ka Shing and Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor is interested in one-
third and two-third respectively of the entire issued share capital,
owns the entire issued share capital of TUT1. TUT1 as trustee of The
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (“UT1"), together with certain companies
which TUT1 as trustee of UT1

exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at their general

, is entitled to exercise or control the

meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of
CKH.

In addition, Unity Holdco also owns the entire issued share capital
of TDT1 (as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust
(“DT1")) and TDT2 (as trustee of another discretionary trust
("DT2")). Each of TDT1 and TDT2 holds units in UT1.
the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka Shing, being the settlor and is regarded
as the founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the
SFO, TUT1, TDT1, TDT2 and CKH is deemed to be interested in the
aggregate 450,000,000 shares held by Worsdale and HIL.

By virtue of

Bt

(a)

(b)
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15 F BTackoz 2 EMB AR - MTackoBH
MER (F5) EE22EWERF o RHMREER
(B%) EBATMBR 2 2EHBAR - mP
MEBEERAFMIEZIEREWBRR - Bt
Tackotk 1% A A BISFFA 2 RH 2 =
MAAMER (F48) S8 - M ERE LTI
IR AR IS F RTackoEEH A 2 B in B8
RS ER o

BIRRRAARF 2 = ETBAE - Worsdale
Investments Limited ([Worsdalel) # #&
225,000,0000% f% {7 K Hutchison International
Limited ([HILJ) /225,000,000 % 5 -

Worsdale&Arra International LimitedZ 2 & [
BA7] - MArra International Limited&Cheung
Kong Investment Company Limited ([CKIV])
ZERBEMBRB -CKVAERIBEZ2EW
BAR e RIIEZEWE R R WorsdaleFF B 2
225,000,000 % 7 o ¥ 5 #E &5 © 22 0t [R) B
HILRMEZBAR AR (THWL) 22 EHBEA
ﬂ ° HWLH 45 73 TRHILEF A 2225,000,0008% A
DHhHEEER RIBEZETHEARBER
HWLZ BRER K g EATE SR slfTE =52 — A E
ZEREE - Bl RITEETBRBRHILEE
2.225,000,000/% % 1 Fh #E 5 25 o

HERHEERFTRELEZEHE2HE R
TIRAZ =02 —Rk=92Z —#mZLi Ka-Shing
Unity Holdings Limited ([Unity Holdco]) + #
BTUT1 2 2 802 BT » TUT1EAThe Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trust ([UT1)) ZsEAZ &1 &R
ET AR (TUTIRUTIHERRA Z B B RERR
RRE FITHRSEGTR=9 2 — A L2 RER
ZAR) AEBAERIEX =Sz N EzE#
TTIRAR -

IESN + Unity HoldcoZR#EAETDT1 (PAThe Li Ka-
Shing Unity Discretionary Trust ([DT1]) E5EA
Z515) RTIDT2 (A S —&# =5t ([DT2]) 2
fé%)\% D) 22 EBEEITRAR - TDT1RTDT2

DR AUTIZ B - REFHRBAE KM -
FEEWEEHEATIMDNZHER T AR

MESRAEROMEHRAZMEREET
2SI A ETUTT  TDT1  TDM2R EIIE

(& B WK AR Worsdale XHILA £ H 2
450,000,000/ iz 0B s o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group had the following connected
transaction, certain details of which had been disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

On 1 December 2014, Sanba Investment Limited (“Sanba”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement with Onfield International Limited (“Onfield”),
pursuant to which Sanba conditionally agreed to acquire, and
Onfield conditionally agreed to sell, 250,000,002 shares (being
the entire share capital) of Ease Triumph at a cash consideration
of HK$325,881,324 (the “Acquisition”). As Onfield is indirectly
held by AVIC International and AVIC, controlling shareholders
of the Company, and therefore a connected person of the
Company, the Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, related party transactions that did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company made during the year are
disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements. The Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
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FA TIEZREB TNARRFHAE FIEHHD
i MZxEXEHRBEM EMRERRK
SEREAEENXBAERFRAEAERLM

<7 3 o7

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the %
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange:

Nature of
Name of Director Name of company Nature of interest competing business
BExEps NGEY EatE BEEKME
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited Deputy managing director - Property development and
EEe RIE% (58) BRAA ElEES g investment

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of the Excluded Businesses. When
making decisions on the businesses of the Excluded Businesses
of the Group, Mr. Ip, in the performance of his duties as
Director, has acted and will continue to act in the best interest
of the Group.

- Investment in securities

- Ownership and leasing of
movable assets

(collectively defined as

"Excluded Businesses”)

- MEERKIRA

- BHRE

— FIHEEHEREE

(cha [#BRE D)

EE2RRAKEERNBLMEEHRE
%o EARBERENEEREREARESFKR
BEBETARR  EELEERTEESZRG
o BT SEBARNER  REFRITE -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been audited
by Ernst & Young who shall retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Wu Guangquan
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT B % B & =

e

Ernst & Young RIS EAT Tel EFE: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BBRBRAMEB1E Fax {5K: +852 2868 4432
ﬁ i 1 Tim Mei Avenue PiERE2218 ey.com
I Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AVIC INTERNATIONAL
HOLDING (HK) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
48 to 208, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ZAVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDING
(HK) LIMITEDH B fin 28 T 3£ B B 12 iR
(B8) ARATZERE
(REBZEHME L2 ERAA)

F 171 2 #E #AVIC International Holding (HK)
LimitedP B fin = TERBRIZER (HE) BRA
Al (B2 RENEAR (B IE£E)])
BN FASE EF208EMIRA MBHRE - W
BHREBEE_ZE—NFT+_A=T—HN4ESE
LABBMBRAR  REEZAIEFENEE
Bak RE2EREER HeRzEHE -
FEBRMERNAREE ST AMH MMM T
fRIE o

EENGaMBRBRARENSE

EXFAERBEBBEAMAGHEMNEEY
R & RN E B R AR 3 5R R TE AR B4R
BUBRE  USHEAMBRRFELEEMD
FORBREZEESA/VDENANIEE - X
BRBHEHVERRE N FER N REFHERT
BEMEAERRAL
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et
EY =x

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION =R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true K fIR A ZTHAVBRECREFTEYH
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the REEHNEETMAAMKER BRARM B
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and ERZZT—MNF+=-A=+—HHNEHHRKR
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong K& ZEE£E&H#HZEZB IFFEEERNMIE LR

Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly £ Y EZRBEERAHEHNNHERTLZ AR
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the U o

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young RAGETREBH

Certified Public Accountants HEEFED

Hong Kong B

25 March 2015 “E-RF=A-+HhHA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS iz 88 %k
Year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —ZE—WNE+_-_B=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E2-ImF —T—=%F
Notes HKS$ HK$
btat BT Ve
REVENUE = 5 70,856,151 47,978,864
Cost of sales SHERAR (65,032,691) (42,759,878)
Gross profit EH 5,823,460 5,218,986
Other income and gain HE YA K FE 5 27,446,353 27,471,152
Administrative expenses THEEEH (62,615,955) (46,190,303)
Other operating expenses, net HEMh &2 558 6 (118,185,261) (25,010,073)
Finance costs B 7 (2,837,941) (2,936,761)
Net gain/(loss) on deemed disposal of W BHERE AR ZF
associates AE S (EBE) 18(a) 679,121 (7,808,330)
Gain on bargain purchase FERE Y 40 169,222,457 -
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE R E 2 FH 18(d) - 358,423,419
Share of profits and losses of: Db R EE
Joint venture HE RN (21,250,748) 60,838,893
Associates NS (28,952,834) (32,001,370)
Fair value gain/(loss) on equity investment at &2 (A A B2 2 ALK
fair value through profit or loss B2 AFEMNE,(EE) 65,084,500 (2,620,081)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEHENKRE ZEE
investments 20(c) - (37,002,918)
Fair value gain of available-for-sale A HENIRE 2 AT EF
investments (transfer from equity on B (AHERHESEA)
disposal) 20(c) - 177,211,944
Loss on derecognition of an available-for- & FRERAHEHENIREZ  20(),
sale investment B8 20(d) (24,677,965) (2,904,818)
Fair value gain of an available-for-sale AHEBENIEE Y AEER
investment (transfer from equity on B VR IEFEREIEERS  20(a),
derecognition) = A ) 20(d) 5,267,998 873,211
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative financial #7425 T A2 A FEF)
instruments, net M,/ (E18) 5 21 (8,565,331) 4,124,612
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRES AR R 6 6,437,854 477,687,563
Income tax expense FTiSRiF < 10 (490,857) (81,012,316)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RERA 5,946,997 396,675,247
Attributable to: THIA L&
Owners of the parent [SYNSIIPEE:) 11 27,266,364 397,242,208
Non-controlling interests FEFE R HE 2 (21,319,367) (566,961)
5,946,997 396,675,247
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREREREE ARG
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BREF
PARENT 12
- Basic and diluted — EARKRE#E HKO0.59 cent HK8.57 cents
0.597&4l 8.577
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZR&2HEWE T

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-ZF—

ME+—A=+—HLLFE

2014 2013
—E-0OF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
Hiat B BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFEF 5,946,997 396,675,247
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit2 Mk
Other comprehensive income to REEBEEEEHHE
be reclassified to profit or loss in @z R EK
subsequent periods: =
Available-for-sale investments: Al ENEE
Changes in fair value NEEEH 20 19,746,711 49,571,292
Reclassification adjustment for gains FFALREEER TS
included in the consolidated statement Z2EHDBEAR
of profit or loss
— Gain on disposal/derecognition —HE RIEEER
palbiEs| 20 (5,267,998) (178,085,155)
Income tax effect e & 36 = 34,178,933
14,478,713 (94,334,930)
Share of other comprehensive income DMEaERE 2 EM
of a joint venture FEWE = (36,396,187)
Share of other comprehensive income DREEE AT 2 B
of associates FERE (135,285) 5,103,684
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEREEZ
of foreign operations [E 5 =58 (18,001,718) 14,045,154
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REZBEKEEHRSE
TO BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR EEBSCHMEEKES
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS AND FERAFHAZEY
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME = (MBRBIER)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (3,658,290) (111,582,279)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REZHWHARE
FOR THE YEAR 2,288,707 285,092,968
Attributable to: THIA TR -
Owners of the parent B ARIFTEE 11 23,537,798 285,593,172
Non-controlling interests FEFE R R 2 (21,249,091) (500,204)
2,288,707 285,092,968
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44 B &4k R 3%

31 December 2014 —ZE—WF+_-_A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —FE—=%F
Notes HK$ HKS$
k3 BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BREMEE 13 41,297,027 43,606,420
Prepaid land lease payments JEN LR E K 14 2,958,040 3,065,639
Intangible asset B EE 15 570,491 760,654
Investment in a joint venture BENRZIEE 17 317,899,169 339,149,917
Investments in associates e RNRIZIRE 18 237,963,141 302,363,625
Financial asset under Project EC120 EC1205BB v i &= 19 = -
Available-for-sale investments AHEEENRE 20 121,770,827 204,523,519
Derivative financial instruments PTEERTA 21 125,373,037 191,429,868
Loans to related companies MREEE A AR LA E R 25 18,750,000 20,127,389
Prepayments Fart IR 26 3,765,157 -
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 870,346,889  1,105,027,031
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development BREPYE 22 4,950,000,000 -
Inventories =7g 23 2,854,935 3,025,756
Trade and bills receivables EIWE SR NEE 24 19,378,421 14,862,874
Loans to associates MBS R RREHER 18 = 12,101,911
Loans to related companies AR A FIRHENER 25 19,750,000 -
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - EBe Rk
other receivables H U BR R 26 1,204,612,895 90,930,682
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERNERE 20 51,071,290 -
Equity investment at fair value through BRAFEFAERZZ
profit or loss AR E 27 166,796,500 8,381,000
Derivative financial instruments TTHEemIA 21 25,497,256 34,632,277
Prepaid taxes TERTR IR 28 120,981,203 -
Time deposit with original maturity of BERREHABR=E
more than three months when acquired A2 FEHIFH 29 155,588,337 -
Pledged time deposits BIRF T HER 29 375,000 382,166
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEE 29 1,093,360,875 1,079,008,484
Total current assets RENEEMRE 7,810,266,712  1,243,325,150
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31 December 2014 —ZE—WNF+=-_/F=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Notes HKS$ HKS$
Htat BT BT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to fellow subsidiaries FENREM B AR 30 123,399,741 -
Due to non-controlling shareholders ENAHE AR Z
of subsidiaries JEPE AR RS ER 31 49,733,993 160,833
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRWBARHER 32 2,103,087,500 -
Trade and bills payables FERE SRR EE 33 8,494,860 6,571,758
Tax payable FEIHEIE 38,912,089 58,849,659
Other payables and accruals HEMEMZIBNETER 34 56,083,055 11,095,205
Customer deposits LY 1,757,151,933 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERITER 35 39,625,000 40,382,165
Total current liabilities BB ERE 4,176,488,171 117,059,620
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFRE 3,633,778,541 1,126,265,530
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BE&EBRRBEE 4,504,125,430  2,231,292,561
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KERZEHBARIBER 32 258,750,000 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SEIRITER 35 665,060,715 -
Deferred tax liabilities R IEAE 36 218,553,199 980,889
Total non-current liabilities EmEBERE 1,142,363,914 980,889
Net assets BEFE 3,361,761,516  2,230,311,672
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners AT EEELER
of the parent
Issued capital BT A 37 551,959,100 461,959,100
Reserves EA 39(a) 2,231,412,030 1,763,270,812
2,783,371,130 2,225,229,912
Non-controlling interests TR ER 578,390,386 5,081,760
Total equity A 3,361,761,516 2,230,311,672
Ji Guirong Zhang Chuanjun
FEH REE
Director Director
EBFE EZE

51



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETERREZER (F8) BRAA

Annual Report 2014
—E-FEFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY R E =B B &*

Year ended 31 December 2014 H#E—T—NE+_A=+—HILtFE

Share

Issued premium

capital account

BE7 B

e wER

Notes HK$ HK$

hist BT AT

At 1 January 2013 n-E-=%-8—H 466,139,700 173,525,782

Profit for the year REEF - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEEPENE

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments, net of tax ~ AIEEHEMRE ¢ ATERE (HIRHIER) - -

Share of other comprehensive income of a joint venture AEEERRZEM R ERE - -

Share of other comprehensive income of associates MEBE AR 2 ENE - -

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BEBNERELVESZE - -

Total comprehensive income for the year TE2HNEEE - -

Transfer to reserve fund BEERER - -

Cancellation of shares repurchased in 2012 HHER B FRE 2 R 37(a) (1,061,600 (1,569,065)

Repurchase of shares EERH 37(b) (3,119,000 (7,480,504)

Deemed disposal of an associate HRALERE AT - -

At 31 December 2013

RZE-—Z#+-A=+-H

461,959,100 164,476,213
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Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z —F—NF+_-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAMEEEGER
Available-
for-sale
Treasury Share investment Exchange

shares option revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained Non-controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity

e

EERH BE REER 9
et ffE et kA et BEan ait EERES EHRE
HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(note 39(a))
(Writ39(a)

(2,630,665) 5,192,877 142,061,816 5,278,662 45,626,173 1,117,422,634  1,952,616,979 5,581,964 1,958,198,943
- - - - - 397,242,208 397,242,208 (566,961) 396,675,247
- - (94,334,930 - - - (94,334,930 - (94,334,930
- - (36,396,187) - - - (36,396,187) - (36,396,187)
- - - - 5,103,684 - 5,103,684 - 5,103,684
- - - - 13,978,397 - 13,978,397 66,757 14,045,154
- - (130,731,117) - 19,082,081 397,242,208 285,593,172 (500,204) 285,092,968
- - - 2,338,684 - (2,338,684) - - -
2,630,665 - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - (10,599,504) - (10,599,504)
- - - - (2,380,735) - (2,380,735) - (2,380,735)
- 5,192,877 11,330,699 7,617,346 62,327,519 1,512,326,158  2,225,229,912 5,081,760 2,230,311,672
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY R E =B B &*

Year ended 31 December 2014 H#E—T—NE+_A=+—HILtFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account
BRT i
A& BER
Notes HKS HKS
hizt B A
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mE—-H—H 461,959,100 164,476,213
Profit for the year REEF - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEEPENE
Changes in fair value of ARHMENREC N TE
available-for-sale investments, 23 (MkHER)
net of tax - -
Share of other comprehensive income AMEBERFZEN2ERE
of associates - -
Exchange differences on translation BEBNFREECERES
of foreign operations - -
Total comprehensive income for the year TERENEEE = -
Transfer to reserve fund BEERER = =
Issue of shares Bk 37() 90,000,000 450,000,000
Share issue expenses BRER 37(c) = (5.396,580)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KENEAR 40 = =
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NE+=A=+—A 551,959,100  609,079,633*
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,231,412,030 (2013: HK$1,763,270,812) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
* ZERBRBREAMER KT OGS FHE2,231,412,030/8 7T (ZF—=4 : 1,763,270,812/87T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZRE R B B R
Year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —ZE—NE+_-_B=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARMEEELER
Available-
for-sale
Share investment Exchange

option revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained Non-controlling Total
reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity

e

BE REEf ExREH
e 1 K 1 BREMN At FERER BREE
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
B -y B A B -y B A
(note 39(a))
(Hiit39(a)

5,192,877 11,330,699 7,617,346 62,327,519 1,512,326,158  2,225,229,912 5,081,760 2,230,311,672
- - - - 27,266,364 27,266,364 (21,319,367) 5,946,997
- 14,478,713 - - - 14,478,713 - 14,478,713
- 5,736,121 - (5,871,406) - (135,285) - (135,285)
- - - (18,071,994) - (18,071,994) 70,276  (18,001,718)
- 20,214,834 - (23,943,400) 27,266,364 23,537,798 (21,249,091) 2,288,707
- - 264,821 - (264,821) - - -
- - - - - 540,000,000 - 540,000,000
- - - - - (5,396,580) - (5,396,580)

= = = = = = 594,557,717 594,557,717

5,192,877  31,545,533* 7,882,167  38,384,119* 1,539,327,701* 2,783,371,130 578,390,386 3,361,761,516
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS & HERE R

Year ended 31 December 2014 #HE_ZF—

ME+=—A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
k3 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHZHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 758 A1 v 1) 6,437,854 477,687,563
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs Eﬁ‘%ﬁﬂi 7 2,837,941 2,936,761
Share of profits and losses of AMEGE AT REEER
a joint venture and associates A28 M R B A 50,203,582 (28,837,523)
Bank interest income SRITF B HA 5 (22,411,971) (17,641,894)
Interest income on a convertible bond EER NG S S Al
issued by an associate & & H 2 FEMA 5 (1,035,517) (1,035,517)
Interest income on loans to associates B E N R E R
Z R B A 5 (716,981) (1,600,364)
Interest income on other receivables ﬁﬁﬂ}ﬂ&ﬁ% K2 A B
5 (1,007,500) (908,830)
Interest income on loans to related ﬁf’% BN AR ER
companies ZFEHA 5 (1,780,305) (1,132,076)
Interest income on a derivative financial  #T4&4¢ @I A 5
instrument WA 5 (313,276) -
Dividend income from an AEHEN EMREZ
available-for-sale listed investment % B A 5 - (867,853)
Net loss/(gain) on deemed disposal of WRABLEBRLSNT
associates FESE(FE) 18(a) (679,121) 7,808,330
Gain on bargain purchase EA g e 40 (169,222,457) -
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE - BREMEZH
property, plant and equipment 18 B 2 5 (300) (52,000)
Depreciation e 6 4,984,972 4,497,133
Amortisation of customer relationship ZE IR 6 190,163 190,163
Recognition of prepaid land lease WREN T ER
payments 6 73,813 74,415
Provision for impairment of trade and ENE SRR REE L
bills receivables BB 6 4,370,756 3,770
Provision for impairment/(recovery) of TEAT R T H A JE AR
prepayments and other receivables RZBERE
(Yzf=l) 6 39,014,543 (13,404)
Impairment of goodwill BEZRE 6 - 4,193,707
Impairment of loans to associates MBS QAR ER
2B 6 68,534,591 19,000,000
Impairment of investments in associates — B& AT ZIRE 7 FHE 6 6,265,371 1,826,000
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE N FLZ 18(d) - (358,423,419)
Fair value loss/(gain) on equity BAFEFAEBRZ K
investment at fair value through & 2 NTFE
profit or loss & (FE) (65,084,500) 2,620,081
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMTHRBENEEZ
investments [E518 20(c) = 37,002,918
Fair value gain of available-for-sale AHEENRE 2 AT
investments (transfer from equity on BFE (RHERH
disposal) R AN) 20(c) = (177,211,944)
Loss on derecognition of BRIPFERAIH SRR 200),
an available-for-sale investment BB 20(d) 24,677,965 2,904,818
Fair value gain of an available-for-sale AIEHENREZ AF
investment (transfer from equity on EFE (REIEER 200a),
derecognition) R e e ) 20(d) (5,267,998) (873,211)
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative PTESRMIEAEZAFE
financial instruments, net B8 (FI8) F8 21 8,565,331 (4,124,612)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &8 HERE R
Year ended 31 December 2014 B2 —ZE—NE+_-_B=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-0mF —E=—=F
Notes HKS$ HK$
iz Er BT
(51,363,044) (31,976,988)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (Em) 114,089 (196,165)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUE 5 BR 3 = HE N (9,231,996) (787,467)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TETERSK - e R EME
other receivables L AR SR B (34,520,892) (48,121,897)
Decrease in trade and bills payables ENE ZERRERR D (1,314,317) (37,243,637)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and  E {th fEf FR 18 K BT & A
accruals 2 CFid) 8,276,590 (7,209,646)
Cash used in operations SBERAZIRS (88,039,570) (125,535,800)
Overseas tax paid 2 AREHNRIE (20,380,634) (39,003,275)
Interest paid BB (2,837,941) (2,871,980)
Net cash flows used in operating activities & EEERA RS RE
SEER (111,258,145) (167,411,055)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZFBH2RERE
Dividends from an available-for-sale REFHHEN FHRE
listed investment 2B = 878,908
Purchases of items of property, BAWE -« BEMRME
plant and equipment B H 13 (2,922,786) (1,711,582)
Additional investment in an associate B N7 2 BBIMEE (8,598,726) -
Advance of loans to associates MEE R RIREER (19,108,280) (57,324,841)
Advance to a related company Bl NG S (18,633,540) -
Repayment of loan from an associate HENBEEER 125,000 382,166
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE MEMREE
property, plant and equipment B FTiS 3R 300 52,000
Net proceeds from disposal of HERMHHERNIRE G
available-for-sale investments IR = 148,725,493
Cash consideration received for disposal of HE N AEEFHERN
an asset classified as held for sale BEMSBHESRE - 56,650,000
Purchase of an equity investment BARRATFETABERES
at fair value through profit or loss e A& = (11,001,081)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B P& 2~ 7 40 (219,286,604) -
Bank interest received BUERTTHILE 20,118,191 17,006,724
Interest received on a convertible bond B UL A B A B EE T 2 7]
issued by an associate BRESH 2 F & 1,035,517 1,035,517
Interest received on loans to associates Bk & D R EFF B 716,981 631,851
Interest received on a derivative financial B W4TESRITERN S
instrument 313,276 -
Refunds of a deposit paid for acquisition RBUEEM T2
of a property vk 6,878,981 33,121,019
Decrease in pledged time deposits B E BTE FOR 4 = 6,369,427
Increase in a time deposit with original SRR E BB R = 1A
maturity of more than three months Rz EBFFIE M
when acquired (155,588,337) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & ESELS (FFA)
activities ZHeREFE (394,950,027) 194,815,601
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MER

2014 2013
—E-QmF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt Er BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METH2RERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT S 3RIE 37(c) 540,000,000 -
Share issue expenses BREAR 37(c) (5,396,580) -
New bank loans FIRITER 39,625,000 25,477,707
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (39,625,000) -
Repayment of advance from BEREHBARZIEE

the non-controlling shareholder of AR AR R 2 B 5%

a subsidiary (157,817) (165,605)
Repurchases of shares EAEl ) 37(b) = (10,599,504)
Net cash flows from financing activities  BEEEHEAZRE RS

HEE 534,445,603 14,712,598
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRRESEEENTFRE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 28,237,431 42,117,144
Cash and cash equivalents at FHZzRERREFE

beginning of year 1,079,008,484 1,024,789,556
Effect of foreign exchange rate sy 0 R gt

changes, net (13,885,040) 12,101,784
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESRBALSEE

AT END OF YEAR 1,093,360,875 1,079,008,484
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRREEEEHRZ

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DT
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITHETF 29 544,855,450 177,701,049
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ EUEEREIHHTE =&

maturity of less than three months Az @I E BRFR

when acquired 29 548,505,425 901,307,435

1,093,360,875 1,079,008,484
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2014 2013
—E-mF —FE—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
oka BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E R 13 25,548,357 26,592,632
Investments in subsidiaries WB AR ZEE 16 870,813,028 744,700,780
Available-for-sale investment A EEREE 20 2,680,300 2,680,300
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 899,041,685 773,973,712
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTRIAR - e REME
receivables I AR FK 26 8,685,766 9,992,165
Due from a subsidiary JE W BT /B8 A B 16 925,873 6,474,000
Cash and cash equivalents RENESLEE 29 370,629,796 10,306,510
Total current assets MENEERE 380,241,435 26,772,675
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Tax payable FERH T T — 13,629,411
Other payables and accruals EMENMZIBNETER 34 16,056,787 8,756,816
Total current liabilities mBAERE 16,056,787 22,386,227
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 364,184,648 4,386,448
Net assets BEFE 1,263,226,333 778,360,160
EQUITY =
Issued capital BT 37 551,959,100 461,959,100
Reserves B 39(b) 711,267,233 316,401,060
Total equity 1B E 1,263,226,333 778,360,160
Ji Guirong Zhang Chuanjun
E3 - REE
Director Director
EBFE EE
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60

CORPORATE INFORMATION

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
activities:

(i) the knitting and textile business;

(i) the trading business (new in 2014); and

(iii) the aero-technology related business, including
the share of profit from the development,
manufacture and distribution of helicopters.

The Group acquired a property development and sale
business on 30 December 2014 which became one of
the Group's principal activities. Further details of the
acquisition are disclosed in note 40 to the financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Aviation Industry
Corporation of China, which is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

DAEER

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
H A 28 T3 BB 12 AR (BB EIZE
RERBREIMEAIZBERR
RAaE i MirERHCanon's Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12,
Bermuda °

FA AEEEBREUTERS

() A N AR EE TS
(i) BHER (ZT—NFHL) &

(i)  MESMAREES  BEIGER
B RUENEHEMES
Z R o

AEER -_FT-—NUFE+-A=1TBYEE
—IE%%%‘%E&%%%?% CRREBRA
FEEBEEXRH 2 — - ARZRBOE
—FRHB BRI MRG0

EZ2RR/ARARBRERAFATE
METEEERQ EJ CRRRBIRFEAR
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™),
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements

and accounting principles generally

also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to
the preparation of financial statements, which for this
financial year and the comparative period continue
to be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), "Accounts and Audit”, which
are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to
that Ordinance. These financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for equity investments, available-for-sale investments
and derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

2.1

31 December 2014 —_E—MF+=-_A=+—H

mELE A

R BHRERDBERESSHMAE ([F
BEITMAE]) BHh2EBMBRSE
R ([EAMBHREEN]D (EPBIE
2EHBAMBREER - BASFER
(TBEAZTER]) RE) REALE
FAZEHRANGE - XBBHRERNTE
TEBRAMEH B @M BRERER 2 E
AOERER  BERHIIRESLFIE
Bl (556228 ) BHR115B76 2 87IFIEXA
BRAFOE IR B KRBT MBEM RIR
BLZHRNRTE N BRERATBF
J& R Lt 8 HA o 48 4B 3% i A BRI (8832
B)MBATMELKRE AMBHRER
BREELRAEREE - ERAIEE - Al
FENRERTEEBT AR (AR
TEFE) AMBREABTEY (B
EREHRA) o

mEE%E
BAMBRRBESATRENBEAR
(5578 (%8 ) BE-F-—m&E+— A
S+-ALFEZHBHRE - HELF
RIEF 4% BIR 2 B 5 Rk TR A A
AA-HZ EHEERE - HWBARE
Ty A R B E HEE R R AR
A BERERRN - X —BEHAEEZIH
BRIEERLL -

61



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETERREZER (F8) BRAA
Annual Report 2014

—ZT—FEER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt st

31 December 2014 —ZE—WF+_-_A=+—H

2.1

62

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

2.1
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standar

and new interpretation for the first time for the current

year's financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS  Investment Entities
10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27 (2011)

31 December 2014 —ZE—N4&+_-A=+—H

22 BRBRREHEZESH

AEBCRAFENP BRI P E XK
AT BT ERI AT 2R -

ds

EAMBRELAEI0% . KETE
BEYBREENE12RR
BEGHEAETHR
(Z5——5) B3]

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and BEGHEAENRNBE  HAHTFELER
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities ABEE

Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and ERGEANERMBE FELIAR
HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge Accounting eI E

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies B8 (ARVBREREEE #F

g)-RRENR

Amendments to Definition of Vesting Condition’ BEMBRERNENRN  BEAMNTE
HKFRS 2 included in il (W A=F-F£Z
Annual Improvements ZE-CEEENER
2010-2012 Cycle )

Amendments to Accounting for Contingent BENBREENEINRG  ZEEHANEY
HKFRS 3 included in Consideration in a Business Bil (WA\-F-F£F B EE
Annual Improvements ~ Combination’ ZE-CEFENEE
2010-2012 Cycle H#)

Amendments to Short-term Receivables and Payables ERUBRSENE1IRG  EHEUEREN
HKFRS 13 included in il (BA—F-F4£F HE
Annual Improvements ZECFEENTE
2010-2012 Cycle )

Amendments to Meaning of Effective HKFRSs BERBRERNE IR AUBBYEHEEY
HKFRS 1 included in il (BA—F—#F 5%

Annual Improvements ZE-CEEHEE
2011-2013 Cycle )
1 Effective from 1 July 2014 1 B-ZT—WFELA—HEK

63



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

HEMETREBER (F8) BRAT _
Annual Report 2014 i b
—Z-MFEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt st
31 December 2014 —ZE—F+_-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES (continued)

B BRRRKE2ED (&)

64

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 1 which are only

relevant to an entity’s first HKFRS financial statements,

BT EBWEREELF1IRNETEHR
ERZENBEAMBRE LT HRE

the nature and the impact of each amendment and I FEETAREZHEREE

interpretation is described below: LURNiS U

(@)  Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition (a) BEVERELELFE105MERT
of an investment entity and provide an exception BREEBEE EE  LAFA
to the consolidation requirement for entities REEBTECERREERR2E
that meet the definition of an investment entity. AEAR - BEEBAENZATEAE

Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss
rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set
out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The amendments have had no impact on
the Group as the Company does not qualify as an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify
the application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS
32 to settlement systems (such as central clearing
house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group does not have any offsetting
arrangement.

>

SEABEZHMBARIAR M3k
FTLARE - BEVHHRELAE
125 RBEB G ERFE275 (=
T——F) BELBEB - B
IS RS A E 1255 IS ET IR
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RARWIEBE BB RELRE
10FTREZ AR EEE
MZSETEHASETELE -

BB ERIFEI2RMERT RE
HYBEERMBAEERBIR
AIAB QAR TR TR ]
2R - ZFEANEE R
R RSB 3258 2 IR AR LE T
AREEZESR (Flnh REF R
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(0

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception
to the requirement of discontinuing hedge
accounting in situations where over-the-counter
derivatives designated in hedging relationships
are directly or indirectly, novated to a central
counterparty as a consequence of laws or
regulations, or the introduction of laws or
regulations. For continuance of hedge accounting
under this exception, all of the following criteria
must be met: (i) the novations must arise as
a consequence of laws or regulations, or the
introduction of laws or regulations; (ii) the parties
to the hedging instrument agree that one or
more clearing counterparties replace their original
counterparty to become the new counterparty
to each of the parties; and (iii) the novations do
not result in changes to the terms of the original
derivative other than changes directly attributable
to the change in counterparty to achieve
clearing. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group as the Group has not novated any
derivatives during the current and prior years.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 clarifies that an entity recognises
a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation,
occurs. The interpretation also clarifies that a levy
liability is accrued progressively only if the activity
that triggers payment occurs over a period of
time, in accordance with the relevant legislation.
For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a
minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies
that no liability should be recognised before the
specified minimum threshold is reached. The
interpretation has had no impact on the Group as
the Group applied, in prior years, the recognition
principles under HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets which for the
levies incurred by the Group are consistent with
the requirements of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21.

22 EBRBREHEZSH (&)

(@)

BB ERIFE395R N IEFT 51 B3
FUEBISOER - 25l ASEHIE0A
B BEREHBEERTAEEZ
BAMTETAERKERNER
RIBXZFHFE  KILH+HE
FHREZPISMER - BRR B RABI
SMER T F B E R SR G EHAN
5 OMATENUTAAEEL ()
BRVAREIIER - HaIA
EBISORRAT SR (NE T A
METRNIHE —BHEREER
SHFRREREXZETF K
RETRTOHZBEF + Kiii)
FRTEEYRAMET A ZIK
REIREH - ERETEEME
XU FAEZSIBNEF R
Sh o IR ARBRAFE LBE
FEIEFHEATETR &
REEAHAKEL BT E -

5% (BB EREREBEZE
g)-REENREBNSIEN
R BB LR (HMEREG T
MR BERARRHUEST R
BAREEHERTENSIZHMER
RSB ER A —BEME
RIE AR REBIE 0 Rt o BLEE
REBEEAMSIBNEENS -
ZEREBEESREINETERER
BEAT BT ERREMEMT - A
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SHERFIVHEE AABE
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RAEBMABEZHEMNS &
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ZEE)-REF2IRNZKREME
B MZERREAEETEY
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

66

(e)

The HKFRS 2 Amendments clarify various issues
relating to the definitions of performance and
service conditions which are vesting conditions,
including (i) a performance condition must
contain a service condition; (ii) a performance
target must be met while the counterparty is
rendering service; (iii) a performance target may
relate to the operations or activities of an entity,
or to those of another entity in the same group;
(iv) a performance condition may be a market or
non-market condition; and (v) if the counterparty,
regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service
during the vesting period, the service condition
is not satisfied. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 3 Amendments clarify that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a
business combination that are not classified as
equity should be subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss whether or not they
fall within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendments clarify that short-
term receivables and payables with no stated
interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts
when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group.

22 EBRBRREHEZSH (&)
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets
10 and HKAS 28 (2011)  between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS  Investment Entities:
10, HKFRS 12 and Applying the Consolidation
HKFRS 28 (2011) Exception?

Amendments to HKFRS  Accounting for Acquisitions of

11 Interests in Joint Operations?
HKFRS 14 Requlatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions®

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
(2011) Statements?

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2010-2012 Cycle HKFRSs!

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2011-2013 Cycle HKFRSs'

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs?
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

° Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016
and therefore is not applicable to the Group

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of the impact of these
changes.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group expects
that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. Further information about the impact
will be available nearer the implementation date of the
standard.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant principles for business combinations in HKFRS
3. The amendments also clarify that a previously held
interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the
acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a
scope exclusion has been added to HKFRS 11 to specify
that the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are
under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of
the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will
apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is currently assessing
the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated
from operating business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed
through the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has
not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Except for those described in note
2.2, the Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2015. None of the amendments are expected to
have a significant financial impact on the Group. Details
of the amendment most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including
a brief description of operating segments that have
been aggregated and the economic characteristics
used to assess whether the segments are similar. The
amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of segment
assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating
decision maker.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(0) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and the joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or the joint
venture is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or the joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

The results of associates and the joint venture are
included in the Company's statement of profit or loss
to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’s investments in associates and the joint
venture are treated as non-current assets and are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

N,

BEATREGERNRAZRE (&)

GEATRA BT AR K RE

RRARRBERFIRBLERRZHEMN
FEMENE BB IE MR A AERUE DR E
BRI -

TEEHREE
EBEHTIUNBEEAK BB ZNE
AW EES s A FENE RV E
RARBMREBREENKERH 2T
B NEERERET 2R ARSE
ZBIME - RARERBRER T 2
MmET 2 Az 2 B - REE
BOth - REBIEEUQFENEGE BT
WS ABBEEFE LS - FFER
WET 2 R s (BREZHER
fEm BT RBEARMNEETEER
BB P DEEEFE) - JFERER
ZHBEMEOBH AR FEE - WiE
XA EER S -

AEEBRBEBHERESOGR R
YiE B8 2 OB IR E M ARRR R - FEE
KEEZWHEERAGE  MMEFHAE
PEEER ERERUREEINE
BRFIERANITETADRE -

HEB A DB BUETT - R AR
NHEWERB A FEENRAE UFE
BB R ELE ZERAE -



2.4

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMEITXEBER (F8) ERATF

Annual Report 2014
ZE-FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &t

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS
39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments
and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

80

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the lease terms
10% - 20%
20% — 33%
20% - 25%

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost of properties under development
comprises cost of acquisition, land cost, construction
costs, development costs, capitalised borrowing costs
and other direct costs attributable to the development.
The land cost is recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease term. Impairment is assessed by the directors
based on prevailing market prices, on an individual
property basis.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 6 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. When the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include the financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging

instruments as defined by HKAS 39.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gain
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in other operating expenses for loans and
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities and a financial asset
under Project EC120 as set out in notes 20 and
19, respectively, to the financial statements. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other operating expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of other income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through the
statement of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in
fair value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include an amount due
to a fellow subsidiary, loans from fellow subsidiaries,
trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, and amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury
shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity
through the setting up of a treasury shares reserve. No
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between
the carrying amount and the consideration is recognised
in equity. Upon the cancellation of the treasury shares,
the relevant portion of the balances in the treasury
shares reserve will be transferred to the issued capital
and the share premium account.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions would be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it was recognised as income on a systemic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods and properties, when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods
and properties sold;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 BAES:HREHE (£)

100

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the Group’s
right to receive its share of profit from Project
EC120 has been established (note 719);

(c) from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were
granted. The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The liability is measured at the end of each
reporting period up to and including the settlement
date, with changes in fair value recognised in the
Group's statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme being effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution provident fund for
those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the fund. This fund operated in a
way similar to the MPF Scheme, except that when
an employee left the fund prior to his/her interest
in the Group’s employer contributions vesting fully,
the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
were reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. Upon the implementation of the MPF
December 2000, the
provident fund was frozen and no further contributions

Scheme with effect from 1

by the Group or the eligible employees were made after
that date. When eligible employees leave the Group,
they receive their entitlements pursuant to the existing
rules of this fund.
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2.4

104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint venture and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification of equity investments among
investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
and an investment in a joint venture

In determining whether an equity investment is classified
as investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
and an investment in a joint venture, the Group
considers a number of factors including (1) whether the
Group has the power to exercise control; (2) whether the
Group can exercise significant influence; and (3) whether
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control
is required for the relevant activities of the investee

company.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group’s unrecognised tax losses was approximately
HK$15,456,000 (2013: HK$15,456,000). Further details
are included in note 36 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. They are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group and
the Company have to consider various factors, such as
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and
tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group and the Company with similar assets that are
used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made
if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each financial year based
on changes in circumstances. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company’s property, plant and
equipment at 31 December 2014 were HK$41,297,027
(2013: HK$43,606,420) and HK$25,548,357 (2013:
HK$26,592,632), respectively. Further details are
included in note 13 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and
deposits and other receivables

The Group and the Company maintain an allowance
for estimated losses arising from the inability of the
customers or borrowers to make the required payments.
The Group and the Company make the estimates
based on the ageing of trade and bills receivables and
deposits and other receivable balances, customers’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of the customers or borrowers
was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group and the
Company would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance and the future results would be
affected. The carrying amounts of the Group's trade
and bills receivables and deposits and other receivables
as at 31 December 2014 were HK$19,378,421
(2013: HK$14,862,874) and HK$71,070,341 (2013:
HK$69,117,764),
of the Company’s deposits and other receivables was
HK$7,286,325 (2013: HK$6,883,373). The Company
did not have any trade and bills receivables. Further

respectively. The carrying amount

details are included in notes 24 and 26 to the financial
statements.

Estimation of recoverable amounts of properties
under development

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including recent prices of similar properties in
the same location and condition, with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
date of transactions that occurred at those prices.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of total budgeted costs and costs to
completion for properties under development

Total budgeted costs for properties under development
(ii) building
costs; and (iii) any other direct costs attributable to

comprise (i) prepaid land lease payments;
the development of the properties. In estimating the
total budgeted costs for properties under development,
management makes reference to information such as (i)
current offers from contractors and suppliers; (ii) recent
offers agreed with contractors and suppliers; and (iii)
professional estimation on construction and material
costs.

Land appreciation tax

Under the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of
Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains
arising from the transfer of real estate properties
in Mainland China with effect from 1 January 1994
are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Land appreciation tax (continued)

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the
property development business in Mainland China
are subject to LAT. However, the implementation of
LAT varies amongst various Mainland China cities and
the Group has not finalised certain of its LAT returns
with various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based
on management’s best estimates. When the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
on the income tax and provisions of LAT in the period in
which such determination is made.
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4.

114

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three (2013: two) reportable operating segments as
follows:

(a) the knitting and textile business segment engages
in the production and distribution of knitting and
textile products, knitted fabrics and clothing;

(b) the trading business segment engages in the
trading of raw materials and auxiliary materials
(new in 2014); and

(0) the aero-technology related business segment
engages in the share of profit from the
development, manufacture and distribution of
helicopters.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure
of adjusted profit/(loss) for the year. The adjusted profit/
(loss) for the year is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit for the year except that certain income
and gains or losses relating to investments in a joint
venture and associates and financial instruments, as
well as head office and corporate expenses (including
impairment of goodwill, impairment of loans to
associates and impairment of an investment in an
associate) and unallocated income tax are excluded from
such measurement.

«(M/'\ﬁgﬁﬂ

REEME  AERREQEREE S
HEBSEL WEAT=F(ZF—=
F WA AEmMoLEDE

(a) HHEERHOBEHEDE  EEHE
Kk - SHAEEHRRENE

RoyeH
by EBESZEBIE LERMHR
WM ZES (ZF—HFEH

") R

(0 MEMABBEHDE - DEK
BEtHEE  BUERKHMEL
Z R o

EEESIHAERAERER 2%
& U BRA R RKRBRFHAEED
RE - PBPRADBEFALAR S
(&R MEtEZ A 2%2EEF
(B1R) RIELFTH - FRLERAREF
(B18) 2atE2F X B ARE B AF i F
— - EETFWAMESE QT ML
rElkem T AZIRERB R EE
B URBREEMCERY (BER
B2 RE - REE R RRENERZR
BEARBERARZIREZRE) MAD
BB AT RIERZATEF -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REHWER (&)
(continued)
Knitting and Aero-technology
textile business Trading business related business Total
SERGEES B5%% ﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ%iﬁ EH
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

—B-mE -I-=F ZE-MmF -T-=F ZB-MF -T--Ff ZEZ-mF —T-=F
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FAT FET FET

Segment revenue: A :

Sales to external customers NPEFHE 53,413 47,979 17,483 - - - 70,856 47,979
Segment results PHEE (43,509) (1,157) 2,987 - - - (40,522) (1,157)
Reconciliation: Eoir
Unallocated other income and gain &2 EEE A K F1E 21,261 27,273
Corporate and other unallocated ¥ REMKAEES

expenses (131,201) (67,459)
Net gain/(loss) on deemed disposal of #i8 AL ERL AT 2 EHE /

associates (518) 679 (7,808)
Gain on bargain purchase SEMERE 169,222 -
Gain on disposal of associates HEBENTZFIE - 358,423
Share of profits and losses of: AEEFIRER -

Joint venture ABAT (21,251) 60,839

Associates YN (28,953)  (32,001)

Fair value gain/(loss) on equity BATEFHABE REEE L
investment at fair value through ATERR/ (BR)

profit or loss 65,085 (2,620)
Loss on disposal of HETHRIENREZER
available-for-sale investments - (37,003)

Fair value gain of available-for-sale AN EMRE 2 ATFEFE
investments (transfer from equity (A ERfERE L)

on disposal) - 177,212
Loss on derecognition of RILBRAHEHENREZ
an available-for-sale investment Ei (24,678) (2,905)

Fair value gain of an available-for-sale [t EMHRE 2 ATERNE
investment (transfer from equity (REIRTREEREA)

on derecognition) 5,268 873
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative T4 2B T E2 ATERNE,/
financial instruments, net (BB) 38 (8,565) 4125
Unallocated income tax expense FARAEHAR (398)  (81,117)
Profit for the year RERF 5,947 396,675
Other segment information: HiAHER :
Bank interest income FATHERA 7 106 4,146 - - - 4,153 106
Unallocated bank interest income ~ AAEFTFIEUA 18,259 17,536
22,412 17,642
Depreciation and amortisation FERZH (2,947) (2,588) (165) - - - (3,112) (2,588)
Unallocated depreciation and RALNEREH
amortisation (2,063) (2,099)
(5,175) (4,687)
Finance costs BBREY (2,838) (2,937) - - - - (2,838) (2,937)
Provision for impairment of trade ~ EMEZSEFRELE ZHE
and bills receivables B (4,371) (4) = - = - (4,371) 4)
Recovery/(provision for impairment) (% 308 U BR 7 2 M
of prepayments and other B/ (FE%E)
receivables (37,752) 13 - - - - (37,752) 13
Unallocated provision for impairment - &7 fit 2 15 508 kA JE IR
of prepayments and other BRZRERE
receivables (1,263) -
(39,015) 13
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Rasmas (&)

Geographical information wEER
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a) KEIHNBEF Kz
2014 2013
—E-NF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Mainland China B Ay 70,856 47,979

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

P WEERTIREBEP Z AL E

ZR

(b) FRBHEE

2014 2013

—E2-mEF —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Hong Kong HE 256,840 277,366
Mainland China R it 347,613 373,255
604,453 650,621

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and loans to related
companies.

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately HK$22,970,000 (2013:
HK$30,370,000) was derived from sales by the knitting
and textile business segment to two (2013: four) single
customers, and approximately HK$17,443,000 (2013:
Nil) was derived from sales by the trading business
segment to one (2013: Nil) single customer.

FHERBEEER IR EEZ AL
gl WABREERMIARABEARQR
TET/\E"]E/T/\O

FEEFZER

#922,970,000% T (= T — = F:
30,370,000/ L) 2 W= TR 8 # 4 Rk
NEEBSBEME (ZE—=F: 1
H) B ZHEE - K#17,443,000% 7T
TE=F @) z2WEHIREESE
BoHE—% (ZT—=F: TR) BF
ZHE o



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMEITXEBER (F8) ERATF

Annual Report 2014

BN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &t
31 December 2014 —ZE—WNF+=-_/F=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances

for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gain is as

8-

Wi~ HaW AR A E

Wt (MAARKEZZXE) HiEDEER
i (BIRERERESIMN) RZERF

Yeak ~ WA RFBEIFOT

follows:
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue g
Sale of knitting and textile products HEITR M EE T 53,412,671 47,978,864
Trading of raw materials and R REE R 2 B 5
auxiliary materials 17,443,480 -
70,856,151 47,978,864
Other income Hig A
Bank interest income RITHBUA 22,411,971 17,641,894
Interest income on a convertible bond  FEEE AN B)EETT 2 AR
issued by an associate A& f&E 5 2 R B U A 1,035,517 1,035,517
Interest income on a derivative FTESFTTAZ AW A
financial instrument 313,276 -
Interest income on loans to associates  [AEt&E A FIRENE R Z
MEMA 716,981 1,600,364
Interest income on other receivables Hi AR 2 B A 1,007,500 908,830
Interest income on loans to MEEARRENERZ
related companies FEHA 1,780,305 1,132,076
Dividend income from an available-for- A[{tHER FHRE 2
sale listed investment A% 2 A — 867,853
Agency service income RIZRB U A - 2,229,448
Government grant* R HB & 26,058 1,910,828
Others HAh 154,445 92,342
27,446,053 27,419,152
Gain F5E
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE HEMBHEIER 2
plant and equipment FE 300 52,000
27,446,353 27,471,152

* This represents subsidies from municipal government in *

Mainland China. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these subsidiaries.

IR BN T BRA#EE) - ZEH
B AR R B R I
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. B Bt A% A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBEBZBBEND G S (5FA) -
(crediting):
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=fF
Notes HK$ HK$
Wit BT BT
Cost of goods sold EMHEE 2R 65,032,691 42,759,878
Depreciation e 13 4,984,972 4,497,133
Amortisation of customer BPBER 2 EE
relationship 15 190,163 190,163
Minimum lease payments under THIREFELERN 2
operating leases on land and HEHE
buildings 5,324,849 1,998,281
Recognition of prepaid land lease  #RFEN + A ER
payments 14 73,813 74,415
Employee benefit expense (excluding EEBE@FER (TB#EE
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): =M€ (#7:28)) ¢
Wages and salaries ITERFS 17,096,420 15,912,867
Pension scheme contributions* RIRE T &I R 230,486 204,377
17,326,906 16,117,244
Other operating expenses, net: Hah R F5m
Impairment of goodwill HEZRE - 4,193,707
Impairment of loans to associates A E N R IRENER
Z R ME 18 68,534,591 19,000,000
Impairment of investments g RNAlZREZIRE
in associates 18(b) 6,265,371 1,826,000
Provision for impairment of trade JEWE FHRIENERE 2
and bills receivables TRE R 24 4,370,756 3,770
Provision for impairment/ A< BRI B E A FE U AR
(recovery) of prepayments and RRMEEE
other receivables (Yel) 26 39,014,543 (13,404)
118,185,261 25,010,073
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN & 2,240,000 1,909,000
Foreign exchange differences, net 4N 5 16 2 585 48 (247,428) 434,893
* At 31 December 2014, the Group had no forfeited * R-TE—NE+=-A=+—H ~&EH
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the A AE ] B8 WA AT BE R R K
pension scheme in future years (2013: Nil). FEZRAKSFHEER(ZZE—=F:

)
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FINANCE COSTS 7. HIBEX
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —F-=F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable B RFREILEE ZRIT
within five years exorE 2,837,941 2,936,761

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEXEM=e
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant RIEEBBAERSIMABERAAES LT
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The BA([ EmREN) REBRGIGD (F
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing 622F) [R11E7851 (Z2EREE AR
Rules”) and section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong 166 ($£328) F1611§) WEZ AFE
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to HEMemT
section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-MmF —F—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Fees BE 840,000 842,613
Other emoluments: Hibhe -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R EREYAE
in kind 8,486,516 4,319,627
Performance related bonuses TYERIVMABIEAT 1,790,000 939,990
Pension scheme contributions BIREFTEIHER 274,477 274,477
10,550,993 5,534,094
11,390,993 6,376,707
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEME (&)
(a) Independent Non-executive Directors () BIUFFITES
The fees paid to Independent Non-executive RERNEZRNTEIIFATESZ
Directors during the year were as follows: WemT
2014 2013
—E-ImF —ET—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Chu Yu Lin, David Fl 240,000 240,000
Li Ka Fai, David FRIE 240,000 240,000
Li Zhaoxi FIKER 60,000 60,000
540,000 540,000

120

There were no other emoluments payable to the

Independent Non-executive Directors during the

year (2013: Nil).

RERNTEEMENSFTBLIE
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEMeE (&)
(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) HITEER—BRIHPITES
Director
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
a5 R 41 Eike
REY THERR BE e
e Pk HE#EA "3 @
2014 HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
—E-ME B B BT B B
Executive Directors: HITES
Wu Guangquan RfHE 36,000 - - - 36,000
Pan Linwu B 36,000 - - - 36,000
You Lei mE 36,000 - - - 36,000
Ji Guirong FEH 36,000 6,998,980 750,000 219,000 8,003,980
Zhang Chuanjun REE 36,000 1,487,536 1,040,000 55,477 2,619,013
180,000 8,486,516 1,790,000 274,477 10,730,993
Non-executive Director: FHTEE
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond EEs 120,000 = = — 120,000
300,000 8,486,516 1,790,000 274,477 10,850,993
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM<E (&)

(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) HITEER—BIHITEE
Director (continued) (&)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
Ea =1l Rike
REY TERR 8l S
e Fl& TR 5% B
2013 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
—ZT-=F ET BT BT BT BT
Executive Directors: HITES .
Wu Guangquan RfHE 36,000 - - - 36,000
Pan Linwu AR 36,000 - - - 36,000
You Lei miE 33,387 - - - 33,387
Ji Guirong - 36,000 3,559,667 750,000 219,000 4,564,667
Zhang Chuanjun REE 36,000 759,960 189,990 55,477 1,041,427
Jiang Wei 3 2,613 - - - 2,613
Liu Rongchun 2% E 2,613 - - - 2,613
182,613 4,319,627 939,990 274,477 5,716,707
Non-executive Director: FHTES:
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond e 120,000 - - - 120,000
302,613 4,319,627 939,990 274,477 5,836,707
There was no arrangement under which a director FRLEEMALZHBEESTHELRE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the WEARE -
year.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees included two (2013:
two) executive directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining three (2013: three) highest
paid employees who are not a director of the Company
are as follows:

31 December 2014 —_E—MF+=-_A=+—H

LEERAEFES

4B FREERERE (22—
FWE) NTEE BEWE 25
AN EXHEs HB=% (T —
FZR)AFEROTHESRIZW
SHEBEMT :

o |

Group

AEEH
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=fF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT

Basic salaries, allowances EXFS - 2K

and benefits in kind =S 2,461,920 2,359,000
Pension scheme contributions RIKESEHEIME R 115,334 83,210
Performance related bonuses TERIBIEBIEA 2,858,800 2,650,000
5,436,054 5,092,210

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

MeETIHBErZaFFEEREEH
B :

follows:
Number of employees
EEHE
2014 2013
—F-mF —E-=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8L E
1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 L E
3,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 LE
3,500,000/ 7T 1 1
3 3
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10.

124

INCOME TAX 10. FriEHL

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made MR AEBAFALTBEMRREEZ
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits JFERRBE & A - A0 AR I B N 45 A
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2013: Nil). Taxes B(ZE—=F : 8) - L@ EF
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at B Az BRIEFM T RN B FTEE
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in R/EERINER HRAHE -

which the Group operates.

Group

AEEH
2014 2013
= —T=F
HK$ HK$
B BT

Current — Elsewhere: BVER — E b [

Charge for the year NEFRL 613,708 74,250,284
Underprovision in prior years BRAFEZ VIREBE - 6,884,883
Deferred (note 36) BT (H17236) (122,851) (122,851)
Total tax charge for the year RERIAR S BEE 490,857 81,012,316
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INCOME TAX (continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge for the
year at the effective rate is as follows:

31 December 2014 —_E—MF+=-_A=+—H

Frig® (&)
BARRRETENBRARMERR
BRI AT R R EEARERBA
A RIE HERNFRERT R 2
X2 HERMT

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —E-=F
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Profit before tax B BT & 6,437,854 477,687,563
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEATEMERAE 2 1A (11,425,742) 69,271,954
Adjustment of current tax in respect of BT BARS BN EARIIE 2 %
previous periods - 6,884,883
Profits and losses attributable to a joint HE&E ARG REL NG
venture and associates = & EE 12,820,158 (7,519,822)
Income not subject to tax BAGMBUA (45,099,853) (2,753,289)
Expenses not deductible for tax TEMF AL 44,196,294 15,128,590
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate AN EEEERENET7.6%
of 7.6% (2013: 17.0%) (Z2—=F:17.0%)
HERHIBRY 490,857 81,012,316

Share of tax charge attributable to a joint venture and
associates of HK$917,164 (2013: HK$24,632,604) and
HK$3,836,383 (2013: HK$5,373,180), respectively,
is included in “Share of profits and losses of a joint
venture and associates” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

DEEERAIRBERRZHERAX
Sl B917,1648 L (ZF — = F:
24,632,6047% JT) 3,836,383/ L (=
T— =4 :5373,180/87L) Bt AZE
BREXRZ[DIEEERARBERRZ
wm A R EE] A e
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11.

12.

126

mE+=—A=+—H

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
parent for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes
a loss of HK$49,737,247 (2013: HK$33,626,986) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 39(b)).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent of HK$27,266,364
(2013: HK$397,242,208) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 4,626,988,260 (2013:
4,633,915,385) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 in respect of a dilution as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during those years.

11.

12.

BRBREEEMLET

BzE_2—-NmW&F+_-_A=+—81
FEZERRAIMBEREGEE B
FBERARARVBREME 2
&5 849,737,247 L (Z & — = & :
33,626,986/ 7L) (A1a£39(b)) -

BRARERESSAEARGER
&7

BREARFCEDNRETARLR
ﬁéﬁhﬁ/\@15$¢mﬂ27,266,364
Ea(ZE — = ¢ : 397,242,208
) RFANBETE J&ZW&J‘J’J
#4,626,988,2600% (= & — =
4,633,915,3850%) 55 -

AEERBE_FT-—HFR-_FT—=F
TZHAH=1+— ElJJ:ﬁEI?ﬂ%EHﬁ/%E
BEYEZOBRTEAR  ARdES
RZEFEERIEBREARRNSREIEL
BRAME 2% -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. V¥ BWEMNRE
Group
AEE
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
TR BER & £E
BF Has ke RE &t
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
31 December 2014 —E-ME+ZA=+-H
At 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=%F
1 January 2014: +ZA=+t-HK
—T-mE-A-R:
Cost (%N 34,881,223 12,563,213 3,442,707 10,653,451 61,540,594
Accumulated depreciation  ZIEITE (5,637,938) (2,989,190) (3,086,997) (6,220,049) (17,934,174)
Net carrying amount SREFE 29203285 9574023 355710 4,433,402 43,606,420
At 1 January 2014, RZZE-ME—A—1 "
net of accumulated NKREENE
depreciation 29,243,285 9,574,023 355,710 4,433,402 43,606,420
Additions NE - - 1,723,717 1,199,069 2,922,786
Acquisition of subsidiaries  YiBEH B A A
(note 40) (fz40) - - 1,363 = 1,363
Depreciation provided FRMERE
during the year (note 6) (f1i#6) (1,040,612) (1,686,575) (351,718)  (1,906,067) (4,984,972)
Exchange realignment I A% (53,344) (155,839) (3,907) (35,480) (248,570)
At 31 December 2014, RZZ—MF
net of accumulated +ZR=1t—8"
depreciation Nk 2ENE 28,149,329 7,731,609 1,725,165 3,690,924 41,297,027
At 31 December 2014: N-T-—mE
+-A=+-8:
Cost D% 34,782,114 12,227,997 5,160,327 11,695,859 63,866,297
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (6,632,785) (4,496,388) (3,435,162) (8,004,935) (22,569,270)
Net carrying amount REFE 28,149,329 7,731,609 1,725,165 3,690,924 41,297,027
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BEMXE (&)
(continued)

Group (continued)

rEE (&)

Furniture,
Land and Plant and  fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery  equipment vehicles Total
TR BEE Bi-%£EB
BF e RSt RE At
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
31 December 2013 —E-=F+-f=+-H
At 1 January 2013: RZE-=%—R—1:
Cost XA 34,782,114 11,623,957 3,285,926 9,875,163 59,567,160
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (4,549,015)  (2,073,370)  (2,706,706)  (4,150,829) (13,479,920)
Net carrying amount EEFE 30,233,099 9,550,587 579,220 5,724,334 46,087,240
At 1 January 2013, RZZT—=%—H—H"
net of accumulated NREENE
depreciation 30,233,099 9,550,587 579,220 5,724,334 46,087,240
Additions NE - 615,583 142,826 953,173 1,711,582
Depreciation provided during FRTERE
the year (note 6) (Krite) (1,049,074) (758,930) (372,051)  (2,317,078) (4,497,133
Exchange realignment [ 5 % 59,260 166,783 5,715 72,973 304,731
At 31 December 2013, RZB—=F
net of accumulated +ZR=t—-H"
depreciation Nk 2ENE 29,243,285 9,574,023 355,710 4,433,402 43,606,420
At 31 December 2013: NZE—=%F
+-A=+-8:
Cost XA 34,881,223 12,563,213 3,442,707 10,653,451 61,540,594
Accumulated depreciation  RiEHE (5,637,938)  (2,989,190)  (3,086,997)  (6,220,049) (17,934,174)
Net carrying amount SR FE 29243285 9574023 355710 4,433,402 43,606,420
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BWEMRE (&)
(continued)
Company
FN/NE|
Furniture,
Land and  fixtures and Motor
building equipment vehicles Total
TR B £E
EF k&% AE Chl
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B B
31 December 2014 —E-mE+ZRA=1+-H
At 31 December 2013 and R-ZZ-=%+-A=+—H
1 January 2014: kZE-NF-A—-R:
Cost B R 30,350,000 2,872,789 1,586,673 34,809,462
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (4,985,714) (2,834,448) (396,668)  (8,216,830)
Net carrying amount REFE 25,364,286 38,341 1,190,005 26,592,632
At 1 January 2014, RZE-MFE—A—1 "
net of accumulated Nk ERTE
depreciation 25,364,286 38,341 1,190,005 26,592,632
Additions NE - 152,912 - 152,912
Depreciation provided during FRITERE
the year (757,143) (43,376) (396,668) (1,197,187)
At 31 December 2014, RO
net of accumulated +-A=+—-8"
depreciation NGEERE 24,607,143 147,877 793,337 25,548,357
At 31 December 2014: R-E-MNE+=-RA=+—8:
Cost AR 30,350,000 3,019,436 1,586,673 34,956,109
Accumulated depreciation ZFEME (5,742,857) (2,871,559) (793,336)  (9,407,752)
Net carrying amount RHEFE 24,607,143 147,877 793,337 25,548,357
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BEMXE (&)
(continued)

Company (continued)
KRAT (&)

Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
building equipment vehicles Total
Tk B EE
BT pE gk G
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS$
AT BT BT BT
31 December 2013 ZE-ZF+ZRA=1+-H
At 1 January 2013: RZE—=%—A—1:
Cost B AR 30,350,000 2,843,423 965,047 34,158,470
Accumulated depreciation ZRAE (4,228,572) (2,572,557) (331,547) (7,132,676)
Net carrying amount FEFE 26,121,428 270,866 633,500 27,025,794
At 1 January 2013, RZZT—=%—H—H"
net of accumulated Nk Z2EFTE
depreciation 26,121,428 270,866 633,500 27,025,794
Additions NE - 29,366 953,173 982,539
Depreciation provided during ~ ERXFTERE
the year (757,142) (261,891) (396,668) (1,415,701)
At 31 December 2013, RZE—=%F
net of accumulated +-RA=+—8"
depreciation Nk 2ETE 25,364,286 38,341 1,190,005 26,592,632
At 31 December 2013: RZZE-=%+-F=+—-8:
Cost B AR 30,350,000 2,872,789 1,586,673 34,809,462
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (4,985,714)  (2,834,448) (396,668)  (8,216,830)
Net carrying amount EEFE 25,364,286 38,341 1,190,005 26,592,632
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BEMNRE (&)
(continued)
An analysis of the lease terms of the Group's and the REBRAQRZ Lib REFHEON
Company'’s land and buildings is as follows: LU
Group Company
rEH b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-mFE _—ZT—= —E-mNE —T-—=fF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET BT BT BT
Net carrying amount, BREVFE - R
located in:

Hong Kong, held under BB 0 P HHE

a medium term lease HOES¥E] 24,607,143 25,364,286 24,607,143 25,364,286
Mainland China, held under FE X - &
a long term lease A E 3,542,186 3,878,999 = -

28,149,329 29,243,285 24,607,143 25,364,286

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s building located RZE—NNF+=—A=+—H" KA
in Mainland China with net book value of HK$3,542,186 7 {83,542,186/8 L (— & — =

(2013: HK$3,878,999) was pledged to secure general 3,878,999 7L) 2 AREBA R B A
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 35(a)(i)). ZEFEEER  ERAKE—RIRIT

SRR (B6E35(a)0))
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14.

132

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. ENMTHBAER
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HKS HK$
B o
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEHEE 3,140,054 3,178,592
Exchange realignment PEE 54, A 28 (34,684) 35,877
Recognised during the year (note 6) FNER (Wit6) (73,813) (74,415)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—HZEAE 3,031,557 3,140,054
Current portion included in ETATERN IR © Re RHEA
prepayments, deposits and other FEUL BR SRR R B 2B 1D
receivables (73,517) (74,415)
Non-current portion JEm B 2,958,040 3,065,639
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is ZHE AR R R IE R
held under a long term lease. DFFAE -
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s leasehold land R-E-—WHF+-_A=+—RH" KA
located in Mainland China with net book value of % {B3,031,5578 T (= T — = F:
HK$3,031,557 (2013: HK$3,140,054) was pledged to 3,140,054/ 7C) Z A S E R F BN
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group ZHELHEBEE  FALER K
(note 35(a)(ii)). IRITEE 2R (BiE35(a)0i) »
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15. EBFREE

Customer
relationship

EFEBE
HK$
BT
31 December 2014 —E-mME+=-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of accumulated R-Z—MNE—A—HZkAK -
amortisation B RIEE 760,654
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) G NEHHEE (f1716) (190,163)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+—_B=+—H 570,491
At 31 December 2014: RZZE—NF+__A=+—H:
Cost [2%N 1,140,980
Accumulated amortisation RIEEH (570,489)
Net carrying amount REFE 570,491
31 December 2013 —E-=H+=-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2013, net of accumulated R=-T—=%—H— B2 -
amortisation Bk RIEHESE 950,817
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) £ N#ks4884E (F1it6) (190,163)
At 31 December 2013 NZE—=F+-_A=+—8H 760,654
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=F+-_A=+—8:
Cost B A 1,140,980
Accumulated amortisation RIEHEH (380,326)
Net carrying amount BREFE 760,654
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. MIBARZRE
Company
VNN

2014 2013
=k —T=F
HKS$ HKS$
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost IE TR - IR 7,983 7,991
Due from subsidiaries JE LSBT B ) 881,520,942 790,864,204
881,528,925 790,872,195

Impairment of amounts due from FEU KB A B RIE 2 RE
subsidiaries (10,715,897) (46,171,415)
870,813,028 744,700,780

hE U B B~ B IR C R BB 1R
TR ZENE QR B85 —RERH
HE1E

An impairment loss was recognised for amounts due
from subsidiaries because these subsidiaries have been
loss-making for some time.

FE M BB 2% 0 3K OB 2 RS R S B o

due from subsidiaries are as follows: N

The movements in provision for impairment of amounts

Company
¥ NN

2014 2013

—E-mEF —E—=F

HK$ HK$

B BT

At 1 January n—H—H 46,171,415 45,171,415
Impairment losses recognised ERRREBRE - 1,000,000
Amount written off as uncollectible il 35 B R UK B 5RIR (34,455,518) -
Impairment losses reversed A EED (1,000,000) -
At 31 December W+—RA=+—H 10,715,897 46,171,415

LarmtEARRH AN AEER -
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of RERBETEEFTPR - RARIEER
repayment. In the opinion of the directors, those B RERBRTBRAR R E AT
ZIRE 2 EB G o

All amounts advanced to the subsidiaries above are

advances are considered as part of the Company’s
investments in its subsidiaries.
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16.

An amount due from a subsidiary included in the
Company’'s current assets of HK$925,873 (2013:
HK$6,474,000) is unsecured, interest-free and is

repayable on demand.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

MEARZRE (&)

FAARRBEIRBEENEKHNEQ
Bl R 1H925,873F L (Z & — =

=
F

6,474,000 70) AEETF - RENER

ZREFEE -

ITZMBRARNBERRZFBOT -

Percentage of

registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital ~ to the Company Principal activities
ML, BRITEER/ ENRE
£ AR E R ZMERA  REAEZEDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
Ef# B
CATIC Helicopter Development PRC/Mainland China HK$42,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Limited HE/RERL 42,000,000/ 7T REZR
("CATIC Helicopter S2")**
PR BEFERITRS ORI BRA
al (T EA AR ]) =
MIRGEFHEBARBRATF PRC/Mainland China HK$6,400,000 - 51 Production and
("Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu")*** B /R E R 6,400,00058 7 distribution of
(MIRBGE4]) #* knitting and textile
products, knitted
fabrics and clothing
HERSEM - HE
EHRRENEE
B5
Billirich Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000% 7T REZR
RERUHE /B
Ease Triumph International Limited ~ Hong Kong/Hong Kong ~ HK$250,000,002 - 100 Investment holding
("Ease Triumph")# BB/ BB 250,000,002/ 7T (2013:Nil)  &ZEBER
AEEREARAF (Z2—=% 8|)
(%D
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16.

136

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  16.

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of

MEARZRE (&)

registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital  to the Company Principal activities
ML, BRITEER NGl
a8 MR E R dfRE  RAEEESL TEXHK
Direct  Indirect
H# &
EEMEBEARAA PRC/Mainland China US$62,530,000 - 99  Property developer
((EEfzE)) B/ HER 62,530,000% 7T (2013:Nil)  of residential and
(ZT—=%8]) commercial projects
EERBEEE Y
FRR
REMEBEERAA PRC/Mainland China 1S$96,000,000 - 52.08  Property developer
(TRZfE]) ¢ hE /B 96,000,000% 7T (2013:Nil)  of residential and
(ZF—=F &) commercial projects
FEEREEEE Y
E 3035
CATIC General Aviation Holdings British Virgin Islands/ us$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited? Hong Kong 2ETT REER
ERALHE /BE
Wahman Investment Limited? British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REER
ERELHE /BB
Smartcon Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
("Smartcon”)* Hong Kong (E REZR
LRERES/BE
Sanba Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (o REZK
RERUHE /B
Welly Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (S REZR
ERELHE /BE
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. HMIBARZIRE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital  to the Company Principal activities
EMmRL, BRITEER NGl 2
a8 TR E R E dREA  RAEZESL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
Ef# B
Sumber Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E BERK
RERUHE /B
Kingspot Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ HK$1 100 - Investment holding
("Kingspot")* Hong Kong 17T REER
ERELHE /BB
Sino-Aviation Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
("Sino-Aviation Investments” ) Hong Kong 1%L BEER
EREAHE /BE
Yipon Investment Limited? British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REZR
RERUHE /B
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Uss2 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 2ETT REER
RRRLHE /BE
* CATIC Helicopter SZ is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned * PR E AR YR B R BDE S R
enterprise under PRC law. INETBE R -
o Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu is registered as a co-operative ** IR FRBEFBIEGIZMAEGE
joint venture under PRC law. -
# None of the statutory financial statements of these # PR Lt S5 Y /B X BIHETE B 5 R 19 9k
subsidiaries was audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or HEKkBEBRTKERZ S —KER
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network. e
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16.

138

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

On 30 December 2014, the Group acquired Ease
= E M B and K& M E from a fellow
subsidiary of the Company. Further details of this

Triumph,

acquisition are included in notes 40 and 44(b) to the
financial statements.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

16.

MBARZKRE (&2)
R-E—NE+-ZA=+H AEEAH
ARBZRAENBARKERE &
MERKEME ZSKREHNE—FE
BHE B R 3R R M40 % 44(b)

ERINHEERREIBREAFEXRA
A AEEEEFETEROD ZAR
AT AR - EER MW E
RAERFBEDITE -

AE AR 2 AR B AR
BT

2014 2013
—E—F —E =
Percentage of equity interest held by BRI ST B A
non-controlling interests: RAERB DL
REfEE RiEfi g 47.92% -
2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Results for the year allocated to FADE T IEERER 2
non-controlling interests: ES I
REME REfREE = -
Dividend paid to non-controlling BT REMEE IR % 2
interests of K@ E [N = -
Accumulated balances of non-controlling k4 B HiH) JEIR B i 25
interests at the reporting dates: 2R
REfE NI 589,189 -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  16.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiary subsequent to the

completion of its acquisition on 30 December 2014.

The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

31 December 2014 —ZE—N4&+_-A=+—H

MEARZKRE (&)
DECENR T PN Sk B
S A=+ B R 8 AR
= o BT BB M S LR IR EA A AR
RO

eliminations:

KERE
2014 HK$'000
—E-mF FAET
Revenue Wz -
Total expenses BRI =
Profit for the year RE T -
Total comprehensive income for the year REZHE W BEE =
Current assets MEVEE 5,215,972
Non-current assets EmENEE 41,165
Current liabilities MENBE (2,843,086)
Non-current liabilities ERHAR (1,184,523)

Net cash flow from operating activities
Net cash flow from investing activities
Net cash flow from financing activities

RETHELZHEREFR -
RELTDEE RS REFE -
RMERHELZREREFH =

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Re kRS FEIEINFE =

139



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

FERETRERER (B8) ARAT _
Annual Report 2014 i b
—B—UEER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt st
31 December 2014 —ZE—F+_-_A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. BEQTZRE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—2-mF —E-=F
HKS$ HK$
/‘gi /%E
Share of net assets DMEEEFE 310,154,562 331,405,310
Goodwill on acquisition WS FTEE 2 2 7,744,607 7,744,607
317,899,169 339,149,917

140

The investment in a joint venture represents the Group’s
right to enjoy certain economic benefits derived from
a 69.4% (2013: 69.4%) equity interest in CATIC Siwei
Co., Ltd. (“CATIC Siwei"”) held by third parties through
trust arrangements. CATIC Siwei is registered as a co-
operative joint venture under PRC law and is holding an
investment in China which operates in aero-technology
business and in investment holding.

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that the
Group has the right to enjoy certain economic benefits
from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei, none of
the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral control
over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei pursuant to
the provisions in the articles and association of CATIC
Siwei. Since the Group does not have any power to
control the financial and operating activities of CATIC
Siwei, the directors consider it is appropriate to account
for this right as an investment in a joint venture using
the equity method of accounting as at 31 December
2014 and 2013.

BER _JZTXJ%NEKEIET%E;EEE%
= ERERTHRE 2 HEMTEE
BRAAE ([H#E#ERK]) 69.4% (_ﬁ—
= 69.4%) IRARER 2 E T EER
o g ERBBEREDEFIZMAEE
hE WRPEFEEEMERITER
MLEERZIZE °

EERA HERAKERA N HERK
69. 4% AEZME TR AL EE - B
RENGEERNARZERRTE  SHED
MERBRENGER KB RBHR
B EEGE o MRS EEEEIM
MERZUBREERY EFZARE
HIEZEE ARG AR IE - YN
T-MFER_ZE-—=F+"A=+—H
FFARERRIZERE o

The above entity was not audited by Ernst & Young, LA EBEIER LT KEB R LKER 2
Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & HREEZ -

Young global network.
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17.
(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of CATIC Siwei adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements:

31 December 2014 —_E—MF+=-_A=+—H
SERTZRE (&)

TRIEMgERZWBEEMNRE (B
REABREMERFELAR L E
RAEMBRRANZREEETHR)

2014 2013
—E-MmF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEE 60,284 283,733
Other current assets HihEh&E 214,996 87,049
Current assets TENEE 275,280 370,782
Non-current assets EREEE 243,435 203,159
Current liabilities mEEE (53,124) (87,897)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE = -
Net assets BEFE 465,591 486,044
Less: Net assets attributable to W EEREREEEE
non-controlling interests FE (18,683) (8,515)
446,908 477,529
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in EEREENEE AN AR 2
the joint venture: iR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBHAEZ LB 69.4% 69.4%
Group’s share of net assets AEBDEEERRZ
of the joint venture BEFE 310,154 331,405
Goodwill on acquisition WIS PREE 2 & 7,745 7,745
Carrying amount of the investment wEZREE 317,899 339,150
Revenue Wz 18,389 5,024
Interest income B YA 4,282 3,961
Gain on disposal of investment HEWE 7z - 163,554
Depreciation and amortisation e R (19,453) (10,294)
Interest expenses B (2,110) (178)
Tax I8 (1,322) (35,494)
Profit/(loss) for the year REZH,(EE) (34,338) 80,598
Other comprehensive income E 2wt - (52,444)
Total comprehensive income for the year ANF 2 UK A2%E (34,338) 28,154
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. HERNTIZRE
Group
KEE
2014 2013
=F-mF —T=F
HK$ HK$
BT o
Share of net assets DEEEFE 204,320,781 224,895,766
Goodwill on acquisition WEETEA 2 B2 41,733,731 40,969,018
246,054,512 265,864,784
Less: Provision for impairment VB BB R (8,091,371) (1,826,000)
237,963,141 264,038,784
Loans to associates — non-current MEE N EIRENER
— Ry 18,750,000 57,324,841
Less: Impairment of loans to associates & : MBI QTR E
ZRE (18,750,000) (19,000,000)
- 38,324,841
237,963,141 302,363,625
Market value of listed shares LWz mE 355,900,275 222,824,520
Loans to associates included in the SFAREBRENE E 2 A B
Group’s current assets: EREREHER
Loans to associates — current Bt N TR E R —
M ED 68,000,000 12,101,911
Less: Impairment of loans to associates & : MEF& D FHREHEE K
ZRIE (68,000,000) -
- 12,101,911

142

The non-current loans to associates included in the
investments in associates above are unsecured, bear
interest at 6.15% (2013: 4.5% to 6.15%) per annum and
are not repayable within one year. The non-current loans
to associates have convertible options, which allow the
Group to convert the loans into ordinary shares of the
associates at an established conversion rate (i.e. RMB1
per share). As at 31 December 2014, impairment losses
of HK$18,750,000 (2013: HK$19,000,000) have been
recognised for non-current loans to associates. In the
opinion of the directors, the fair values of the convertible
options do not have significant financial effect and were
therefore not recognised in these financial statements.

FPA LB E AR ZRE Z M E R RIREN
ERBERTEER  HFEF K615 (ZF
—=%F 1 45EF6.15E) it ENBER—FA
B - ML ARRENIERBDERTE R
g AEBETERETERE (BMERITA
RE) BEFERABE AR ZLEE - N
T-MFE+-_A=+—B  DHRABERER
HH) 3 7 B B FURE SRR B 85 18.18,750,0007% 7T
(ZZ— =4 :19,000,00087T) - EHRA
RBREZ AFETESATETE B2
BEAVERERMER
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The current loans to associates included in the Group's
current assets are unsecured, bear interest at 4.5%
to 6.15% (2013: 6%) per annum and are repayable
within one year. Except for loans to an associate of
HK$11,750,000, the current loans to associates have
convertible options, which allow the Group to convert
the loans into ordinary shares of the associates at
an established conversion rate (i.e. RMB1 per share).
As at 31 December 2014, impairment losses of
HK$68,000,000 (2013: Nil) have been recognised for
current loans to associates.

An impairment loss was recognised for loans to
associates because the associates have been loss-making
in recent years.

The movement in the provision for impairment of the
loans to associates is as follows:

18.

31 December 2014 —_E—MF+=-_A=+—H

BEARZRE (&)

AR ERB A E 2 M e A AR
RIRBERIEEIT - RFEME4SES
6152 (ZE—=%F :6[2) st B RAR
—FREE -BRTRABEEAFREENE
711,750,000 T o1 + [ HE & A Al HE it
HmBE R A AT ARE  NEETE
MEEBnE (NERITARE) HER
ERABENAzERR - R —W
F+-A=+—R EnEBLARR
897 B & X R (B /&1868,000,000
BT (ZE—=F : |) -

FhIA B & QA R B R R EE
B IR ERERROFE —HE

18-

AEE QRO ERZRERERZ S
mr

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—HA—H 19,000,000 -
Exchange realignment PE 3% 8 (784,591) -
Impairment loss recognised (note 6) B RERREEE (fit6) 68,534,591 19,000,000
At 31 December wnt+—_A=+—H 86,750,000 19,000,000
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Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Name

=1

Notes

HiaE

mE+=—A=+—8

Particulars of
issued shares
held

FrisH
BRITROHE

Percentage

of ownership
interest
attributable to
the Group
AEBEAG
BEEER
Bk

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
MR
EERPN
B2 B

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. BEQAT2ZRE (&)

TEBERBZFHBOT

Principal activities

ETEREK

AVIC Joy Holdings (HK)
Limited (“AVIC Joy")
(formerly known as
“China Environmental
Investment Holdings
Limited”)*

zﬂaﬁ B’ (BE) BR

A ([FE@Ek])
(F]l %ﬂa [FEIRIRIEE
B BRAR)

EREEHFRBEERA
(MEREEE]) *

ﬂ‘kﬂn z
Az

r}
Jﬁ‘r

R

Brm
~&
— T
Hm ﬂ

>(-

\;

)

EIBEEHETA R R R AR

BRAA
(T LBEm])
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

Ordinary shares
i

Registered capital
of RMB1 each

BRITARES
BRI

Registered capital
of RMB1 each

BRIATARED
FEE AR

Registered capital
of RMB1 each

BRITARKER
AR

23.01
(2013: 23.53)
T =4

Hong Kong
E

PRC/Mainland 45
China
FE B A

PRC/Mainland 35
China
R B A

PRC/Mainland
China
B R A

32.84
(2013; 45)

(ZZ—=%F:
45)

Operation of
compressed natural
gas, liquefied
petroleum gas and
liquefied natural gas
refuelling stations,
management and
operation of light-
emitting diode
energy management
contracts, provision
of finance lease
and loan services
and provision of
land development
services

KEBRERAR - RIE
AR RRIERAR
gk - EIERAEE
—mERBARER
EIR  RHREHEE
REFIRT - LARIE
i+ 3 i 32 AR 75

Research and
development
of engineering
technology
and electronics
communication
technology
TERMEEFBER
ity B0 i 7% K e B

Provision of business
aviation services
and management of
private jets

R Fﬁﬂﬁn = AR 745 K2 Fl
AR IR

Development of circuit
boards, display
devices, and micro-
connected electronic
materials

ARBRIR ~ BURER T R
RV EEEF MR
%
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

# Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(@) In the prior year, the Group’s equity interest in AVIC Joy
was diluted subsequent to the issuance of new ordinary
shares by AVIC Joy to other shareholders. A net loss on
deemed disposal of an associate of HK$7,808,330 had
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for that year. During the year, the Group's equity
interests in AVIC Joy and )& E i have been diluted
subsequent to the issuance of new ordinary shares by these
associates to other shareholders. A net gain on deemed
disposal of associates of HK$679,121 was recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

(b) During the year, additional impairment of HK$6,265,371
(2013: HK$1,826,000) (note 6) was recognised for the
interest in JLF#FE(ZZ in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year, which has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a five-year period. The discount rate
applied to cash flow projections is 10% (2013: 10%).

(c) The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of an associate, 2EtfZE, during the year because
the share of loss of the associate exceeded the Group’s
interest in the associate and the Group has no obligation
to take up further losses. The amounts of the Group's
unrecognised share of losses of the associate for the
current year and cumulatively were HK$25,201,757 (2013:
HK$4,168,295) and HK$29,370,052 (2013: HK$4,168,295),

respectively.

18.

BMENRZRE (&)

*

YIARKEBELRKBERZS —KE
Bz o

REBMERZZMBR AR ER LS

FRIHEER /I B ERFEER
FERAEBEEFETEROZAE
EEtE T  EER DM E ML
RAER KRN ITE -

Bt

(0

BEFE - ANE B R SR IR A A A
T AE SEAR PR AR ) EL th PR SR B 1T B AR
WS o WR BHERE AR ZFE
187,808,330 TERZFEMIZAR
i%ﬁPﬁﬁw FRN - NEBRERER
EMRAEREZEHE QA
ﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁfh%ﬁi f& 1% 1 HE 8 o 3
RALERE QR 2 FFEE79,1214
TERAFEENIGABRERHER

FR - Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ?futﬁiﬂ?fxz
BaNANFEZHAERRPHAE
9\\ﬁﬁ6,265,371,9§7n <_ z fzi :
1,826,000 JT) (W?i%) o ZIEREE
R e mETEA + i iE e TR R = AR
%FE?%Eiimﬁﬁﬁta’]ﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
ﬁﬁﬂf °© EE%/}\LE%E/H‘J@?%}EHZ%EE;?—E
10% (ZZE—=4 :10%) °

ZKﬁlaﬁAim%%Mﬁ?&ﬁ /N
A= BRI - b T R O EE
M‘TZ%EE@@Z&%IKE& i &
NAMER MASEDBEFRIE
B EE - AEEREROEMNZ
BMERRAFEFECERRESRE
725l /25,201,7578 L (ZE— =4 :
4,168,295/ L) }&29,370,052/8 7T (=

T—=4F : 4,168,29587T) °
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18.

146

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

In the prior year, the Group disposed of its entire 22.66%
equity interest in Sinbo Investment Limited (“Sinbo”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively as “Sinbo Group”) to
Jichang Investment Limited (“Jichang”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Peace Map Holding Limited (“PMH"). An
aggregate consideration of HK$339,900,000 was received
by the Group, comprising (i) HK$56,650,000 in cash;
(ii) convertible bonds issued by PMH (“PMH Convertible
Bonds”) with an aggregate amount of HK$265,122,000;
and (iii) PMH Convertible Bonds which were received by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 as
a deferred consideration (“PMH Deferred CB") with a
principal amount of HK$18,128,000 (subject to adjustment)
upon the receipt by Jichang of the auditor’s certificate of
the audited consolidated net profit after taxation of Sinbo
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 (note 20(a)).

A gain on disposal of Sinbo Group of HK$358,423,419 had
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

18. BEQTRZRE (&)
Wizt : ()

(d) BEFE AEERMXTEZRAER
AE(TRTEZER]) 22EWEB AT
Jichang Investment Limited ([Jichang])
HEERTBEREERAT ([FHED
REMBAR (HBEIFEER]) (2
#022.66% MR A & o AN EE B W EI K
{8 #2 %8339,900,0007% 7T« £ 3% : ()R
56,650,000 7T : (i)K T BIERETT
BN £ #4858 /5265,122,00058 7T 0 7]
frEs ([RTEZERAI#®RRESR]D @ &
(i) fEJichang 4 51| B 4% S AM 3% 1 7 5 BE
MESERHEZ_ZT—=F+=-A=+1+
—HIEFENKEZEERTELNZ
BEE AEEERHE_T—NOFT+
ZA=T—HIEFERIIOXTEZER
BT A S5 518,128,000/ T (A] F
FAR) MARRES ([ X TEZERIET
AIMRER D) (B1720(a)) °

T E S B /T B358,423,41978 7T
EREZE-_T—=F+-A=1+—A1Lt

loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 as follows: FEMNGEERENER  FBE0T
HK$
BT
Consideration received: BRAE -
Cash B4 56,650,000
PMH Convertible Bonds, at fair value RKTEZERAI®RRES  RATFE 338,313,084
PMH Deferred CB, at fair value RTEZBREATSRRES  RATFE 23,460,335
Total consideration received BERE 418,423,419
Carrying value of interest in Sinbo Group MEREERZREE 60,000,000
Gain on disposal & 2 FE 358,423,419
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Assumptions used in the cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of the investment in 3t
#{Z 7% are as follows:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent
with external information sources.

18.

31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+=-F=+—H

BEARZRE (&)

B REEF REZRENRAZRS
MEFRRFERZBRET

BEEMF - BEENXZHETIRE
BEFREA—FRERNFHEN R
& WHEERM A= Mg o

HHFE - RAZITRERTIARNGRIEA
I = R A (& 5! B8 T 2 45 e LR -

B RAR 2 BEESNEPBUR R — 2 -
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

AVIC Joy, which is considered a material associate of the
Group, is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of AVIC Joy adjusted for any differences

18.

BENRZRE (&)

WESAEB 2 EABE AR EREER
Ty AR EIEAFR -

TR FEEERZMBENRE (B
REABRRZEMERELFE LM
RAMBHRERANZREEETHR) -

148

in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying

amounts in the consolidated financial statements:

AVIC Joy:
ERER
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FET
Current assets mEEE 1,150,262 1,661,109
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,667,740 1,161,569
Current liabilities mEAE (570,000) (1,390,227)
Non-current financial liabilities, RSB EEE  TEIEE
excluding trade and other payables B SR H A e 5k
and provisions SEPSEET (1,121,686) (200,816)
Other non-current liabilities HMIERBEE (18,892) (64,007)
Net assets BEFE 1,107,424 1,167,628
Less: Net assets attributable to W FEEREREGEE
non-controlling interests FE (58,831) (93,588)
1,048,593 1,074,040
Net assets, excluding goodwill BESE TeERE 859,724 923,522
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HEAEERBE N RIER 2
in the associate: AR -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership KEBHAEZ LI 23.01% 23.53%
Group's share of net assets of the REBOIEBME NG 2 EE
associate, excluding goodwill FE TEERE 197,823 217,305
Goodwill on acquisition W FTEE A 2 P8 33,469 33,469
Carrying amount of the investment KEZEREE 231,292 250,774
Revenue W zs 1,496,820 1,268,581
Loss for the year AREEE (76,973) (8,767)
Other comprehensive income H b 2mE S 1,306 22,272
Total comprehensive income for the year ARG 2 mH K 4258 (75,667) 13,505
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. BEQT2ZRE (&)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAEBEERIEEREERF 2
information of the Group’s associates that are not BRI ER -
individually material:

2014 2013
—F-lmF —E=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT
Share of the associates’ profits/(losses) S {GZANEB & AT 2 %M~
and the total comprehensive income (B8) kemiisEs
for the year (10,944) (7,241)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERBERNRICREZ
Group's investments in the associates BREEAE 6,671 13,265

FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120 19. EC120 EH 2B EE

The balance represents the carrying value of the Group's EHREALSBR ST _FHREARTZ
interest in 80% of the interest of AVIC International Ixﬂxﬁq:‘ B i 22 F iy B R 2 A B BR
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”), a substantial ~Nal ([P EER]) ATEE ZEC12018 B
shareholder of the Company, in the net income in FERT 2 F A 280%ME a5 7 e os BRI
relation to Project EC120 which was acquired from Tﬁv EC1200BER—EHR - NLZF+
AVIC International in 2002. Project EC120 is a jointly- A B A B B B398 32 %8 = J7Eurocopter
controlled operation established in October 1992 by S.A.XSingapore Aerospace Ltd.f(3 2
AVIC International in co-operation with Eurocopter S.A. HEZFITER - ZZE QRS BHTBEEA
and Singapore Aerospace Ltd., both independent third T’EEﬂ% C BUE R BB SEEC1 208 5k 2
parties, to develop, manufacture and globally distribute ZRGEFH -

the multi-purpose EC120 helicopters.

AVIC International’s net income derived from Project R B R HECI20E B 2 F WA » IR
EC120 is limited to AVIC International’s share of income, R BB EECI20 B S FTEL Z
net of all expenses, to be derived from its interest in JEMRATIBE 2WA CRRATER) & (i)
Project EC120 in relation to (i) the sale and production HEREEEAKRTIGH - RPMEER
of parts and spares of helicopters and profits accrued to BRIKEEEAM BT (k=
AVIC International from the sale of helicopters globally; A BIRR JE AT 2 FEAC B 5 (i) BLHR M
(ii) the recovery of non-recurring costs accrued to AVIC BB SH B H i 2 A BB PR G 2 U
International; (iii) commission income accrued to AVIC A R(iv)F MBI FEC120IE B &8 2
International from the sale of helicopters by AVIC FEETEIRUA -

International; and (iv) administrative income accrued to
AVIC International from the operations of Project EC120.
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19.

150

FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120
(continued)

As the investment represents a contractual right to
receive cash in the future from another enterprise,
the investment has been classified as a non-current
available-for-sale financial asset and stated at cost less
any impairment losses. This investment is stated at cost
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors are
of the opinion that its fair value could not be measured
reliably.

As at 31 December 2014, the directors had made a full
provision for impairment of the value of the financial
asset.

The cost less accumulated impairment losses of the
financial asset is analysed as follows:

19.

EC120 BB 2 i EE ()

MR E R A B S — R RN
Reza0lF  BUHEARSEA
JER B i 0 B - 3 B IR
A A AR E AR  HIRE AR A
MR EFIE - LTI RR AR AT B
HZBEBA  REFRAMEE RE
SHATHE-

RZE—NE+-A=+—H E=FC
MZEMBEE 2 BEEL 2R ER
1% -

MBEEZRANRREREBR DN
LI

Group
rEE
HK$
BT
At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and R-_E—=F+-_A=+—8"
31 December 2014: —E-NF—A—AK
—E-NFE+ZA=1+—8:
Cost B AN 39,759,462
Accumulated impairment 2ERE (39,759,462)
Carrying amount BREE =




AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMEITXEBER (F8) ERATF

Annual Report 2014
ZE-FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &t
31 December 2014 —ZE—NF+=-_/F=+—H

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. IHHENRKRE
Group Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T—= —E-NE —T—=fF
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Non-current: EME
Unlisted investments, ELETERE -
at fair value: BAFE:
PMH Bonds AT EERES
(note (a)) (H1at(a)) 116,700,527 152,065,478 - -
AVIC Joy Bond FRIERES
(note (b)) (H15Eb)) - 47,342,072 - -
Club debentures SAES 5,070,300 5,115,969 2,680,300 2,680,300
121,770,827 204,523,519 2,680,300 2,680,300
Current: m
Unlisted investment, FEWERE
at fair value: BRFE:
AVIC Joy Bond FRIERES
(note (b)) (et b)) 51,071,290 - = -
Notes: Kiat -
(a) PMH Convertible Bonds held by the Group are non-interest- (a) AEBEFBEZRXTEERATBRRES

bearing, convertible into 664,000,000 (2013: 970,363,360)
ordinary shares of PMH at HK$0.25 per share (subject to
adjustment upon the change in the capital structure of
PMH) and will mature in five years from the date of the
issuance.

PMH Convertible Bonds are hybrid instruments that include
non-derivative host contracts and embedded derivatives.
The non-derivative host contracts, representing the bond
components (“PMH Bonds"”), have been designated as
available-for-sale investments. The embedded derivatives,
representing the conversion options which allow the Group
to convert PMH Convertible Bonds into ordinary shares
of PMH at an established conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.25
per share), have been designated as derivative financial

instruments (“PMH Derivatives"”).

BT E - ARFR0.258 T (BEAE
ATEERERRE 2SS TIUHAE)
841 5664,000,0000% (= F — = & :
970,363,3600%) KX T E#Z MR 2 i@k -
BRETHR RERIE -

ATEEZEEIREESRBESIFTE
TEFAOERAATETAZES
TE-FEMETEFAHNRKRESH
f [RTEZERES]  EREERT
HEENKRE - RAATETAEREZR
HAKEIZREERE (AFR.258
TO) BRTEERATRRESRBRAR
TEER T BRI DR
ERTESBRT A ((RTEZERITET
Al -
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20.

152

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

During the year, the Group received PMH Convertible Bonds
from PMH with a principal amount of HK$18,128,000 (note
18(d)) and from Broadlink Enterprises Limited (“Broadlink”)
with a principal amount of HK$22,531,160 (note 21(d)).

During the year, the Group converted PMH Convertible
Bonds (“PMH Converted CB”) with a principal amount
of HK$117,250,000 into 469,000,000 shares of PMH at
the conversion price of HK$0.25 per share. On the date
of the conversion, the market value of the shares of PMH
received was HK$93,331,000 while the fair value of the
PMH Converted CB was stated at HK$118,008,965 based
on a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer. A loss on derecognition of HK$24,677,965
was resulted. At the same time, the corresponding fair
value gain of HK$5,267,998 previously recorded in the
statement of comprehensive income was released from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve. As
a result, a net loss on derecognition of an available-for-
sale investment of HK$19,409,967 was recognised in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss for the year.

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of PMH Bonds was
stated at HK$116,700,527 (2013: HK$152,065,478) based
on a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value gain of HK$16,017,493
(2013: HK$6,119,779) in respect of PMH Bonds was
recognised as other comprehensive income for the year.

The convertible bond issued by AVIC Joy (“AVIC Joy
Convertible Bond”) bears interest at 2% per annum, is
convertible into 220,322,859 (2013: 220,322,859) ordinary
shares of AVIC Joy at HK$0.235 per share (subject to
adjustment upon the change in the capital structure of
AVIC Joy) and will mature in three years from the date of
the issuance.

20.

AHHENRE (&)

Biat - (&)

(a)

FRN AEBEATEZERKI XS
¥ /318,128,000 7T 2 K T B 2= ig 7]
W% & 25 (f7#£18(d)) » 75 B Broadlink
Enterprises Limited ([ Broadlink |) 42 & 4~ &
¥/322,531,1608 70 < X T ElE R AT i
R&f&%H (f1at21(d)) °

FRN - AEEIZER2E T HE
BE LA © F A117,250,000% T 2
ATEERITRRES (X TEZE
BREEmImBRES]) BB AXT
£ }2469,000,0008% % 17 - A 83 1%
EX BMBMZRTEERROME
#$93,331,000% 7t - M KX T B % Ik
BERIBRBRESFZ A FERBEE L
EEXSCERMGEMETZEERNR
118,008,9658 7 * B4 T KX ILTER

/&5 1824,677,965% 7T o R B + 55 AT RS
Hih2EWm KL EEA T ERNE
5,267,998 JT {if AT 4 I &5 1% & E (A #
RS o B - R IEERATH SN
B2 FE1819,409,9678 TR ANEE ~

FABRKRER -

R_ZE—NE+-_A=+—H  XTE
EREHFZATFEREBYSEEEK
B ETT 2 BB /116,700,527
B L (= T — = £ :152,065,478%
o) R TEERES Z R TFEF
H16,017,493% T (=Z T — = F:
6,119,779 7T) RERNERAHMEE
rzs o

FRERETZAIRRES ([ZEER
ARRER D REMEK2EFE - AR
§R%0.2358 T (EEERIEREARLE
T2 e T AR $1%0/8220,322,859
B (=ZZ— =4 :220,322,859/%) =4&
Rz EBER - BEBETHBH =F
I
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

AVIC Joy Convertible Bond is a hybrid instrument that
includes a non-derivative host contract and an embedded
derivative. The non-derivative host contract, representing
the bond component (“AVIC Joy Bond"”), has been
designated as an available-for-sale investment. The
embedded derivative, representing the conversion option
which allows the Group to convert AVIC Joy Convertible
Bond into ordinary shares of AVIC Joy at an established
conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.235 per share) before the
maturity date of AVIC Joy Convertible Bond, has been
designated as a derivative financial instrument (“AVIC Joy
Derivative™”).

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of AVIC Joy Bond
was stated at HK$51,071,290 (2013: HK$47,342,072)
based on a valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer, and a fair value gain of
HK$3,729,218 (2013: HK$2,955,301) in respect of AVIC
Joy Bond was recognised as other comprehensive income
for the year.

In the prior year, a fair value gain of HK$40,496,212 in
respect of a listed investment in Mainland China was
recognised in other comprehensive income for that year.

In the prior year, that investment had been disposed
of and a loss on disposal of HK$37,002,918 had been
resulted, after netting off the relevant expenses. At
the same time, the corresponding fair value gain of
HK$177,211,944 previously recorded in the statement
of other comprehensive income had been released from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve. As
a result, a net gain on disposal of such available-for-sale
investment of HK$140,209,026 had been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for that year.

The total deferred tax credit, net, amounting to
HK$34,178,933 (note 36) had been credited to other
comprehensive income for that year.

AHHENRE (&)

Wit

(b)

(%)

(%)

:MEET RAIMKRESRBESHITETA
ABHRBRBARNTETIAEZEATA -
iEmil,&I SHREZEFBMH ([=
BERESR])  BREERATHEED
BE -MARTETLAEREATAER
RERZERATMARES 2 58 B RTIRER
EHERE (B1EAR0.235%8 L) =R E
fRAT MR EFER A ERIER 2 BR
IR BEREERATESRIA
([ERIERTETAD -

R-T—NMFE+-_A=+—H " @&
REHZ A TFEREBYBES GG
@Eﬂkﬁiﬁfﬁﬁu@z%m,071,290%7%
(ZZT—=% :47,342,07287L) * =&
ERES 2 A FEFIE3,729,2188 T
(ZZ— =4 :2,955301/87L) RER
HRAEMDERE o

BAFE  —HEHRPBREAME EMIRE
ZNFEFEA0,496,212 B TLERZE
ZEMEEREANER -

BEFE  ZRECHEHE ELETH
& 7 551837,002,918% 7T (A< B 1E
&) o RIEF - AT E A2 E R
Ktk 2 B AT ERNIE177,211,944
BB At ERE EERERR -
At - HEZATHEENIRE 2 FFE
140,209,026 TERZFEir A ER
RNFER ©

48 JE I8 K % §E34,178,933/8 7T
(Ha£36) Bt AZFEEMEERE ©
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20.

154

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) On 25 November 2013, the Group had entered into a
borrowing agreement with Broadlink, an independent
third party and a former shareholder of Sinbo, pursuant to
which the Group lent to Broadlink PMH Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$22,531,160. It had also
been agreed that on 31 July 2014, Broadlink might elect
to return to the Group either (i) PMH Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$22,531,160 together with
interest at 2.5% per annum in cash; or (i) a lump sum
of HK$33,000,000 in cash. A loss on derecognition of
HK$2,904,818 had been resulted and at the same time,
the corresponding fair value gain of HK$873,211 previously
recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income
had been released from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve. As a result, a net loss on derecognition
of an available-for-sale investment of HK$2,031,607 in
respect of PMH Convertible Bonds lent out had been
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

During the year, the net gain, in aggregate, in
respect of the Group’s available-for-sale investments
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$19,746,711 (2013: HK$49,571,292), of which
HK$5,267,998 (2013: HK$178,085,155) was reclassified
from other comprehensive income to the statement of
profit or loss for the year.

The fair values of certain of the unlisted available-for-
sale investments have been estimated using valuation
techniques based on assumptions that are supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires
the directors to make estimates about the expected
future cash flows including expected future dividends,
the risk-free rate and the credit spread of the underlying
shares. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation techniques, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair value, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.

20.

AHHENRE (&)

Biat - (&)

(d) RZTZ—=F+—A=Z+HB K&
& £Broadlink (— & B L E =75 ki
EMRRR) FIZ—MEERZE &
It » 7K £ @ [ABroadlinkf& tH A & %8 A&
22,531,160 70 2 K T [El#5 A& 7T #2 iR &
HFoBHNMHET R-T—NFELA=
+—B - Broadlink 7] 2 12 [A) 2 &= [ (i) 53
BASER22,531,1608 L2 X NEIZ
FRAHR B - ERIRE M2 5EG B
ZBeFE 5 (0i)EZ I £33,000,000
BTz —RMRIE - RIEER 2B
2,904,818 T E A - R - AR
Hih2EWm KL EEA T ERE
8732MNATEBAIHEERE AR
HRRRR o FELL - H KT E AR AT AR
EHEE 2 K IEERAREENRE Y
F 182,031,607 8 TEREBE=-F —
T A=+ —BIEFEZHGAER
R o

FA REMZEUNEERZIAE
BEa@HEENREZFNEER
719,746,711 T (Z T — = F:
49,571,292 L) + A H5,267,998% 7T
(ZZT— =4 :178,085,155/%& 7t) Jh ¢
Hih 2B mENHBEAFEIBSEE

ETIHLEMAHHENREZAFET
MA/ERMRERRMES S - M
EBRBIAATERTIHERKEEERL
Fro 2fAEAEFTHBRHPRKRER
B BREEMRKREKRE - EERMNEE
HEBDEEZRSELE - EFH8
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. TE&mI A
Group
REE
2014 2013
—ZT—mF =
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets: IEMBEE :
PMH Derivatives KTIEHEBRSTET A
(note (a)) (H1it(a)) 125,373,037 167,586,217
PMH Deferred CB KT B e A R A A 4R A
(note (b)) &% (K1:Eb)) - 23,843,651
125,373,037 191,429,868
Current assets: MENVEE -
AVIC Joy Derivative FERERITETAR
(note (c)) (H1iz(c) 25,497,256 7,458,647
Broadlink Derivative Broadlink$TA& T A
(note (d)) (H1a2(d)) - 27,173,630
25,497,256 34,632,277

The Group's derivative financial instruments are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis. Any fair value gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments
have been estimated using valuation techniques based
on assumptions that are supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuations require the directors to
make estimates, including expected cash flows and
volatility of the underlying securities. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, are reasonable,
and that they are the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

AEBEZTESRIADRAFERE
B HRBAMRAFEEEFE - F
A AFENEXERINGEEBERA
TR -

TEER T Az AFEDMAMGERM
RERZGEFEL  MZERREAET
BREMSERIBRES - HERE
EEHfhE - BREHRESRE LA
B ZRE EEMEERABERNE
AR & IR R AR Z fEFAF
B - UAREGEEBRaERARZIERIF
EEBEEAE  YABRSHRZHZA
EEE -
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. $TE€®IA (&)

156

(continued)

Notes: et -

(a) The PMH Derivatives represent the derivatives embedded (a) WNBA RS SRR M FE20(a)Fr el - RN BT
in PMH Convertible Bonds as detailed in note 20(a) to the f&5T4E T ERKKRT Bl R AT E 5
financial statements. RZBRARITETA -

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of PMH Derivatives R-ZEBE—ME+-_A=+—H' X T
was stated at HK$125,373,037 (2013: HK$167,586,217) BEBRITETAZRAFEREE Y
based on a valuation performed by an independent BELAERMGEMETZHEYE
professionally qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of #125,373,0378 T (Z & — = F:
HK$22,885,350 (2013: fair value gain of HK$5,949,867) 167,586,217% L) + K NEERITET
in respect of PMH Derivatives was recognised in the B2 AF{EE 822,885,350 L (= F
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year. —=% : R TFEFHE5,949,867FT) I
REFFEEERRAOER ©

(b) As detailed in note 18(d) to the financial statements, the (b) INEF TS SRR M 3T 18(d)Fr it - AREFER
Group had recorded PMH Deferred CB as at 31 December —ZEZ—=F+ZA=+t—HEBLEN
2013 as a deferred consideration for the disposal of Sinbo BEREEZRERBRLRELART B ZERIE
Group. ERTHRARE ST ©
As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of PMH Deferred RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H ' XTHE
CB was stated at HK$23,843,651 based on a valuation TR IR ES 2 A TFEREBEE
performed by an independent professionally qualified BELBERGEMETZEEIES
valuer, and a fair value gain of HK$383,316 had been 23,843,651% 7T © A F1E FEH383,316
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss BTERBEZZ—=F+=A=+—
for the year ended 31 December 2013. BIEFEZHRABREERNER -
During the year, the Group received PMH Convertible Bonds FRN - RNESEEHE T —=F+=
after the audited net profit after taxation of Sinbo Group R=+—HIEFEZEEZRBEGRN
for the year ended 31 December 2013 had been confirmed EHRE - NEBWEIXT BER AT %
and PMH Deferred CB was derecognised accordingly. The fefEss - WHE L& IEERRT BERE
fair value of PMH Convertible Bonds received amounted R ES - BB 2 R TEER
to HK$23,109,455 as at the date of receipt, based on ABHBEESFREIERZ AFERE
a valuation performed by an independent professionally BYUBEXCEARMGEMETZHEER
qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of HK$734,196 was 23,109,455 7T © A FEE1E734,196
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss BITRAFELREEBRRNER
for the year.

(c) AVIC Joy Derivative represents the derivative embedded () 40 B 75 R 2R MY 5E20(b) P RE AL - SEARIE

in AVIC Joy Convertible Bond as detailed in note 20(b) to
the financial statements. As at 31 December 2014, the fair
value of AVIC Joy Derivative was stated at HK$25,497,256
(2013: HK$7,458,647) based on a valuation performed
by an independent professionally qualified valuer, and a
fair value gain of HK$18,038,609 (2013: fair value loss
of HK$1,555,984) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year.

RAOTHE T AR KRERERATLBRES P
ZHMARITEIAR - RZT—NF+=
A=+—8B FBEZERTEIAZAR
TEBEBEBELEXEERMEEMETT
714 E 518 A25,497,25678 70 (ZF —
=4 17,458,647 L) A FEFH
18,038,609/ 7L (—E— =4 : A¥&E
181,555,984 70) WAFELR G
KRANFER ©
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a consideration
receivable from Broadlink as detailed in note 20(d) to the
financial statements. It was recognised by the Group as
a derivative financial instrument (“Broadlink Derivative”)
which was stated at the fair value of HK$27,173,630 based
on a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer. A fair value loss of HK$652,587 had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

During the year, Broadlink returned PMH Convertible
Bonds with a principal amount of HK$22,531,160 (note
20(a)) to the Group together with the interest, and
Broadlink Derivative was derecognised accordingly. The
fair value of PMH Convertible Bonds returned amounted
to HK$24,189,236 as at the date of return, based on a
valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of HK$2,984,394 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year.

During the year, the net fair value loss, in aggregate, in

respect of the Group’s derivative financial instruments

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss amounted to HK$8,565,331 (2013: net fair value
gain of HK$4,124,612).

TESRMIA (&

(d)

FA-

Biat - (&)

TNEA TS 3R R M E20(d) AT il - =T —
ZF+ZA=Z+—8 - AEEE—ERK
Broadlink )X (B - REBEIEZ N B
RETESB T A ([BroadlinkfT4£ T
B WIREBE I EEESERGERE
Tz ERE N F(E27,173,630/4 L5
B RFEEIEES2,587 B TEREE
—E—=F+-_A=+—HILEFEANR
BIEREAER -

N BroadlinkM A B FE AR ©
22,531,160 7T (A77#20(a)) 2 R T B
TRAUBBREFERGERN S - Bt
Broadlink/TAE T AW L ILTER - REE
BEX EHBEBEZATEERITRRES
ZATEBBEIEXAEKMGEME
17218 524,189,236/ 7T + A FEE
182,984,394 TR AFEREBA K

RGZERERERZAKEL

EemMIAZFLATEEBLEREAR
8,565,331 (ZF— =% FnF¥E&E
F1584,124,612787T) »
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22.

158

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The analysis of the costs and the lease terms of the

22. BEHRYE
AR E AR P B Y BE PRI A

Group's properties under development situated in the KBS T
PRC are as follows:
Group
AEEH
2014 2013
—EF-mF — e
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Medium term lease HEAFRAY 2,121,342,000 -
Long term lease REATHAY 2,828,658,000 -
4,950,000,000 -
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F-=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Properties under development expected F&EHRULE ~ B /&
to be recovered: LE.
Within one year —&FR 2,500,000,000 -
After one year —F L& 2,450,000,000 -
4,950,000,000 -

The Group's properties under development represent the
assets acquired from Ease Triumph and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Ease Triumph Group”) pursuant to the
transaction set out in notes 40 and 44(b) to the financial
statements.

Certain of the Group’s properties under development
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$2,450,000,000
as at 31 December 2014 were pledged to secure the
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 35(a)(iii)).

REE B E R YETIRE YT B REM T
AOR4AAD)FTE R SMEHRERENB A
R (T [HEEE]) 2BE -

RZE-—NE+_A=+—H Kx&H
BRE{E42%82,450,000,000/8 02 & T 3
BRHRMELEER  EREAEE KRR
TIEEZER (MiF35(a) i) -
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INVENTORIES 23. ®E
Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=fF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials =g 1,057,469 1,231,109
Finished goods B Th 1,797,466 1,794,647
2,854,935 3,025,756
24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24, BUWESERIRRERE
Group
KEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade and bills receivables TEWE FEREZ R ERE 24,739,510 15,803,837
Impairment NERIE] (5,361,089) (940,963)
19,378,421 14,862,874

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally one month, extending up to three months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBEEXPZEERRIERR
R EHEPRINGIEP—RFBEERE
RIS - EEH—RAE—EA  #RE
EEPRZEME=[EA - BuEPH
BERAEERRE - AREBKE KRB
BZBUERGREREE - BERE
E B Et B A AR o EEROIA BT R
SEZRWESERMEBEDKXEAE
DHZEFPNEE ALY BEANEE
SHER - REBEILEHEYE 5K
R ERFTAEANERRBEMEER
& o EWE SRR B EN R -
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BWEZRARRE (&)

RBEHR  BREZERRFZELE
SRHMMGREE ZRESTNT

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 24.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of provisions, is as follows:

Group

AEEH
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current BNER 13,973,141 10,599,727
31 to 60 days 31£260H 1,535,081 2,108,210
61 to 90 days 61290H 560,326 1,039,371
Over 90 days 90H A E 3,309,873 1,115,566
19,378,421 14,862,874

EUEZEREREZREREBE I

trade and bills receivables are as follows: T

The movements in the provision for impairment of the

160

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —ZT—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—HA—H 940,963 919,620
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) B HERFEEIE (f1:6) 4,370,756 3,770
Exchange realignment M 5, B 49,370 17,573
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 5,361,089 940,963
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment of
trade and bills receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade and bills receivables of HK$5,361,089
(2013: HK$940,963) with the same carrying amount
before provision. The individually impaired trade and
bills receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties or were in default in principal payments and
are not expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that
are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

24,

31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+=-_A=+—H

BWEZRARREE (&)

SPA LI EWRE SRR R EE 2 R E R
HERERENEREZERE ZERK
=4 7 B 55,361,089 L (ZE— =
1 940,963/ 7T) - EEBER 2 REE
R - @EREREZERE ZERRE
oS MERYER#ELERASHRZ
BE - BIESZEWERCR AR -

AERRERNXBREREZERKE S
AR RREZREDMNT

Group

AEE
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Neither past due nor impaired i E R ARORUE 15,508,222 12,707,937
Less than 1 month past due wH DR —1{A A 560,326 1,039,371
1 to 3 months past due BEA—Z==1EH 3,309,873 1,115,566
19,378,421 14,862,874

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

REP|ITRBEZBREERS RRZZ
TEEP  ZBEPABSTENES -

2 28 B i R OB (B 2 R BR 508 e R %
EAEEBRAERFBECHZBYR
F--REBELR ARREFRE
BIAGL % FREMRIELE IR ERE
EEEERNEEAEPEERBINER
AR 2 ERYLE]
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25.

162

LOANS TO RELATED COMPANIES

As at 31 December 2014, the loan to a related company
included in the Group’s non-current assets represents
the loan to ZHMEFEERBIEBRAGF ("HHAEIK"),
an associate of an intermediate holding company, which
is unsecured, bears interest at 6.15% per annum and
is not repayable within one year. The loans to related
companies included in the Group’s current assets
represent the loans to Peace Map Co., Ltd. (“Peace
Map”), an associate of the joint venture of the Group,
and its subsidiary, It REEFMERFEARETAF ("R
BsFNE "), which are unsecured, bear interest at 6.15%
per annum and are repayable within one year (2013: not
repayable within one year).

Loans to related companies, disclosed pursuant to
section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) with reference to section 161B of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32), are as follows:

25.

MBI AR RHENER
R_Z—NE+_A=+—H  5TAR
SEFERBEENRBABARRENE
KOS HEEK(GER) RIBEBR A A
([ZH23] —EPEERARCHBE
AR REHER - AEER - ZFEF
K6 1SEBERBER —FRNEE - &
ARG ERENE E K AR A Rl R 3R
BERDRAEESE AR ZHE QAL
RATEHEERMTERAR ([KXTEL)
REMB AR RENEREBREST
AR (MEREEME]) RENER - %5
ERAEER HFFNER6ISEFNBERK
BAR—FERNEB(ZE—=F: BEARN
—FRER) -

REBEFBREED (F622F) HR1E
7880 (2B B RRED (F328) £
161B{&) WE 2 AR 2 RRENER
FHEHIMT

Group
AEE
Maximum
amount
31 December outstanding 1 January
2014  during the year 2014
—g-mF FRNEE —T-mE
+=A=+—H REESH —A—H
HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
B SRR 18,750,000 19,027,500 -
Peace Map KT E 18,750,000 19,210,500 19,108,280
e R B AE e R B AE 1,000,000 1,024,500 1,019,109
38,500,000 20,127,389
Less: Non-current portion  J& @ 3EREN 3B (18,750,000) (20,127,389)
Current portion TRENER D 19,750,000 -
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. FETRIE - HERHEMEWERMR
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-QmEF —ZT-=F —E-mF —ZT-=F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
B BT B BT
Prepayments SEENE /| 1,174,931,644 21,812,918 1,399,441 3,108,792
Deposits and other e REAM
receivables FEUIR TR 72,326,013 69,117,764 7,286,325 6,883,373
Impairment B (38,879,605) - = -
1,208,378,052 90,930,682 8,685,766 9,992,165
Less: Prepayments, non-current J& : T8 58 -
portion EmEN D1 (3,765,157) - = -
Current portion TENED 1,204,612,895 90,930,682 8,685,766 9,992,165

e R ORUE 2 12 & I B A B AR O8I SR
BT A8 #OJE SE ) MR AR K o

Deposits and other receivables that were not impaired
related to receivables for which there is no recent history
of default.

RBEEHR AENRESRKEL

Included in prepayments at the end of the reporting

period was prepayment for acquisition of land
for property development for sale amounting to
HK$1,025,000,000 (2013: Nil). This prepayment was
acquired from Ease Triumph Group pursuant to the
transaction set out in notes 40 and 44(b) to the financial
statements.

Included in deposits and other receivables at the end of
the reporting period was a receivable of HK$20,150,000
(2013: HK$20,150,000) which was secured by a 100%
equity interest in a company wholly-owned by the
borrower, an independent third party, and was settled
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

IAEMERBELE Z BN RE
1,025,000,000% L (= T — = F:
) o ZIBMFIETIRBE M RER M40
MAAD)FTEZ HMEHMEER -

RWERR ReREMERERE
¥ FE I BR 3020,150,0008 T (Z & — =
% 120,150,000/ 7T) * s EEUBERFRTY
MER (—RBYE=ZH) 2BHAZA
Al Z100% AR (EE R - W E 2R
WEHRELES -
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. FENNIE - RERHEMEWERR

164

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of
prepayments and other receivables are as follows:

(&)

& {5 FRUIA Ko E b 8 U BR 2 Rk (B 9 4
EL N

Group
rEHE
2014 2013
—EF-mF — e
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) 2R/ (#E) WMEERE
(note 6) (Hiite6) 39,014,543 (13,404)
Exchange realignment PE W 7% (134,938) 13,404
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 38,879,605 -

Included in the above provision for impairment of
prepayments and other receivables is a provision for
impaired prepayments to suppliers of HK$16,747,683
(2013: Nil) and for an investment project of
HK$20,876,250 (2013: Nil), and a provision for
individually impaired other receivables of HK$1,255,672
(2013: Nil), with the same carrying amounts before
provision. Both the impaired prepayments to suppliers
and for the investment project arose from the knitting
and textile business. The impaired prepayments to
suppliers relate to suppliers that are in financial
difficulties and are not expected to be recovered. The
prepayment for the investment project was impaired
as, in the opinion of the directors, its cost exceeded its
recoverable amount.

R TE AT FRIE Ko H b FE UK AR 3R 2 R (E
HREEREZL THER ZBNRIE
2 516,747,683 L (Z T — = ¢
/) BREZKREBEEBRMAREBEZE
420,876,250 L (Z T —=4F : &) -
A K2 MR Bl 258 (B2 H b FE WS BR 3R 2 B
1,255,628 L (ZE—=4F: &) @
BB REEER - EREZS TR
EmzEMNRENERBREZIRATEE
BNREHEEAHBRNBES - B
WA 4 THRIER 2 BNFIEN MER
SR E 2 g - TEHE eI o
BREBEBENRBCRESHRESZR
AHEFAKABEEWE ST IRE -
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EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE 27. BRAVEFABZEZRAIRE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Listed equity investment in Hong Kong, &/& FmlRAKRE -
at market value HME 166,796,500 8,381,000
The above equity investment is managed and its LHRABRENDNREATEEEERE  H
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The RIENMIEAFEEEFE - XEERY)
Group designated this investment as a financial asset at SHERBHIETEZINE BB AFET AR
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. WS EE ©
During the year, the Group converted certain PMH TR ANEBEBRETXTEZERABR
Convertible Bonds into ordinary shares of PMH. Further fRfEHAR TNEIZERZEMRK - #E—P5F
details are included in note 20(a) to the financial ISE R SRR M 5E20(a) °
statements.
PREPAID TAXES 28. FAMNHIA
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E-mF —F-=F
Notes HK$ HKS$
Wizt BT BT
Prepaid land appreciation tax TET T I (E T
("LAT") ([ I8 ER ) (i) 88,020,543 -
Prepaid corporate income tax FAR R EPISH
("CIT) ([EEMER]) (if) 32,960,660 -
120,981,203 -
Notes: Wit
(i) Balance represents LAT prepaid for the property (i) ERIERETRBRM ARG R ZIE R —
development and pre-sales of properties by a subsidiary M A BT R B RIEE MER
according to the instructions by the local tax bureau in the B T IG(ER o
PRC.
(if) Balance represents CIT prepaid for the pre-sale of properties (i) ERERBREM ARG R 2 ERHM—
by a subsidiary according to the instructions by the local tax HRBAREEMEMBMNNLEMS
bureau in the PRC. o
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29.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME 29. BE&RRESZEUREHER
DEPOSITS
Group Company
rEH PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-QmEF —ZT-=F —E-mE —ZT-=F
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Time deposits TFHER 704,468,762 901,689,601 = -
Less: Pledged short term time 3 : ghiG HA4R 1712
deposits for short term Bif 7K
banking facilities B EEE
(note 35(a)(iv)) HTERR (Brat
35(a)(iv)) (375,000) (382,166) - -
A time deposit with RIS ERE
original maturity of HH@BA=
more than three Az EH
months when acquired e (155,588,337) - = -
548,505,425 901,307,435 - -
Cash and bank balances e LR1TER 544,855,450 177,701,049 370,629,796 10,306,510
Cash and cash equivalents RBehReFE 1,093,360,875 1,079,008,484 370,629,796 10,306,510

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$572,870,019
(2013: HK$737,566,208). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RREPR ZEBUARE AR
B AEZReRBTETRESRT
K B572,870,0198 0 (ZF — =& :
737,566,208 7T) - ARMT A B AR
REEME  AWMREPBE A2 I
EERBEOIRERE EEEMNEEER
E o ASRERERERERRING KR
EBZRTBARBHIBAEMER

RITFERREARITERMNEFENF
FHRGFE - BFAKENNRKRE T
ko FENF-—BRE-—FETEHM[H
REIE MTERR > MR A RS HIE ME R
MEFE - RITETF REHRFHEFER
WET IR E L BEBBEZRIT
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DUE TO FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayments.

DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balance is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has
no fixed terms of repayment.

LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

Except for loans from a fellow subsidiary of
HK$975,000,000 (2013: Nil) which were secured by a
100% equity interest in a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary, the loans from fellow subsidiaries included
in the Group’s current liabilities are unsecured, bear
interest at 8% to 10% per annum and are repayable
within one year.

The loans from a fellow subsidiary included in
the Group’s non-current liabilities amounting to
HK$258,750,000 (2013: Nil) are unsecured, bear interest
at 10% per annum and are not repayable within one
year.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,
is as follows:

30.

31.

32.

33.

31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+=-_A=+—H

FEAY B 2 By /B 22 7

ENRAMBRBFARERR 28

FEAH BB 2 B 2 FEE R IR R

LR R - TEHE MEE B
5 o

RERBRKEQXRNER

BRTREBERREMBRQRAHNER
975,000,000 (ZE—=4F : &) Ty
LA—MMB AR 2 IEZERRE 2100%
A EEEIN  FAREERE A
ENXKERREZKBARMNERAEK
1 IREFRIEEI0EF B L AN —
FREE -

AR EEERDABENRERRME
NFHE 258,750,000 T (—ZT—=
Foo&E) AEIEF  REFRI0ETE
MEAR—FREE -

ENEZRARE

RBEHR BNEZERRZELE
ERHMZRESITAT

Group

£33
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F=F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Current Bl HA 3,015,861 2,676,733
31 to 60 days 31£260H 1,619,831 341,096
61 to 90 days 61£290H 999,988 839,023
Over 90 days 90H A E 2,859,180 2,714,906
8,494,860 6,571,758

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms.

ZERMNE SRR B R —&IZ0
AHRBE -
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34. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 3. HitENFIERESER
Group Company
rEE EAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=F ZZEBE-NFE —T—=F
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT ET BT T
Other payables HibER I8 2,912,891 3,642,801 - 1,304,412
Accruals EstER 53,170,164 7,452,404 16,056,787 7,452,404

56,083,055 11,095,205 16,056,787 8,756,816

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HEMENRBEL AT ERFAHRA=
average term of three months. A -

35. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 35. EERITER

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—B-QmF .
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$  rate (%)  Maturity HK$
ECHIES ERFI%
(%) Z#A B (%) 2158 BT
Current; e
Bank loans - secured BOIER - BER 6.6 - 8.1 2015 39,625,000 63-7.2 2014 40,382,165
Non-current; FERE
Bank loans - secured BIOTER - BEA 6.46 2016 665,060,715 -
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes:

(@) As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s banking facilities
were secured by:

(i) a pledge of the Group’s building in Mainland
China with net book value of HK$3,542,186 (2013:
HK$3,878,999) (note 13);

(i) a pledge of the Group's leasehold land in Mainland
China with net book value of HK$3,031,557 (2013:
HK$3,140,054) (note 14),

(iii) pledges of certain of the Group’s properties under
development with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$2,450,000,000 (2013: Nil) (note 22);

(iv) pledges of certain of the Group’s short term
time deposits amounting to HK$375,000 (2013:
HK$382,166) (note 29); and

(v) pledges of certain properties owned by a director
of a subsidiary, his spouse, his spouse’s family
member and his acquaintance.

As at 31 December 2014, a director of a subsidiary, the
spouse of the director, the spouse’s acquaintances and the
companies controlled by the acquaintances have guaranteed
repayment of certain of the Group's bank borrowings
amounting to HK$30,000,000 (2013: HK$30,573,248).

(b) All bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.

SFERITER (&

Bt

(a)

RZZE—NE+=—A=+—0  K&£H
ZRITEEUTIISEERER -

(i) PR £ ERREF (83,542,186
BT (ZZF— =4 : 3,878,999
HIr) 2R BN EF (M
513)

(ii) IR RS B RE $E3,031,557
BIT (=T — =4 : 3,140,054
FETT) 2R B A 2 S+
(Ktat14) 5

(iif) HHEARNEBEKRMEMBELS
2,450,000,000 7 (=& — =
F o\ CETEERDE (K
522)

(iv) K £ B A #375,000%

gt (= ZT — = % :382,166/8
JL) 2 ETREERER (M7
29) i &

(v) BEHE—HEBARCES-
HEg EEBZREKER
PANFER 2 BT

R-ZE—NFE+=—F=+—8  —FEHK
BARIZESRZES 2B « %G
ZAANRBEZEANEG 2 ARIRAE
% #(30,000,0008 7T (ZZ— =4 :
30,573,248 70) 2 & TIRITER ZE
BIRGHER o

FIBRITEEAAARKEEE -
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36.

170

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities

36. EIERIE

AEEECHBARBEREERFAZE

and assets during the year are as follows: g
Deferred tax liabilities
BEEHEAE
Group
rEH
Fair value
adjustments Revaluation of
arising from an available-
acquisition of for-sale
subsidiaries investment Total
WEEK B A A At
EEMN HER
AT ERAE REZE &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT JEIT
At 1 January 2013 R-_E—=F—H—H 1,103,740 34,178,933 35,282,673
Deferred tax credited to the FERFT ABZFKR ZIELE
statement of profit or loss  B$18 (H#/5210)
during the year (note 10) (122,851) - (122,851)
Deferred tax credited to FRFTFAEMEE
other comprehensive Wz 2 BT
income during the year (H1i220(c))
(note 20(c)) - (34,178,933) (34,178,933)
At 31 December 2013 and RZ-ZE—=4F
1 January 2014 +=—A=+—HK
—E-mF—-—H—H 980,889 - 980,889
Deferred tax credited to the FARFT AETREK ZIEILE
statement of profit or loss  #$I8 (#/3210)
during the year (note 10) (122,851) - (122,851)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U E& B A ] 261,725,260 - 261,725,260
At 31 December 2014 RZZBE-—NF+ZA=
+—A 262,583,298 - 262,583,298
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. ELEHIE (&)
The movements in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities AEERLEHBEEEREERNFALE
and assets during the year are as follows: (continued) BT : (&)

Deferred tax assets
EERIEEE

Group
REE

Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
taxable profits

A3 8 R 3R
FERBRR
ZEE
HK$
BT

As at 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and RZZTE—=F—HA—H - —ZT—=F+
1 January 2014 —A=+—BER=ZT-—WNE—F—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT BB 1 ) 44,030,099
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NmNF+-_A=+—H 44,030,099
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36.

172

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The following is an analysis of
the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

36.

ELERE (2)

EBHRENA ETECHEEERA
BERGAVHRREEREE - &%
EAERBREARNECHEBELE S D
Moo

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-NmEF —E-=F
HK$ HK$
B BT

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RIERETBERARER IR
in the consolidated statement of TR B BT

financial position 218,553,199 980,889

At 31 December 2014, the Group had aggregate
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$15,456,000 (2013: HK$15,456,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in the companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

RZE—WFE+Z_A=+—H" ' &
EECEARELE LN BEEBERAED
#%15,456,000%8 T (= T — = F:
15,456,000/ 7T ) + A SRR BR A /EH 8
WEBRRZRRERTEF o BRZ
EEERERFHLABE AT M
B NR AR B FE R B A A &) A
MIBEE - Bt EEREEHIEEE -
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rates range from 5% to 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2014, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
venture and associates established in Mainland China. In
the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries, joint venture and associates will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint venture and associates
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$294,407,598 at 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$343,000,286).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

36.

31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+=-_A=+—H

ELEBE (2)

RIFEFR B EEEHE - B A A
SMZINERERIEEEETIR ZRE
AEKI0%TENT - ZHER_ZZE
NEFE—A—BREM BARZZTZT+L
FHZA=t+—HABz2HE - WPERA
BN 3 B A 2 AR R T B B U
E A AIERARK ZEIRE - $AE
Eims  EANER%EI0% - A&
ERE A AT R A2 KB A A
REZEENF-A—BREEZKE
Bk 2 A% BAFETEHOR -

N-ZE—NE+-—F=+—H WEHR
AEBEFBEAMKALZHBEAR &
EWNCIDNE AN rde N Ry iy ]
ZEMBRRECHIE - EFRR - &
ZHBRAR - AR NBERRTK
EUARBERDIREZENRE - RZT—
ME+ZA=+—08 " ' HABRRFERA
MeMBAR - & ARRBE AR Z
BREBMRCEEREAEBCHRIKERES
H#)5294,407,5988 70 (ZF—=4F
343,000,286/ ) °

/

] [7) B BRUIK 8% 2 BB Y T IS B 45 4

o

>

W Bt

i
z
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. BR
Shares
Bz 3
2014 2013
—E-mE —F—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised: JATE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000/%
HK$0.10 each EREE0.10B T2
LEx 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
5,519,591,000 (2013: 5,519,591,0000%
4,619,591,000) —E—=F:
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 4,619,591,0004% ) &A%
H{E0.108 7L 2 L Ak 551,959,100 461,959,100
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share ARRIDEITRAZ BT
capital is as follows:
Number of Issued Share premium Treasury
shares in issue capital account shares reserve Total
ERTRA Ef
#H BRITRA R EER Bt &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2013 RZZ-=%—-H—H 4,661,397,000 466,139,700 173,525,782 (2,630,665) 637,034,817
Cancellation of shares repurchased F R —Z——FiE[E
in 2012 (note (a) 2R (Wist(a) (10,616,000) (1,061,600) (1,569,065) 2,630,665 -
Repurchase of shares (note (b)) BRI (##(b) (31,190,000 (3,119,000 (7,480,504) - (10,599,504)
At 31 December 2013 and R-Z-=%
1 January 2014 +-A=t-BR
—E-ME-A-H 4,619,591,000 461,959,100 164,476,213 - 626,435,313
Issue of shares (note (c)) B0 (W) 900,000,000 90,000,000 450,000,000 - 540,000,000
Share issue expenses (note (¢))  EREBR (M) - - (5396,580) - (5396,580)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF
+ZA=+-H 5519,591,000 551,959,100 609,079,633 - 1,161,038,733
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

In the prior year, the share certificates in respect of
10,616,000 shares of the Company repurchased in the
prior year had been duly cancelled. Accordingly, the issued
share capital of the Company had been reduced by the
nominal value of HK$1,061,600 and the premium paid of
HK$1,569,065 on the repurchase had been charged against
the share premium account. The treasury shares reserve of
HK$2,630,665 had been released.

In the prior year, the Company had repurchased a total
of 31,190,000 shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
at prices ranging from HK$0.305 to HK$0.36 per share
for an aggregate consideration with the relevant expenses
totalling HK$10,599,504. The relevant share certificates had
been duly cancelled as at 31 December 2013. Accordingly,
the issued share capital of the Company had been reduced
by the nominal value of HK$3,119,000 and the premium
paid of HK$7,480,504 on the repurchase had been charged
against the share premium account.

During the year, pursuant to a share placing and
subscription agreement, Tacko International Limited, an
existing shareholder of the Company, placed 900,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company to certain independent
third parties at HK$0.60 per share, and subscribed for
900,000,000 new ordinary shares issued by the Company
at the same price. The aggregate cash consideration
received, before share issue expenses, was approximately
HK$540,000,000. This transaction resulted in an increase
of the issued share capital and share premium account of
HK$90,000,000 and HK$450,000,000 respectively. Share
issue expenses of HK$5,396,580 were charged to the share
premium account accordingly.

37. B& (&

Wit

(a)

(o)

BAFE BEAZAFEEHEEZ
10,616,000/ & 2 & A% 15 B #% 1E = 5
o A - AARIBEITRABIREE
1,061,600/ 7T F10R + i B8 [B1 AR 17 B 2
i 2 % (81,569,065 7T 2 7 Ik 15 3 (B
BRIOBR o B 17 AR 1) 152,630,665/ 7T
B R

BAEFE - ARAIRERN T0.305
BILE0IB T ZERNREBBER
SHAERAR (B BE4H*
31,190,000 AR BIAR ) - BREER
HEBMA£/510,599,504%87C - 57
BER—_E—=F+_A=+—HELE
Xl o Bt - RARBBEITRABR
M 1E3,119,0005%8 7T H1 &, + 1 B [ A% 17
B S 1 2 3% (87,480,504 JL B 1 I 19
i B RRI0RR o

FR-BEROES RRBEHE -
AR — 4B F RTacko International
LimitediZ & A%0.607% 7T #% A A A ~
900,000,000 EmR R HELE &5 T
BYE=7  WAREBEREERLNR
%% 47 ,2900,000,0000% 31 & @ AR A 7 ©
BHARSRE CRHERER) A
540,000,000/ T ° % X 5 8B B #17
A% 7R K2 & 1) 4 (B BR 43 Bl 3% HhN90,000,000
7 JT %450,000,000 JT ° 5,396,580
87T 2 B IR B A TR FE R AR 10 i B R 4N
% o
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 38. BR#ESTE
At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, RZZE—NFRAZTNAERITZRE
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the BFERE L ARARNT —BERE
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and T8 ([ZEHE]) - BEREEREE X
rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the BEREKRELERcGERSEE
business development and growth of the Group and RALAUE N 2R - AR AR B B R
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees BEEIWRSIKEBHRNEEEFE
and attract or retain human resources that are valuable B2 AT - BERAZETEIAK - KT
to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no —mWFE+ZA=+—8  BEREZ
options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled Bl 176 R FEHEREARITRE
or outstanding thereunder as at 31 December 2014. 2 EARiE o
Major terms of the Scheme include: ZETEl 2 FZ BRI
1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide 1. ZtElEEMB2EEREHE -

incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are any individual 2. ZitElz 2EERARARHEA
being employees, officers or consultants of the B A RET B it RZ i E
Company or any of its subsidiaries including RAZzEE  afBEEMEHE
any executive or non-executive directors thereof AAL - BIEERRITSIENTT
whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of =
the world.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

3.

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme, together with all options to be
granted under any other share option schemes of
any member of the Group, must not in aggregate
represent more than 10% of the total number of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Scheme. The Company may
refresh this 10% limit at any time subject to prior
approval given by its shareholders at a general
meeting. The overall limit on the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme, together with all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under any
other share option schemes of any member of the
Group, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time. No options may be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
any member of the Group if such grant will result
in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or
to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of the shares of the Company in issue as
at the proposed grant date.

An option may be exercised at any time during
a period of 10 years commencing on the date
falling three months after the date of grant.

A grant of an option must be accepted within 28
days from the date of grant together with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1.00.

38. BRESTE (&)

3.

RITEREZTEEE 2B 8
Bt - ERBEAEETMKE
™ B B 1 ] E A B AR M A B
ZFBBREMAREEITZRG
BEH - THEBBRZTERM
EHARBEBITRMNDEBEE 2
10% ° KNR A A BERF B #T5%10%
ER - MERBREARE EERE
ERHE - ATERBZAEIE
T AR AT R 2 BT M AR T (B
R4 - ERITERBEAERTM
X B A B 8 1 fa] E At B AR #E 5t 2l
B ARITEZ B MARITE
RERRAE M AT BE 1T 2 AR 1D B 2K -
TEBBARRTEEZEITRGD
BEZ30% © MIREZET 8 kA
EEEAIKE R A EA A g
i B ERES RSB
Fiai30% 2 EBR - AT FHETE
AR HE -

RER+ @A B RTERE
%At B N AR 2 B AR] H A B AR
RRERE K TR Y 2 B RE
(THETHE - EFEHIHAKRTT
&) MBETRETHRITZRMNDA
2 THREBEARAREZRRK
AHZERITIRNEEZ1% °

BREREL R =(EA &
- F M ARER T o

B AN R L B H%Z28H N
4 WA AR [B 5038 1.00
BIT °
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 38. BRAEGE (&)

7. The price on exercise of an option to subscribe 7. RIEZE TR T HRERS
for shares granted pursuant to the Scheme shall ZEREZITEERAR N2 &
be the highest of: SE
(@)  the closing price of the shares as stated in (a) MNIEXEBH(BEAEL%R)

the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet B ERRERAZ
on the date of grant, which must be a WifE :

business day;

(b)  the average of the closing prices of the by REEBERERD (AE
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s M) BEARTAMEE %H
daily quotation sheets for the five business RERZ P B WEBE XY
days immediately preceding the date Z B FEHWTE K&
of grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares of the (c) RABRDEE -
Company.

8. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a 8. Zirgl =T —mWFRAZ TN
period of 10 years commencing on 28 May st +FHEBRRER T
2014 and thereafter for as long as there are MR Ll +FEBEMAE & E R
outstanding options granted and accepted B MARI TR B AT T(E -

pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the
said 10-year period and in order to give effect to
the exercise of any such options.

Share options did not confer rights on the holders to BRETERTHRAEAZEREINK
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. HARE EREZER -

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of R EBRRRAGBREEIAEE R
approval of these financial statements, there were no A 45 1R R AT 2 B LA o

share options outstanding.

178



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETXBEBREZER (FE8) BRAF

Annual Report 2014
“E-FEFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3 3% M 5

31 December 2014 —ZE—N4&+_-A=+—H

39. RESERVES
(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 52 to 55 of this
annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of
certain subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned
enterprises in Mainland China and the relevant
PRC Company Law, the subsidiaries shall make
an allocation from their profit after tax at the
rate of 10% to the statutory surplus reserve
fund, until such reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the subsidiaries. Part of the
statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
the subsidiaries’ registered capital, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital of
the subsidiaries. The statutory reserve will be
reclassified to retained profits upon the disposal
of the subsidiaries.

39. f#f#

(a)

REH

AEBAFERBEFEZHB
BLFEEDHENAFRFES2E
EFRSSAZEAREEHRNA -

RIBETRFPBEAMAINEDE
FREEZHB AR ZARIER
RIAEPBERQRNED - ZEH B
NAAKEBRTE R Z10%
BEErE EE  EZEBHE
EEZEWBRARZIMEARZ
50% ° BIAEATESET A
ZEWBRARZAMER - R
EEREZATHEHBTDREZ
ZEWBRREMEARZ25% /&
ERBRZENB R R LHER
BEFDEEBEEEH -
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39. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company

39. f&#fE (&)

(b) ZA2TF
Share premium Treasury  Contributed Retained
account shares reserve surplus profits Total
ER
REEEE Ryt E N4 BRER CHI
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
V-3 V-3 V-8 V-3 AT

At 1 January 2013 R-E-ZF-A-H

Total comprehensive income for rERANGES
the year

Cancellation of shares repurchased ~ H#H-E——EfEE7

173525782 (2,630,665 5243300 180,308,533 356,446,950

- - - (33,626,986)  (33,626,986)

in 2012 (note 37(a)) B ((Hi3703) (1,569,065) 2,630,665 - - 1,061,600
Repurchase of shares (note 37(b) BRI (##37(b) (7,480,504) - - - (7,480,504)
At 31 December 2013 and R-E-=E+-A=1t-Ak

1 January 2014 ~“2-MF-A-H 164,476,213 - 5,243,300 146,681,547 316,401,060
Total comprehensive income for rERANGES

the year - - - (49,737,247) (49,737,247)
Issue of shares (note 37(c)) B0 (M237() 450,000,000 = = - 450,000,000
Share issue expense (note 37(c) BIRER (W2370) (5,396,580) - - - (5396,580)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-RET-F=+-H 609,079,633 - 5243300 96,944,300 711,267,233

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the consolidated net
asset value of Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) Limited
on 20 November 1991, when its entire issued
share capital was acquired by the Company
pursuant to a group reorganisation, over the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued
in consideration for such acquisition, net of
accumulated losses of the Company set off in the
prior years. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of
Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company
is distributable to shareholders under certain

circumstances.

The Company’s share premium account of
HK$609,079,633 (2013: HK$164,476,213) as
at 31 December 2014 may be distributed in the

form of fully paid bonus shares.
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BLBR— NN —FT—AZ+TRHEA
Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) Limited&®
B2 BT MR ANES  Far East Aluminium
(B.V.l) LimitedZ #7& & E FEBE A
AEERBEREMBITZROBEEZ
T WEHNBRRBTFERE AR
RIZEEE - BEBEBREQRNE AN
— ARBRZBARBESETBERTH
oIk T ERE -

ARABR-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—HZ
A7 % B B:609,079,6338 T (—Z 2 —=
F 1 164,476,213 70) Al AR AIRR /5
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BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 1 December 2014, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Onfield International Limited,
a fellow subsidiary of the Company, to acquire a 100%
equity interest in Ease Triumph (the “Acquisition”).
Ease Triumph Group is engaged in the development
and sale of properties. On 30 December 2014, the
Acquisition was completed and approved at the
shareholders’ meeting. Further details of the transaction
are included in note 44(b) to the financial statements.
In the opinion of the directors, the Acquisition can help
to enhance the Group’s growth potential and benefit
the existing shareholders in the long run. The purchase
consideration for the Acquisition was in the form of cash
of HK$325,881,324, which was paid on 30 December
2014.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interests in Ease Triumph Group at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of Ease Triumph Group’s
identifiable net assets.

40.

31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+=-_A=+—H

TESH
R-_E—WNEF+_-_A—B ' A&EH
B QR Z R XK B A Fonfield
International Limitedz] 37 B & # & -
AU BE IR EE 2 100% A A (T BE =
B - HmESBEREMEEEREE
¥% - -RZE—WF+ZA=+H K
BEEHINUERRASESIHE -5
MXEME—FTERNBERERUBREK
Miztddb) - EFERE - WEFEEH
RESAEBENERENRRERES
R WESENEEREAE
325,881,324 ERZE—WF+
ZA=FTAXT-

7R S R 4 45 S AR AR A 9 R
EE L RTEN ES EE LOEE
FERRERS ©
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40.

182

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 40.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

Ease Triumph Group as at the date of acquisition were

as follows:

RE0F (F)

HEEEREEASNAENEERE
B2AFEDT

Fair value
recognised on

acquisition

i i B

PR D FE

Notes HK$

liogza B

Property, plant and equipment Y - EMEZE 13 1,363

Properties under development
Prepayments, deposits and other

BRTME

22 4,950,000,000

BENFOE - me A RYERR

receivables 1,124,076,640
Prepaid taxes TR 28 120,981,203
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEE 106,594,720
Due to fellow subsidiaries ARIEE NIEMNGT 30 (123,399,741)
Due to non-controlling shareholders of  FEfTHB A &) 2 JEIZAR AR

subsidiaries 31 (49,733,993)
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KRKERRKBARMNER 32 (2,361,837,500)
Other payables and accruals HERRIERERTE A (37,113,385)
Customer deposits el A (1,757,151,933)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITER

- non-current — JERE 35 (665,060,715)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIBRE (217,695,161)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value & A (EFHER A4 7E EE%E 1,089,661,498
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR RS (594,557,717)

495,103,781

Gain on bargain purchase recognised R ERRERD

in the consolidated statement of AE k=S

profit or loss (169,222,457)
Satisfied by cash RETN 325,881,324

A gain on bargain purchase was resulted as the

consideration reflected a discount to the reassessed net

asset value of Ease Triumph Group. Reassessed net asset

value discount is one of the common methodologies

used by investors when determining the valuation of real

estate companies or assets.

ARERNESEBKEGREEFER
& MELZBRBNRE RETEE
ECERNEEZMHER KEBEEF
EfERREERAZEBRE AL —
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair value of other receivables as at the date
of acquisition amounted to HK$1,106,090. The
gross contractual amount of other receivables was
HK$1,106,090 and is expected to be collectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$4,756,563
for the Acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of Ease Triumph Group is as follows:

40.

31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+=-_A=+—H

ERE6t (F)

HtEWEFARN BB 2 ATER
1,106,090 7T ° EfhEU AR A B E LY
©E 41,106,090/ 7T « TEHIZE Y
aylgE o

AEBRUBESEHEANZTINA A
4,756,563 7T c ZER HN LD HIE
RERAERE WG BEERANIIETT
HEREA -

RBBEBRESEFELONR SRS TN
T~

HKS$

BT

Cash consideration HWERE (325,881,324)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired FIEENRE MR eEE 106,594,720
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents PABEEHEEZREREZ

included in cash flows from investing activities R4 RIR&E(E R L F58 (219,286,604)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in FIAKEEFEFEAZHEREY

cash flows from operating activities W BB 22 5 P AR (4,756,563)

(224,043,167)

Since the acquisition, there was no contribution from
Ease Triumph Group to the Group’s turnover and to
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue from continuing operations
of the Group and the loss of the Group for the year
would have been HK$70,856,151 and HK$104,326,969,
respectively.

W%  MEEEBRERAERZ &
EhHE—_E—NUF+_A=+—H01
FEZEARMELER -

& GEREER - RFEREREEFF
BRERBZ WS RAREERSD 5
#%70,856,151/8 7T }2104,326,969/& 7T
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 41. REBPHOTH
As lessee ERABEA
The Group and the Company leases its office premises AEERARQRRBETATHESELCEELD
and a director’s apartment under non-cancellable ZHERERAEMERESELAE M
operating lease arrangements with terms ranging from HRE—Z=%-

one to three years.

At 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company RZZE—NE+ZA=+—8 " REN
had total future minimum lease payments under non- FULAT BB T RSEEERLD
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: REBRARRQRFHE R EHELAKEERN

He@mEImT

Group Company
rEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-mFE _—ZT—= —E-mE —T—=fF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT
Within one year —FER 2,061,495 2,018,153 612,000 576,600
In the second to fifth years, FE-ZFRHF
inclusive (BIEEE
MF) 1,795,328 1,818,865 - -
3,856,823 3,837,018 612,000 576,000
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COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments in note
41 above, the Group had the following commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

31 December 2014 —ZE—MWF+=-F=+—H

Ay

B b XM 2 @EMAAESN - K
BN EHRAE AT A -

Group

AEE
2014 2013
—E—-MF —E—=F
HKS$ HK$
B BT

Contracted, but not provided for: ERTAVE M AR B

Establishment of a joint venture (note) ST &% R &l (H5E) 50,000,000 50,955,414
Property development expenditure MEREZE 586,158,634 -
636,158,634 50,955,414

Note:

On 4 January 2006, Sino-Aviation Investments, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement
(the "JV Agreement”) with AVIC International, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and Chengdu Aircraft Industry (Group)
Corporation Ltd. (“Chengdu Aircraft”), for the establishment
of a joint venture to engage in the research and development,
design and manufacture of parts and components for commercial
aircraft, and provision of related technical services. According to
the JV Agreement, the total registered capital of the joint venture
is RMB100 million (equivalent to approximately HK$125 million),
of which 40%, 15% and 45% respectively, will be contributed
by Sino-Aviation Investments, AVIC International and Chengdu
Aircraft. The JV Agreement is conditional upon (i) the internal
approval obtained by each of the three parties; and (ii) the approval
from the relevant PRC authorities. As at 31 December 2014, the JV
Agreement has not become effective as the conditions stated above
have not been fulfilled.

Wit

RZZEXNF—ANA  ARRAIZE2EWBA
AJSino-Aviation InvestmentsfE2 A A Al Z £ B
REFMEERKBRETE (SF) BRE
FERF ([RERE] sT L& EHE ([&EH
B UK —REERT REMARKE
B2 A - SRt R EE - DA RIRAUERE R T AR
%o BEEEHE a8 RARCHTMERR
100,000,0007C A R# (1854 49125,000,000/%
JL) » ErSino-Aviation Investments * # i BB
K R EBRAEA D BT EA0% ~ 15% K45% ° &
LA AFATREERETSER - B1E0)=
FEBREENHIE  R>NVESEBAPEEE
HE -BE_ZT—NF+_A=1T—H BHRE
TG R AR - B LR A B R R AR o
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43,

186

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. HAREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities R EBR - WA FHRERIE L BE
not provided for in the financial statements were as ZEARBELT
follows:
Group Company
rEE b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—= —E-mFE —T—=
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Guarantee given to a bank Ft— RN B R 7]
in connection with facility B ZEZEMmA
granted to a subsidiary IRITIRE ZER
(note (a)) (Ktit(a)) - - 93,000,000 93,000,000
Guarantees given to MAEEYEZ
banks for housing loans BRERZER
extended by the banks ERmmiRITiz
to the purchasers of the TR ER
Group's properties for HRBEREER
a period from the date 2 BREERE
of loans being granted BMEFER R
to the purchasers up to 1k (K77Eb))
the date of issuance of
property title certificates
to the purchasers
(note (b)) 56,974,595 - = -
56,974,595 - 93,000,000 93,000,000
Notes: Wit

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the banking facility
granted to a subsidiary subject to guarantee given to the

bank by the Company was not utilised.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the

directors consider that in case of default in payments by the

purchasers, the net realisable value of the related properties

will be sufficient to cover the repayment of the outstanding

loan principals together with the accrued interests and

penalties and therefore no provision has been made in the

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

for the guarantees.

RZTZ—NER=_FT—=F+=-A=+
—H - UESHAR-HENBEARBERAR
RElMRITHELERMES ZRITE
o
ZERZATFELTER  MEESR
B B-BREBRMAFR BEMEZA
BEFES R ANKEEZRERZER
NG VA R ERTFI S AENK - BE IR
HE-Z-—NF+-_A=+—BLFE
2 MBS ZIERIEE MR
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44, BEARS
(a) In addition to the transactions described (a) BB RIS AR Z RGN

elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year:

AREBERFRDETIA TR

R

2014 2013
—E2-mF —E—=F
Notes HKS$ HK$
it B BT
Interest income on loans to A A RIRENEZRZ
related companies F BUA (i) 1,780,305 1,132,076
Associates: iz /N I
Interest income on mEERNRBEITZ
a convertible bond AR ES 2 FIE
issued by an associate WA (ii) 1,035,517 1,035,517
Interest income on loans A E AR ENER
to associates Z A B A (iif) 716,981 1,600,364
Notes: Hiet -
(i) Details of the loans to related companies are set (i) MBI R RIRENERZFES
out in note 25 to the financial statements. BN IS MR TE25 ©
(ii) The interest income represented interest income on (ii) ZA B A TS AR i AR Py 8
the convertible bond issued by AVIC Joy. Details of Tz BRERFZMEHRA -
the convertible bond are set out in note 20(b) to R ERF 2 FBHR IR
the financial statements. KHFEE20(b) °
(iii) Details of the loans to associates are set out in note (iii) MEENRIRENERZFHE
18 to the financial statements. RIS MR LS ©
Other transaction with related party: (b) HEAM T EIT RS

During the year, the Group acquired Ease Triumph
Group from a fellow subsidiary of the Company
at a cash consideration of HK$325,881,324.
Further details of the transaction are included in
note 40 to the financial statements.

FRAEBLLESRE
325,881,324 Lt A A Al Z [
ZWBARIWIBHRESER - ZX
2B IBEH NI F KR M
40 -
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44, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

(iii)

Details of the Group’s loans to associates
as at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Details of terms of the convertible bonds
issued by an associate are disclosed in note
20(b) to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s loans to related
companies as at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in note 25 to the
financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries are disclosed in note 30
to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
are disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s loans from fellow
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of

BRBLIXS (&)

(0 BB ZKBERR

(i)  MMEBR - KNEEF
ERRRENERZFHB

REFTEFRTMIFT 18155 -

(i) BEEARBITZAIMBIE
FZGERFBRMBHRE
B FE20(b) & °

(i) ANSR R H AR () A B
RARENERZFER
BA TS R FE 25 FE -

(iv)  AEBEMSRRHKERR
IR B 5 R
FE30HEE -

(v) AEEEMHEBARZIE
BRI R IR BN
BIKRMFEI1KE -

i) AEBERERZRAMEBEARR
MNERZHBRI B RE
MsE32 5 -

(d) AEEREREEASZ®MM

the Group:

2014 2013
=F-mF —T=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short term employee benefits HHEEEF 11,565,236 6,242,150
Post-employment benefits EREREA 310,971 310,971

Total compensation paid to key XfEEHEEREAEZ
management personnel RENazE 11,876,207 6,553,121

Furthe

r details of directors’ emoluments are

included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transaction in respect of item (b) above
also constitutes a connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. EWMIESE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBEEHR - SEAzcemITAREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N
period are as follows:
Group
rEE
2014
=t
Financial assets
MBEE
Financial

assets at fair

Available-for-

value through Loans and sale financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
BAVE
FFABEZ BERR A ER
BBEE e BMBEE &&t
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Available-for-sale investments  A] it & #)#% & - - 172,842,117 172,842,117
Trade and bills receivables EWE FRARER - 19,378,421 - 19,378,421
Loans to related companies EIEREE A Rl A
X - 38,500,000 - 38,500,000
Financial assets included in STATEMNFUE &
prepayments, deposits and R EL A g I AR SR Y
other receivables MBEE - 71,070,341 - 71,070,341
Equity investment at fair value ZATFEFABZZ
through profit or loss BARIGE 166,796,500 - - 166,796,500
Derivative financial instruments $744f T A 150,870,293 - - 150,870,293
Time deposit with original RSKEREIBE RS
maturity of more than three  ={E A 7 EHEX
months when acquired - 155,588,337 - 155,588,337
Pledged time deposits BRI E R - 375,000 - 375,000
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEE - 1,093,360,875 - 1,093,360,875
317,666,793 1,378,272,974 172,842,117 1,868,781,884
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. €I EDE (&

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RE|ERR ST AREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting W (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

Group (continued)

TEM (&)

2014 (continued)

Financial liabilities

P SR

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBHRAE
SR
BKkeE
HKS
BT
Due to fellow subsidiaries FERT R KM B AF] 123,399,741

Due to non-controlling shareholders of JEASTFT BB A B) 2 FEFE AR AR 3R
subsidiaries 49,733,993
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REARRMEBRRNER 2,361,837,500
Trade and bills payables B E SRR RER 8,494,860
Other payables and accruals HMERNFIERERER 46,419,912
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ATEIRITER 704,685,715
3,294,571,721
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. €WMIEDHE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RE|ERAR SEMNzeMIAREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting W (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

Group (continued)

rRE (&)
2013

p— =

Financial assets

HBEE
Financial assets
at fair value Available-for-
through profit Loansand  sale financial
or loss receivables assets Total
BERFE
AFABRZ xR AIHER
B EE JE B R BBEE ast
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT

Available-for-sale investments 7] £ H & KA -
Trade and bills receivables EWE SR M

204,523,519 204,523,519

ES7 - 14,862,874 - 14,862,874

Loans to associates B & QAR
EEA - 50,426,752 - 50,426,752

Loans to related companies  [a] BAB% A TIHR L HY
EEN - 20,127,389 - 20,127,389

Financial assets included in sFAFER R 1%

prepayments, deposits and & I E fth fE U AR
other receivables BT E B - 69,117,764 - 69,117,764

Equity investment at fair value 32 A F(HET A
through profit or loss ZREARIEE 8,381,000 - - 8,381,000
Derivative financial instruments {74 g T E 226,062,145 - - 226,062,145
Pledged time deposits BT HER - 382,166 - 382,166
Cash and cash equivalents BekBESEE - 1,079,008,484 - 1,079,008,484

234,443,145 1,233,925,429 204,523,519 1,672,892,093
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45, €®MIBHHE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RE|ERR ST AREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting W (4E)

period are as follows: (continued)

Group (continued)

AER (&)
2013 (continued)
—E-=F ()
Financial liabilities
MKEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
bi7e: FicIDWN
FIRMB B EE
HK$
BT
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of FEATRT B R &),z FEFERR AR R
a subsidiary 160,833
Trade and bills payables BB SERARER 6,571,758
Other payables and accruals HAth ET SR IE R FERT B A 11,095,205
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEIRTTER 40,382,165
58,209,961
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45, @I BHE (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RE|ERAR SEMNzeMIAREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting W (&)
period are as follows: (continued)
Company
¥ NN
Financial assets
2014 2013
—E-QF “E-=f
Available- Available-
for-sale for-sale
Loans and financial Loans and financial
receivables asset Total receivables asset Total
ERE  THEEN ERR  WHEER
R HEEE &it FWER BHBEE ait
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT AT
Available-for-sale investment - 2,680,300 2,680,300 - 2,680,300 2,680,300
Financial assets included in STARNZR  Re R EM
prepayments, deposits and other BB ARE
receivables 7,286,325 - 7,286,325 6,883,373 - 6,883,373
Due from a subsidiary A 925,873 - 925,873 6,474,000 - 6,474,000
Cash and cash equivalents 370,629,796 - 370,629,796 10,306,510 - 10,306,510
378,841,994 2,680,300 381,522,294 23,663,883 2,680,300 26,344,183
Financial liabilities
U S=Ri
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBER AT RN KAE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Other payables and accruals E b RIB N BT E A 16,056,787 8,756,816
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46.

194

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial instruments, other than those
with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to
fair values, are as follows:

46.

I E

EMTACZATFTERAFEER

AEERARBEBRTEZERERR
FE(RREEEATFEARERAEER
5N) EHIEAE

Group
AEE
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AFHE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T-—=F ZZE-NE —T—=
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets BREE
Loans to associates, BN
non-current portion BWER - ERE
BB - 38,324,841 - 38,049,172
Loans to related companies, [A @38 A TR
non-current portion BWER - ERE
B 18,750,000 20,127,389 18,787,957 20,127,389
Available-for-sale AEHENERE
investments 172,842,117 204,523,519 172,842,117 204,523,519
Equity investment at fair B A F(EE AR
value through profit or w2 BRI E
loss 166,796,500 8,381,000 166,796,500 8,381,000
Derivative financial PTHEemIA
instruments 150,870,293 226,062,145 150,870,293 226,062,145
509,258,910 497,418,894 509,296,867 497,143,225
Financial liabilities gy =R
Loans from a fellow RERRKBA
subsidiary, non-current AIMER - FER
portion BRI ) 258,750,000 - 249,831,333 -
Interest-bearing bank FEIRITER
borrowings, non-current e B ER (D
portion 665,060,715 - 605,279,822 -
923,810,715 — 855,111,155 -
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial instruments, other than those
with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to
fair values, are as follows: (continued)

31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+=-_A=+—H

EMITAZAFERAFEER
HE (&)
FAEBRAATSBTAZ BABRA
TE(AEAERATEAREEER
5N BIVAT ¢ ()

Company
¥ /N
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE ATE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-UE —T—=F ZZEBE-NFE —T—=
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT
Financial asset BREE
Available-for-sale
investment AHHENKRE 2,680,300 2,680,300 2,680,300 2,680,300

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
and bills receivables, loans to associates, loans to related
companies, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, time deposit, pledged
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries, loans from fellow subsidiaries,
trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals,
and interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

ERECHHRKREZRAREE [
BanmiRHMER  REEQRREHN
MER - SHATENFR - e MEAME
WERRHM B EE - EHFER 2 ER
EHER ReMkReEE  ENNE
NEZ IR IR - AR R B
REIFIE - KERRMBERRHER
ENEZERLRRE - HMENFKIAR
EEHER AR EBRITERZAFE
HEXFZEREERE  TEREHANZK
ETAREHANEE -
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46.

196

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the deputy
chief financial officer is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The deputy chief financial
officer reports directly to the chief financial officer. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer and then reported to the chief executive
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of loans to
associates, loans to related companies, loans from a
fellow subsidiary and interest-bearing bank borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
loans from a fellow subsidiary and interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2014 was assessed to be
insignificant.

46.

EMIRAZAFERAFEER
HE (&)

P BB B4R BE A8 2 AN SR B 2 B RS RO P
BEMTSRTAATENEZHER
BF-ANBRASEENNBRER
o REMBERLE  MBHPIDTS
MTANEEZHILETHETERN
TESH - BEAMBREEZRE
A ETRE TITBRER - HEBER
o R G4 R A o B I R S e R
BELEEFHITHR -

MBEERBBZAFEFABRE (M
FEERBREE) RHETREAXR
SRAEMTEAZSBEA °

Rl A A
=5

SEATITALR

B = R AR R ES - AR ARIRE
HOER KERRXMBRARWER
Kt BRITERNIERB H O AF
B EBRLGER - 8RR LT R
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments, including PMH Derivatives and AVIC Joy
Derivative, have been estimated using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are supported
by observable market prices or rates. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were
the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with various counterparties. PMH Deferred CB and
Broadlink Derivative were measured using valuation
models which incorporate various market observable
inputs including the credit quality of counterparties
and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of PMH
Deferred CB and Broadlink Derivative were the same as
their fair values. As at 31 December 2014, the marked
to market value of the above derivative asset position
was net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable to
derivative counterparty default risk.

46.
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EMTAZATFERLAFESER
HE (&)
ERBRARE 2 A FETIAPBRHEE
RER - SFEMAHLENRERITE
ERMITA(BRERXTEZRITETAR
ERERITETR) ZRAFETAGE
R RAE  ZEERNRAZ RRE
BrRIBEmERLRIERXT - EFR
o BRA MBI RS IR ERN
P82 R EARE M 2 Y S & 4R
EHESERANRHZAFEEBES B
BE  RHmEHK  HEER/RE -

AEFESRZEZSHRIUITESRHITA
EH e RTEHERECEAIBERES R
Broadlink#/T& T EIKA G ZIEM 5 A]
R ABBOHERIETTE 8
BRGHTNEELEERFIREE - X T
(8] 472 A% 3 AE ] #2 A% f& % K Broadlink T4
TANREBESEREATE  RZT—
ME+=—A=+—8  ElTEEER
ERMERHBRENTETAERGHEY
REfpmEENEEGERE o
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46.

198

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
UAFENEZRE :

Group

AEHE

46.

EMTAZAFERAIFESR
HE (&)
TRAFARBRAAASRIALA
FEHESR

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTERETAFEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBM S EATHEE EBEAFUEHE
IRE WABE WARE
(B—#) (B=H) (B=8%) Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-NE+=A
=t+—H
Available-for-sale investments: aJ{tHERIKE -
Debt investments BBREKRE 5,070,300 167,771,817 - 172,842,117
Equity investment at fair value 1ZATEFABRZ
through profit or loss AR E 166,796,500 - - 166,796,500
Derivative financial instruments T4 & F T E - 150,870,293 - 150,870,293
171,866,800 318,642,110 - 490,508,910
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZB-—=F+=A
=+-—H
Available-for-sale investments: aJ{tHEHKRE :
Debt investments BBEERE 5,115,969 199,407,550 - 204,523,519
Equity investment at fair value 1RATEE AR
through profit or loss BRAEZE 8,381,000 - - 8,381,000
Derivative financial instruments T4 &8 TE - 226,062,145 - 226,062,145
13,496,969 425,469,695 - 438,966,664
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OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

UAFEFNEZEE : (&)

Company

AT

46.

EMTAZATFERLAFESER

HE (#&)

Fair value measurement using

ERUTREETAFETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERM S EATHE EBEAFTUHE
HRE WAEE WARE
(£—%&) (=) (B=8) &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE-NFE+=A
=t+—H
Available-for-sale investment: Al HHEHIEE :
Debt investment BEBRE 2,680,300 - - 2,680,300
As at 31 December 2013 R=-BE-=%+=A
=+-—H
Available-for-sale investment:  A[{tHHEHIRE :
Debt investment BB E 2,680,300 - - 2,680,300
The Group and the Company did not have any financial RZE-—NEFR-ZT—=F+=A=+
— B AEEERARAE L EEAIZRRAF

liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2014

and 2013.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2013: Nil).

EFfEZHHALE -

TR BHEEMRMBREZE —HR
F_MEHEEBEB R FESE - TE
BAFEHE=R (ZFT—=F &) -
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

BERBEAVEZEE:

Group
=M

46.

HE (&)

Fair value measurement using

ERUTREETAFETE

EMTAZATFERAFESER

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIEBTS EXTBE EATTHE
MERE BWAZE BWAHE
(E—%&) (B=#) (B=4) &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—IEF
+=-RA=+—H
Loans to related companies,  [AIEHE A FHIRENE
non-current portion o IEREED - 18,787,957 - 18,787,957
As at 31 December 2013 N-E—=F
+t=ZA=1+—H
Loans to associates, BN RRENE
non-current portion o IERENED - 38,049,172 - 38,049,172
Loans to related companies,  [RIEB A TIRENE
non-current portion o0 IERE IS - 20,127,389 - 20,127,389
- 58,176,561 - 58,176,561
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. 2RI EZAFERAFEEH
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) HE (&)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

EREQATFEZAE:

Group
REE
Fair value measurement using
EANT & BT AT EH B

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WiERT 5 BEATEE EBEATTEER
H|RE WABE WABE

(£—%&) (=) (=) &t
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2014 RIZE—NF
+=B=+—-H
Loans from a fellow subsidiary, & R ZK B2 A4
non-current portion 53 ERnBHBH - 249,831,333 - 249,831,333
Interest-bearing bank STEIRITER 3R
borrowings, non-current EEbn
portion - 605,279,822 - 605,279,822
- 855,111,155 - 855,111,155
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47.

202

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’'s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and
short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities, such as trade and bills receivables and
trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency exposures primarily arise
from certain sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
In view of the fact that the Group tries to match its
assets and liabilities with the same currency, the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

47.

B ERERE B FERBER

AEENTFESRIA (MIENTE) B
RITERLRE RERFR - LETR
TEMIZAZRRAEENEERM
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, time deposit
with original maturity of more than three months
when acquired, pledged time deposits, available-for-
sale investments, derivative financial instruments,
deposits and other receivables, and loans to associates
and related companies, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade and bills receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank loans and loans from fellow subsidiaries. The
Group’s policy is to minimise borrowings.

47.

31 December 2014 —ZE—MF+=-_A=+—H
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47.

204

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,

47. HERAREEEEREE (£)

REBMERE (&)

RBERR > AEBERARREREF
WERMRNRZMBRERE RN

based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as N
follows:
Group
rE
2014
“B-IF
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1-5years Total
SR ZEANLR
RERE ) I e ) it &3t
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
B A B BT AT
Due to fellow subsidiaries IR SIEENGT 123,399,741 - - - 123,399,741
Due to non-controlling VAN B E NG =
shareholders of subsidiaries AR A% R 49,733,993 - - - 49,733,993
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KEREMERARN
BEX - 526,670,938 1,760,374,063 278,250,000 2,565,295,001
Trade and bills payables JENE SRR N EE - 5,635,680 2,859,180 = 8,494,860
Other payables and accruals HAth S 508 N AT
- di - 46,419,912 - - 46419912
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 58 8R17 & 5K - 15344793 68,800,472 701448274 785593539
173,133,734 594,071,323 1,832,033,715 979,698,274 3,578,937,046
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
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47. HIERAREEEEREE (£)

Liquidity risk (continued) REERR (2)
Group (continued)
AER (&)
2013
—T-=%
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
PR ZEAULER
RERE =R PRT+=HER A&t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Due to a non-controlling shareholder & 2 &) 7 FEI2 A% AR R
of a subsidiary 160,833 - - 160,833
Trade and bills payables ERESERREE - 3,856,852 2,714,906 6,571,758
Other payables and accruals HEMENRERESER - 11,095,205 - 11,095,205
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERETER - 4,655,096 37,244,459 41,899,555
160,833 19,607,153 39,959,365 59,727,351
Company
¥ NN
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=
On demand On demand
RERE R E K
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other payables and accruals E b FIE N ERTE A 16,056,787 8,756,816

The Company is also exposed to liquidity risk through
the granting of financial guarantees, further details
of which are disclosed in note 43 to the financial

statements.

AR B I h B S R R T R B 1
Rk - E— T FHIER BRI 43

%o
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47.

206

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
financial instruments decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from a listed equity investment classified as
trading equity investment (note 27) as at 31 December
2014. The Group's listed equity investment is listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and is valued at quoted
market price at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading

47.

BHEREZEEREE (&)

PR 1B B

P (B 20 B B R S 45 SRR SF e M8 Bl 7 55
BEZFMESHTARFERENE
2o R-_ZF—ONFE+-_A=+—H" XK
SEASZDBREBERNKRE (#it27)
ZEMBRAREREE 2BRERR - &
SEETERAREINE BB ML
W WIRREMRABRMEGE -

FRAKEOHRE PR Z B PTHE T
BEEXSAMERERBEIERFRNZ

day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and BRRsEIHEAT
its respective highest and lowest points during the year
were as follows:
31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2014 2014 2013 2013
—B-lmF &/ “T-=F &5/
tZA=1-H ZE-mE t-A=1-H —T-=F
Hong Kong B
- Hang Seng Index — AR 23,605 25,318/21,182 22,656 22,666/18,185

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 1% change in the fair values of the listed equity
investments and the underlying equity investments
of the derivative financial instruments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.

THREVW  ERMBEMABEZETT
SDARTFHBMEZEZNEET  ERWE
MR ETRARERITESRIT A ZE
Mk E  REE HATESHE
1% BRE o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. BiBREBEEBEBERBEK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued) RERE (&)
Carrying Increase/
amount of (decrease) in Increase/
financial profit before (decrease) in
instruments tax equity*
SRMIAEZ BiArEF EFEm
BREE  #®mCEd) (RD) *
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT
2014 —E2-mF
Investment listed in Hong Kong M&E®E tZ&RE
— Equity investment at fair —BRATFEFAER
value through profit or 2RI E 1,667,965/
loss 166,796,500 (1,667,965) -
PMH Derivatives KTIEEZERITETR 2,720,228/
125,373,037 (1,758,642) -
AVIC Joy Derivative FRIERITETA 722,186/
25,497,256 (730,944) -
2013 —E—=
Investment listed in Hong Kong M&B FH2RE
- Equity investment at fair —BAFEFABEE
value through profit or 2 RIS E 83,810/
loss 8,381,000 (83,810) -
PMH Derivatives RATEERTETER 2,184,327/
167,586,217 (2,184,030) -
PMH Deferred CB R TEERIELE R E
= 163,228/
23,843,651 (163,205) -
AVIC Joy Derivative FRERITETA 237,734/
7,458,647 (384,682) -
Broadlink Derivative Broadlink{TAE T & 88,437/
27,173,630 (83,066) -

Excluding retained profits

T EEEFEF
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47.

48.

208

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Management considers a gearing
ratio of not more than 40% as reasonable. The gearing
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

47.

BHEREZEREREE (&)

EXERE

AEBEAEEMNEERR  BERAE
SEABRERRMRES  BEFRR
MEBERL R UXFFHEEREE - FI
AR RER -

AEERBLCEBANES RIEBEE
MRS EEEEREELIEL S
o BREFBNAERERNERE  AEEA
BEEREMRRIRENRE - MERR
B & ARFBEITHR - REETEZHIR
AR ENZERTRK - HEZF—
NFE+—A=+—HEZZE—=F+=
A=+t—HLEFERN EXEERE
1= BUR SR I ek o

AEBEAEARR B X (R1TE KA
BRARMEERGED) EEEANE
e BEERRTERA0% L P E R
BELEEBARE - HEPRZEAAE
e &R

Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—EF-lmF —F=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFERRITER 704,685,715 40,382,165
Equity attributable to owners of BRARIMBEEGER
the parent 2,783,371,130 2,225,229,912
Gearing ratio BEXRBELX 25% 2%
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 48. BBHmRZHLE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2015.

BBHRRENR _T-—HRF=A-1+HA
REFRSHENEETE -
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Properties under development/Properties for sale

BERPUXFEWHE
Attributable
Stage of Expected interest
Location Use Site area Gross floor area  completion completion date  of the Group
W B WEER BREER IRZAKER  EHRIEH rEBELER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(F7K) (F5K)
Southeastern side of Commercial/ 46,937.50 434,461 Work in progress  December 2018 52.08%
Zhongshan Road Residential THEH Z5-\§1ZR
Shahekou District wE/fix
Dalian City
Liaoning Province
The PRC
MEREE KE
PANE
iR A

209



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETERREZER (F8) BRAA
Annual Report 2014

—ZT—FEER

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY R E BB HME

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set
out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

AEEBELBMBFENRENEE BE
MR EafmT - DHEaE TIERER
B BmE  WEFEEE,EFNOE - Ut
EMBAFREZMBEHRRNELD

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1+-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mF = —T——-F —T——F ZT-I%F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FEr FET FEr FET
RESULTS £
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELEER
Revenue Wz 70,856 47,979 87,328 - 654
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B R BT F 6,438 477,687 422,613 432,014 25,730
Income tax expense FEHiAX (491) (81,012) (61,618)  (111,191) (370)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM BEREER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS REGEH 5,947 396,675 360,995 320,823 25,360
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEEEHK
Profit for the year from a BRI E B RE
discontinued operation eyl - - - 152,766 18,320
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REGF 5,947 396,675 360,995 473,589 43,680
Attributable to: TH AL :
Owners of the parent BARIFEE 27,266 397,242 359,651 467,519 36,062
Non-controlling interests RS (21,319) (567) 1,344 6,070 7,618
5,947 396,675 360,995 473,589 43,680
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE BEBRFER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  #&z
Total assets EEHE 8,680,613 2,348,352 2,086,453 2,551,850 4,071,565
Total liabilities BELE (5,318,852)  (118,040)  (128,254)  (396,770)  (637,841)
Non-controlling interests e £ (578,390) (5,082) (5,582) (4,173) (71,646)
2,783,371 2,225,230 1,952,617 2,150,907 3,362,078
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